
 
 

 
 
To: 

 
 
Members of the  
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Peter Dean (Chairman) 
Councillor Alexa Michael (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillors Graham Arthur, Douglas Auld, Eric Bosshard, Katy Boughey, 
Lydia Buttinger, Nicky Dykes, Simon Fawthrop, Peter Fookes, John Ince, 
Russell Jackson, Mrs Anne Manning, Russell Mellor, Tom Papworth, 
Richard Scoates and Harry Stranger 

 
 A meeting of the Development Control Committee will be held at Bromley Civic 

Centre on TUESDAY 29 JANUARY 2013 AT 7.30 PM  
 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Resources 
 

 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

2  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

3  
  

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON  
22 NOVEMBER 2012 (Pages 1-4) 
 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Lisa Thornley 

   lisa.thornley@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7566   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 22 January 2013 

Public speaking on planning application reports is a feature at meetings of the 
Development Control Committee and Plans Sub-Committees. It is also possible for the 
public to speak on Contravention Reports and Tree Preservation Orders at Plans Sub-
Committees. Members of the public wishing to speak will need to have already written to 
the Council expressing their view on the particular matter and have indicated their wish to 
do so to Democratic Services by no later than 10.00 a.m. on the working day before the 
date of the meeting. 
 
The inclusion of public contributions, and their conduct, will be at the discretion of the 
Chairman. Such contributions will normally be limited to two speakers per proposal, one 
for and one against, each with three minutes to put their point across. 
 
For further details, please telephone 020 8313 4745. 



 
 

4  QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING  

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to this Committee must be 
received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  Therefore please 
ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 5pm on 
Wednesday 23 January 2013.  
 

5  
  

OPTIONS AND PREFERRED STRATEGY CONSULTATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 
(Pages 5-130) 
 

6  
  

ITALIAN GARDENS AND GLADES TERRACE APPLICATION FOR 
REGISTRATION AS TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN (Pages 131-134) 
 

7  
  

APPEALS BY CAPITAL SHOPPING CENTRES LTD (CSC) AGAINST THE 
COUNCIL'S DECISION TO REFUSE PLANNING AND LISTED BUILDING 
CONSENT FOR DEVELOPMENT AT QUEEN'S GARDENS, BROMLEY  
(Pages 135-142) 
 

8  
  

AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT (AMR) 2011/12 (Pages 143-184) 

9  
  

PLANNING PERFORMANCE AND PROPOSED DIRECTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
(Pages 185-198) 
 

10  
  

THE CHENIES ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION (Pages 199-202) 

11  
  

JULIAN ROAD ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION (Pages 203-206) 

  



 

35 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 6.30 pm on 22 November 2012 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Peter Dean (Chairman) 
Councillor Alexa Michael (Vice-Chairman)  
 

 

Councillors Graham Arthur, Douglas Auld, Katy Boughey, 
Lydia Buttinger, Simon Fawthrop, Peter Fookes, John Ince, 
Russell Jackson, Charles Joel, Tom Papworth, Sarah Phillips, 
Richard Scoates and Harry Stranger 

 
Also Present: 

 
Councillors Colin Smith, Michael Tickner and Stephen Wells 
 

 
24   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Anne Manning and 
Eric Bosshard; Councillors Charles Joel and Sarah Phillips attended as their 
respective substitutes.  Apologies for absence were also received from 
Councillors Nicky Dykes and Russell Mellor. 
 
25   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
26   CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 

ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2012 
be confirmed and signed as a true record. 
 
27   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE 

MEETING 
 

No questions were received. 
 
28   APPLICATION TO REGISTER LAND BEHIND 94-98 AND  

126 HIGH STREET, BECKENHAM AS A TOWN OR VILLAGE 
GREEN 
 

The report outlined Mrs Graham Paul’s recommendations following a non-
statutory Inquiry on 24 and 25 September 2012 in relation to an application to 
register land behind 94-98 and 126 High Street, Beckenham as a town or 
village green. Mrs Graham Paul is a barrister with expertise in the law and 
practice relating to town and village greens and had been appointed by the 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Development Control Committee 
22 November 2012 
 

36 

Council to report whether the application should be accepted or not.  
Following consideration of her report, Members were requested to decide 
whether or not the land should be registered as a town green. 
 
Representations in support of the application were received from visiting 
Member Councillor Michael Tickner who expressed his surprise that a 
member of the Central Beckenham Residents’ Association (CBRA) had not 
been permitted to speak at the meeting.  He pointed out that whilst procedural 
directions were set by the Council, Mrs Graham Paul  had referred to the  
inquiry as a ‘formal’ inquiry.  As such, the objectors had the advantage of legal 
representation from a top legal barrister, something which the CBRA could not 
afford. 
 
The Town Green and Village legislation, approved by Parliament, gave 
residents the opportunity to take action to protect green spaces from 
development.  As Councillor Tickner believed the  report did not take into 
account the utilisation of the land by residents, he urged Members to consider 
the wider issue of the consequences resulting from a refusal to register the 
land which would mean a change of use and the loss of green space. 
 
Councillor Tickner reported that the CBRA had provided evidence that the site 
had been used by many local people for more than 20 years.  If Members 
approved the application, the town green would contribute towards revenue 
generating opportunities by providing a ‘breathing space’ for new businesses 
in the area.  New grants would be available to enable specially designed play 
areas to be provided for local children and parking facilities to aid businesses.  
This would bring further footfall to the area without exacerbating current traffic 
problems.  
 
In conclusion, Councillor Tickner saw this as the Council’s final chance to 
transform Beckenham by providing the area with a new open space and 
therefore a new identity for the future.  If Members refused the application, 
this would lead to the erection of new dwellings which would increase the 
density of the area. 
 
Mr Greg Ullman, Team Leader Planning, Environment and Licensing 
explained that whilst public speaking was only permitted in relation to planning 
applications, representations in objection to and in support of the application 
(including those of the CBRA) had been submitted at the two day  inquiry 
which were subsequently taken into consideration by Mrs Graham Paul. 
 
The Chairman commented that whilst he would like to see the application 
approved, it was unfortunate that the required criteria had not been met.  The 
Council had done everything it could however, Mrs Graham Paul  had 
concluded emphatically that the application should be refused.  With regret, 
the Chairman moved that the Committee decline to register the land. 
 
Councillor Fawthrop opposed the Chairman’s view and moved that the land 
be registered on the basis that Members should not be swayed by the report’s 
conclusions and should vote for what they knew to be right.  He agreed with 

Page 2



Development Control Committee 
22 November 2012 

 

37 
 

Councillor Tickner’s view that the CBRA had been disadvantaged at the public 
inquiry because it could not afford legal representation. 
 
Agreeing that the required criteria had not been met, Councillor Arthur 
seconded the motion to decline the application. 
 
Following a vote of 10-2, Members RESOLVED that:- 
 
1) the report dated 31 October 2012 prepared by Mrs Annabel Graham 

Paul into the application to register land behind 94-98 and 126 High 
Street, Beckenham as a town or village green be accepted; and 

 
2) registration of the land, both in whole and in part, be DECLINED for 

the reasons set out in Mrs Annabel Graham Paul’s report dated 31 
October 2012. 

 
Councillor Fawthrop’s vote against declining the application was noted. 
 
29   EXTENDING PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS FOR 

HOMEOWNERS AND BUSINESSES: TECHNICAL 
CONSULTATION. THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO THIS 
NATIONAL CONSULTATION 
 

In November 2012, a national consultation was published in respect of a set 
of proposals to amend the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 to allow homeowners and businesses to make 
larger extensions to their homes and business premises without requiring a 
planning application and to allow quicker installation of broadband 
infrastructure.  The consultation period would end on 24 December 2012. 
 
Members considered the Council’s response to the proposals as set out in the 
report. 
 
The Chairman reported that the consultation had been considered at previous 
DCC and Council meetings.  Letters had been sent to the Planning Minister 
setting out the Council’s reaction to the proposed changes.  With the Leader 
of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for the Environment, the Chairman had 
also met with the Minister to personally discuss the consultation.  The 
Chairman moved that the Council’s response to the consultation be 
submitted. 
 
Members requested that the following observations be incorporated into the 
response at question 1:- 
 
1) Non-protected areas included Areas of Special Residential Character 

which was how the Bromley Unitary Development Plan protected areas 
which had an attractive and spacious nature.  The spaciousness of such 
areas would be seriously prejudiced by the larger extensions permitted by 
the amendments.   

 

Page 3



Development Control Committee 
22 November 2012 
 

38 

2) The size of permitted extensions would significantly reduce garden land; 
this was contrary to previous changes introduced in 2010 which addressed 
the problem of ‘garden grabbing’. 

 
RESOLVED that the Council’s views and comments, as set out in the 
report, be submitted as a response to the national consultation with the 
response to question 1 amended to include Member comments as 
above. 
 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 6.55 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 4



  

1

Report No. 
DRR13/016  

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: BROMLEY’S LOCAL PLAN - OPTIONS AND PREFERRED 
STRATEGY FOR CONSULTATION  
 

Contact Officer: Mary Manuel, Head of Planning Strategy and Projects 
Tel: 020 8313 4303    E-mail:  mary.manuel@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Chief Planner 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report seeks Development Control Committee’s endorsement of Appendix B as the 
consultative Options and Preferred Strategy document, forming a key stage in the preparation of 
Bromley’s Local Plan. It follows the Local Development Framework Advisory Panel’s (LDFAP) 
meeting in December 2012 that considered the combined options previously reported to the 
LDFAP and Development Control Committee in the Summer, together with further options 
developed in response to new evidence and guidance. This includes GL Hearn’s work exploring 
how to stimulate the local economy, the GLA office review, and the continuing difficult economic 
and financial climate. The thematic sections are brought together into a single document .  

1.2 Comments from this meeting will be reported to the Executive on February 6th 2013 when it 
considers the Options and Preferred Strategy document for public consultation.. 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That the Committee: 

Endorse Appendix B as the draft Options and Preferred Strategy to the Executive to 
agree for public consultation.  

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: New Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People Excellent Council Quality Environment Safer Bromley 
Supporting Independence Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres Not Applicable: Further Details 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost £4k for current consultation stage plus £60k for public 
examination and evidence 

 

2. Ongoing costs: Non-Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre Planning 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £2.725m  
 

5. Source of funding: Existing Revenue Account 2012/13 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 76 FTES  
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement  
 

2. Call-in: Applicable Not Applicable:  Further Details  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Borough-wide  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Ward Councillors’s comments were invited 
on the earlier strategic options considered by DCC in Summer 2012 and reported to the 
Committee. and will be consulted as part of the wider consultation process. 

 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 6



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 Development Control Committee (DCC) received reports in June and July 2012 outlining the 
thematic chapters and strategic options for inclusion in the Options and Preferred Strategy 
stage of the Local Plan. In the intervening period, there has been further evidence, including GL 
Hearn’s work in Stimulating the Local Economy, the update to the Affordable Housing Viability 
Assessment and policy and guidance issued by the GLA in the form of the Minor Alterations to 
the London Plan and Supplementary Planning Guidance. In addition, Government has made 
announcements encouraging economic growth and relaxing planning requirements.  The 
Mayor’s recent SPGs include those relating to Housing, Land for Industry and Transport, 
Shaping Neighbourhoods, Play and Informal Recreation.  

3.2 The Local Development Framework Advisory Panel (LDFAP) in December 2012 considered a 
report bringing together the earlier work with amendments, and where necessary additions to 
the Strategic Options. The LDFAP agreed minor changes to wording reflecting their earlier 
comments and discussions at Development Control Committee together with new options and 
key changes as outlined below.  The LDFAP agreed for these to be included in the draft Options 
and Preferred Strategy document to be reported to DCC in January, and then to the Executive 
in February 2013, with DCC comments, seeking agreement to public consultation. 

3.3 The National Planning Policy Framework, (NPPF) published in March 2012 referred to Local 
Plans rather than Local Development Frameworks as part of the simplification of the planning 
process.  

3.4 While the Council was developing its Core Strategy several documents within its Local 
Development Framework were adopted, namely, the Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan, 
and Supplementary Planning Documents in relation to Affordable Housing and Planning 
Obligations . These continue and will form part of the Local Plan, which once adopted will 
replace the saved UDP policies and together with the London Plan will form the Development 
Plan for the Borough.  

3.5 The process for the preparation for the Local Plan is set out in the Town and Country Planning 
Acts and Regulations and this consultation is made under Regulation 18. The Local Plan has to 
demonstrate a robust and up to date evidence base, and consideration of alternatives of the 
options developed at this stage. The Council is required to engage and consult with its local 
community and partner agencies throughout the plan making process. 

3.6 The Options and Preferred Strategy is an important stage in the preparation of Bromley’s Local 
Plan. Appendix B forms the draft Options and Preferred Strategy document.  Final editing for 
consistency and clarity, and presentation purposes together with additional sections as reflected 
in the contents page will be required. This includes the glossary, list of references and links to 
key supporting documents. 

3.7 The Executive will be asked to agree Appendix B subject to the final presentation and minor 
alterations agreed by the Leader of the Council, as Chairman of the Executive, in consultation 
with the Chief Planner for public consultation 

 Consultation 

3.8 The Options and Preferred Strategy document will form the basis of consultation with statutory 
consultees (e.g. English Heritage, the GLA, and the Environment Agency) local residents, 
businesses, partner organisations and the wider community including voluntary and community 
groups, and neighbouring local authorities. The form of the consultation remains as agreed by 
DCC in July and in line with the consultation undertaken for the Core Strategy Issues Document 
in 2011. The consultation is web based to minimise costs to the Council. However, to maximise 
awareness of the opportunity to respond it will include:   

Page 7



  

4

• Press releases and articles in the local papers and community newsletters 

• Inclusion in ‘Update’ circulated to all Bromley residents associations, 

• Posters and flyers places in Council offices (including the Civic Centre, Mottingham and 
Outreach Centres and libraries), leisure centres and health centres, 

• Article and a link to the webpage in the Council’s business bulletin sent to over 2500 
businesses, 

• Article and link to the webpage in Community Links Bromley e-bulletin to over 500 voluntary 
and community organisations, and 

• Emails to all those on the planning databases advising of the consultation details. 
 
3.9 The cost of the consultation process for this stage of the Local Plan is estimated to be in the 

region of £4,000.  The consultation will be a minimum of 6 weeks. Appendix C sets out the type 
of questions to be included within the consultation document.  

 

Amended/Additional Options 

3.10 As outlined above there have been amendments to the Strategic Options These fall within 
several types:- 

• amendments reflecting the comments and discussions at the LDFAP and DCC comments 
last Summer,   

• Amendments or additions in light of new evidence, for instance the GL Hearn work into 
stimulating the local economy, and the update on the Affordable Housing Viability 
Assessment, 

• Identification of new policy areas and strategic options, primarily as the thematic chapters 
have been brought together as a single document, for instance, mixed use developments 

• Inclusion of further options within the document, to demonstrate alternatives have been 
considered to arrive at a preferred option.  

• In addition, there has been some rephrasing/rewording for clarity and consistency and to 
help the  public to read and understand the document,  

 

3.11 Appendix A shows where objectives and strategic options have been added and 
significantalterations since the last discussion at DCC.. 

3.12 The response to consultation on the Options and Preferred Strategy will be reported to the 
LDFAP and DCC  in  May /June . In the context of this strategic direction, development 
management policies will be developed together with site allocations, and detailed designations 
in the Spring. These will require the Executive’s agreement to consultation alongside the 
strategic options. Following this stage the draft Local Plan will be prepared for the final formal 
consultation which precedes submission to the Secretary of State for Examination in Public in 
2014. 

3.13 The Local Plan is a Council-wide strategy and is consistent with Bromley 2020 (the Borough’s 
Community Strategy. As part of the Local Plan process an Infrastructure Delivery Plan is 
prepared setting out the requirements needed to deliver the vision and objectives in the Plan. 
These documents form the basis of the Council’s introduction of any Community Infrastructure 
Levy, which may be required to help deliver the Plan.  

Page 8



  

5

3.14 The timescale has moved from the one anticipated with the preparation of a Core Strategy for 
several reasons. To avoided duplication and wasted resources the work focused in areas that 
would support a Core Strategy or a Local Plan.  This included; further evidence gathering, 
updating consultation databases and working with departments and partners to consider 
alternatives and the rationale for the preferred options.  Subsequently, in light of the continuing 
depressed economic and financial climate and further Government announcements 
encouraging economic growth the Council commissioned work to explore how the local 
economy could be encouraged to grow. This is in line with the NPPF and the vision set out in 
the Core Strategy Issues Document, and continues in the draft Options and Preferred Strategy 
document. The main findings of the work from GL Hearn highlight the potential for intensification 
of key employment areas. This has led to new and altered options, included within Appendix B 
and highlighted in Appendix A.  A copy of this report will be placed in the Members’ Room for 
information.  

3.15 A Local Plan is far more comprehensive than a Core Strategy as it includes Development 
Management policies and Site Allocations. While these would follow after a Core Strategy at a 
later date .Therefore while timescales have changed the Council should have a robust, up to 
date and detailed local plan against which planning applications can be determined in line with 
local priorities in a similar timescale to that possible under the Local Development Framework 
approach.   

3.16 Outline Timescale 

Consultation on Options and Preferred Strategy Feb –April 2013 

Analysis of Responses and Report to LDFAP June 2013 

Report to DCC July 2013 

Development of Strategic Policies, Site Allocations, Development Control Policies and 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan– Spring/Summer 2013 

Report to DCC and Executive Sept 2013 

Preparation of Draft Local Plan Autumn/Winter 2013 

Consultation on Draft Local Plan (Regulation 19 formal consultation) – late 2013 

Submission of Local Plan to Planning Inspectorate and Examination in Public 2014 

3.17 As indicated earlier the Local Plan process requires particular stages and steps to be followed 
to be found ‘sound’ at the Examination in Public . This also applies to associated documents 
including the Infrastructure Delivery Plan and supporting documents to introduce a Community 
Infrastructure Levy to help deliver the Local Plan.  The Council has to pay the costs of the 
Examination in Public together with the cost of the further consultation stages of the plan 
preparation and the production of evidence where gaps need to be addressed or updates 
required as circumstances change; for instance the work considering the Local Economy 
undertaken this year.  

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

Bromley 2020 as the Sustainable Community Strategy for the Borough was the starting point for 
developing the Core Strategy Issues Document in 2011 and for the Vision and Objectives in the 
Options and Preferred Strategy stage of the Local Plan preparation. The Local Plan will extend 
this vision until 2030 and contributes to all the priorities within Building a Better Bromley. The 

Page 9



  

6

Local Plan together with the London Plan will form the development plan for the borough. The 
Local Plan, once adopted will replace the saved policies of the UDP.  

The Local Plan has to be in general conformity with the London Plan (July 2011) and with the 
National Planning Policy Framework published in March 2012. Importantly the Local Plan sets 
out the vision and objectives, and the policies against which planning applications will be 
determined (together with the London Plan) and the priorities against which the plan will be 
monitored and reviewed.   

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The cost of the consultation process for this stage of the Local Plan is estimated to be in the 
region of £4k which will be funded from the local plan budget within Planning.   

5.2 The Executive agreed a carry forward sum of £60k to fund the preparation of the Councils’ 
Local Plan. The revised timetable outlined in 3.16 above, indicates that the examination of the 
Plan will not take place until 2014. A request will be made to the June Executive to carry 
forward the £60k in order to meet the future costs of the examination in public and to undertake 
any further evidence work required. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 The proposals are consistent with the Planning legislation and regulations.  

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Personnel Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Report No DR12/066 to DCC 28/6/12 Changes to National  
and Local Planning System –Update 
Report No DR12/067 to DCC 28/6/12 Options for Gypsies 
and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
Report No DR12/068 to DCC 28/6/12 Living in Bromley – 
Housing Options 
Report No DR12/069 to DCC 28/6/12 Review of Green Belt , 
Metropolitan Open Land and Urban Open Space Boundaries 
Report   to DCC 26/7/12 Bromley Local Plan 
Bromley 2020 Community Strategy 
National Planning Policy Framework March 2012 
London Plan (July 2011) 
GL Hearn Report December 2012 Stimulating the Local 
Economy 

 

Page 10



 Table of Key Changes to Objectives and Strategic Options     Appendix A 

Chapter  Change Summary Preferred/non 
preferred 

Reason for 
inclusion/amendment 

Visions and 
Objectives 

Built heritage Amended 
objective 

Encourage a proactive approach to the 
improvement of heritage assets to 
contribute to strategic, local planning and 
economic objectives.   

n/a Amended wording 
agreed by LDFAP 

 Business, 
employment 
and the local 
economy 

New objective  
 

Support the SOLDC designation at Biggin 
Hill to enhance the areas employment 
and business opportunities, whilst having 
regard to the accessibility and 
environmental constraints 

n/a This new objective 
reflects the SOLDC 
designation in the 
London Plan and 
importance of the area 
already recognised with 
a major section in the 
UDP for Biggin Hill and 
its Environs.  

Living In Bromley  New option 11 Where new housing is part of a mixed use 
development, the Council will have regard 
to the amenity and character of the 
existing area, the existing mix of houses 
and identified need and provision of 
amenity space.  

Preferred To cover mixed use 
developments and 
highlight the importance 
of character and mix of 
the development 

  New option 17 Financial contributions to be sought on 
sites providing 1- 9 dwellings 

Non Preferred Raised as an option 
under the Affordable 
Housing Viability 
Assessment 

  New option 18 Apply the principles of affordable housing 
policy to care home developments (Use 
Class C2) 

Preferred Applies affordable 
principle as suggested 
by London Plan and 
agreed by LDFAP. 

  New option 23 Identifying the precise areas highlighted in 
The London Plan as of “Areas for 
Regeneration”. 

Not preferred For completeness and 
demonstration of 
alternatives considered.  

 
 
 

 New option 31 Seek additional traveller sites Not preferred For completeness and 
demonstration of 
alternatives considered. 

P
age 11



 Table of Key Changes to Objectives and Strategic Options     Appendix A 

 

Supporting 
Communities 

 No changes    

Getting Around  Amended option 
63 

Promote the extensions of the DLR to 
Bromley North including by safeguarding 
sufficient land to enable construction and 
operation. In particular at former Bromley 
Town Centre Area Action Plan Site A.  
 

preferred Amended making 
reference to the need to 
safeguard for this, 
particularly with regard to  
Site A.  

  Amended option 
64 

Support the Tramlink extensions to 
Bromley Town Centre and Crystal Palace, 
improving accessibility and orbital public 
transport routes to Bromley Town Centre 

Preferred Amended making 
reference to the tramlink 
extension to Crystal 
Palace extension.  

Bromley’s Valued 
Environments 

 No changes    

Working in 
Bromley 
Part 1 
 
 

 New Option 79 
 

Increase the economic contribution of the 
Cray Business Corridor to the local 
renewal area and to the borough as a 
whole through improving the quality of the 
environment, review the boundary of 
existing designation and optimisation of 
sites.  
 

Preferred Included to realise the 
potential increased 
economic contribution of 
the area and synergies, 
with its status as a SIL, 
and the renewal area 
London Plan 
designations supported 
by local evidence.  

  New Option 89 Seek the expansion and intensification of 
office use within Bromley Town Centre, 
particularly around Bromley South and 
Bromley North stations, supported by 
improved transport connections and 
recognition within the London Plan as an 
Opportunity Area. 
 

preferred Included to realise the 
potential increased 
economic contribution of 
the town centre, its 
Metropolitan Centre 
status (London Plan), 
potential DLR extension 
and supported by local 
evidence.  

  Amended Option 
91 

Realise the full potential of the Biggin Hill 
SOLDC and accommodate a feasible 

Preferred  Included to realise the 
potential increased 

P
age 12



 Table of Key Changes to Objectives and Strategic Options     Appendix A 

higher level of economic growth, 
reviewing appropriate constraints, such as 
accessibility, green belt boundaries and 
heritage designations while ensuring the 
environmental quality is maintained. 

economic contribution of 
the area, its SOLDC 
status in the London 
Plan designations 
supported by local 
evidence.  

Working in 
Bromley 
Part 2 
 

 New  Option 100 Encourage the reuse of upper floors for 
both residential and commercial uses.  
 

preferred This arises from work 
identifying significant 
floor space unused or 
underused and bringing 
it back into use will 
contribute to the vitality 
and sustainability of the 
town centre.  

  New Option 104 Define town centre boundaries for 
Metropolitan, Major and District Centres 
as per the requirements of the NPFF and 
London Plan 
 

Preferred   Required for compliance 
with NPPF and London 
Plan identified in earlier 
reports to DC but not as 
option. 

Environmental 
Challenges 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 New option 108 Proposals for development should include 
details about how all aspects of 
sustainable design and construction have 
been taken into account (in, for example, 
their design and access statement) and 
explain how this will reduce the 
environmental impact of the development 
and ensure it is environmentally resilient. 

preferred New option relating to 
general sustainable 
design and construction 
following technical 
advice to bring together 
the wide range of 
environmental issues.  

  New option 109 Proposals for major developments should 
reach a specified level of a nationally 
recognised standard (for example, The 

Not preferred  New option relating to 
general sustainable 
design and construction 

P
age 13



 Table of Key Changes to Objectives and Strategic Options     Appendix A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Code for Sustainable Homes) to show 
how they have addressed sustainable 
design and construction. 
 

following technical 
advice to bring together 
the wide range of 
environmental issues. 

  New option 123 Developers should address the risks 
associated with a changing climate, as 
highlighted in the NPPF, The London Plan 
and The Mayor’s Climate Change 
Adaptation Strategy, and investigate site-
specific means of adapting to it. 
 

preferred New option following 
further technical advice 
and to ensure 
compliance with the 
London Plan.  

  New option 124 Development should adhere to the design 
guidance published by The Mayor of 
London and the Chartered Institution of 
Building Services Engineers aimed at 
reducing the risk of overheating in new 
development.  
 

Not preferred  New option following 
further technical advice 
and to ensure 
compliance with the 
London Plan. 

P
age 14



1 

        APPENDIX B 
Options and preferred strategy document 

 

BROMLEY LOCAL PLAN 
 

Options and Preferred Strategy  
 

CONTENTS 
 

1  Introduction and purpose       2 

 

2  Strategic Context 

 

3 Bromley in 2030 Vision and Objectives                           6 

 

4  Strategic Policy Themes  

Living in Bromley         12 

 Supporting Communities        43 

 Getting Around         57 

 Bromley’s Valued Environments       72   

 Working in Bromley        79 

 Environmental Challenges                100 
   

 

5 Appendices  
 Glossary 

 References  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 15



2 

 
 

Introduction 
 
Bromley is in the process of developing a new style ‘Local Plan’ for Bromley, 
which will set out the vision and objectives for the Borough for the next 15- 20 
years and the planning policies to support their delivery. This together with the 
London Plan (July 2011) will form the Development Plan for the Borough. 
 
This document forms the Options and Preferred Strategy stage in the 
preparation of the Local Plan. It builds on earlier work that residents, 
businesses and partner agencies have contributed to, in particular, through 
the Core Strategy Issues Document in Summer 2011. 
 
The purpose is to provide local residents, businesses and the wider 
community and partners with the opportunity to participate in the plan making 
process and make their views on the vision, objectives and strategic options 
known to the Council. 
  
The Bromley Local Plan will meet the requirements of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (amended) and be in line with the new 
National Planning Policy Framework published in March 2012.  
 
Background  
 
The Council had previously been progressing its Local Development 
Framework (LDF), a series of documents, including several adopted 
documents; (Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan and Supplementary 
Planning Documents for Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing).  
 
In Summer 2011 the Council undertook public consultation on its Core 
Strategy Issues Document as the first formal stage of preparing the, then, 
Core Strategy (the overarching policy document within the LDF). However, 
the Government introduced its new National Planning Policy Framework and 
a new system of ‘Local Plans’ replacing the Local Development Frameworks 
in 2012. 
 
The Council decided to move to a Local Plan to meet the new guidance and 
ensure that the work undertaken for the Core Strategy and LDF is 
incorporated within the Local Plan preparation. This work including the 
evidence base and the response to the public consultation has been central to 
developing this consultation document, and will continue to inform the Local 
Plan process.  
 
The Local Plan will set out the vision and objectives for the Borough in 2030 
and the strategic and more detailed policies used in determining local 
planning applications together with a proposals map and specific site 
proposals. 
 

Page 16



3 

In the meantime the majority of the policies within the adopted UDP (July 
2006) are ‘saved’ and form part of Bromley’s Development Plan. 
 
Options and Preferred Strategy Phase 
 
The Options and Preferred Strategy is an important stage of the Local Plan 
process and as outline above builds on the earlier LDF, and in particular the 
Core Strategy preparatory work.  The Core Strategy Issues Document set out 
a vision and objectives for the Borough in 2030. This current document refines 
these in light of the consultation response from residents and the wider 
community, ongoing research and technical evidence base and changes in 
Government and London wide guidance. 
 
 
The Council has considered different options for the future development of the 
Borough. This document clearly identifies ‘preferred options’ which the 
Council considers will contribute to the delivery of the vision and objectives for 
the Borough. Other options, where there are considered to be reasonable 
alternatives are included. 
 
 
Consultation process 
 
Consultation on the Options and Preferred Strategy is primarily through the 
Council’s website. Awareness of the consultation is being promoted through 
residents associations, community groups, emails to those on the planning 
department’s database, flyers and posters and directing people to the website 
to respond on-line. This has several benefits, it is often easier for people to 
move between different sections of large documents on-line and links to 
related sections can be included. It is also a cost effective way for the Council 
to reach a large number of residents, businesses, and partner agencies and 
to be able to analyse their responses. 
 
Copies of the document are available in public libraries, at Community House, 
and the Cotmandene and Mottingham Outreach centres. If you, or someone 
you know requires a copy of the document in another format please contact 
the Local Plan team. 
 
The on-line consultation will continue for 6 weeks.  
 
Next Steps 
 
The responses to this document will be reported to the Council’s Development 
Control Committee and help form the next stage of the Local Plan process. 
Along side this consultation and taking into account the responses the Site 
Allocations, Proposals Map and detailed development management/control 
policies will be developed and subject to another phase of consultation.  
 
There will be a final formal period of public consultation prior to the Council 
submitting the draft Local Plan to the Secretary of State, in advance of an 

Page 17



4 

Examination in Public. An Inspector at the EiP will consider the plan in its 
entirety. The draft Local Plan will include the Vision and objectives for the 
borough, the strategic approach together with detailed planning policies and a 
proposals map showing the proposed site allocations and designations. 
 
Structure of this document 
 
The next section sets out the Vision and Objectives for the borough to 2030. 
These have been developed from Bromley 2020, the Community Strategy for 
the Borough and the Core Strategy Issues Document included an earlier 
version. 
 
This is followed by six thematic chapters,  which focus on key elements , 
Living in Bromley, Supporting Communities, Getting around the borough, 
Valued Environments, Working in Bromley and Environmental Challenges. . 
 
Throughout these sections your views are sought on whether you agree with 
the vision and objectives and whether you consider that the preferred options 
identified will contribute to the delivery of these over the plan period of 15 
years.   
 
 
Consultation and Making Your Views Known 
 
This is a consultation document, inviting the view of residents, local 
businesses, community and voluntary sector organisations, service providers 
and statutory partners such as the Metropolitan police, the health sector, 
English Nature and the Environment Agency and English Heritage.  
 
You may already have been involved in the Core Strategy and wider LDF 
preparation process and if you are already on the Planning Department’s 
emailing list you will automatically be kept informed of consultation dates and 
progress in the plan-making process. If you have internet access using the 
consultation on-line portal is the quickest and easiest way to be kept up to 
date and to make your views known.  
 
If you don’t have internet access then if we have your details we can send you 
out information letting you know where you can view documents. For this 
consultation copies can be viewed in all Bromley libriaries, the Cotmandene 
and Mottingham Community and Learning Shops and at Bromley Civic 
Centre. Information on consultation timescales and progress of the Local Plan 
will be publicised in libraries and on the Council’s website 
www.bromley.gov.uk.  
 
This isn’t the only opportunity to be involved in the Local Plan but it is an 
important stage of the process and we encourage as many people living, 
working or involved in the Borough to respond. 
 
Online consultation portal  xxxxxxxxxxxxx 
 

Page 18



5 

Email yyyyyyyyyyy 
 
Postal address 
 
Aaaaa 
 
Please send your comments by xxxxxx 
 
If you need the document in a particular language or format, please let us 
know.  

Page 19



Vision and Objectives 
6 

Bromley in 2030 
 
 
 
“Bromley is known for the high quality of its living, working and natural 

environments.   The Council, local people, organisations and businesses work 

together to ensure that  we all enjoy a good quality of life, living healthy, full, 

independent and rewarding lives.   

 

Bromley values its distinctive neighbourhoods, ranging from the rural to 

suburban and urban.  Neighbourhoods provide a choice of good quality 

homes, jobs and a range of shops and services appropriate to the different 

town, district and local centres.  Bromley Town Centre is recognised for its 

cultural and leisure facilities and vibrant high quality shopping experience. 

 

The protection and enhancement of conservation areas and historic assets 

such as Downe House, Crystal Palace and Biggin Hill, along with high quality 

new development have contributed to civic pride and wellbeing. 

 

The Green Belt fulfils its purpose, and, together with other open spaces, 

contributes to protecting Bromley’s special character and the health and 

wellbeing of local residents and visitors alike. 

 

Bromley has high levels of educational attainment, whilst strong and diverse 

businesses are able to invest to support a thriving economy.” 

 

Page 20



Vision and Objectives 
7 

Open Space and the Natural Environment 

The value of natural spaces, whether private gardens, rivers and lakes or Green Belt, 
is recognised and afforded a high priority.  Land, air and water environments are 
sustainably managed, ensuring that the wide range of different open spaces and 
habitats, with their distinctive animal and plant life, are well managed and accessible.  
As well as helping conserve and enhance biodiversity, Bromley’s natural environment 
supports the wellbeing of its communities, with open spaces and trees providing 
healthy environments and space for leisure and sport. Opportunities are taken to 
increase natural habitats, especially in areas with a deficiency, linking them together 
and improving their quality and accessibility.  
 
Objectives: Manage, protect and enhance natural environments  
 
 Encourage the protection and enhancement of biodiversity. 
 
 Ensure that the Green Belt continues to fulfil its functions 
  

Improve the quality of open space and encourage provision in 
areas of deficiency and in any new development. 

 
Health and Wellbeing 
 
The quality of life in Bromley has improved in all its neighbourhoods with all residents 
enjoying better health and wellbeing. Areas with a concentration of social and/or 
environmental difficulties are being improved. Communities are served by local 
shopping parades, education, healthcare, leisure, community and cultural facilities, 
including libraries and places of worship.  New facilities are encouraged in accessible 
locations to deliver flexible and efficient community hubs. The environment is 
designed to maximise accessibility for people with disabilities. Residents are helped 
to improve their own places and local environments for the benefit of all the 
community. There is less crime and anti-social behaviour. 
 
Objectives: Produce healthier environments and infrastructure to support 

people in living fuller, longer, healthier, more sustainable lives.  
 

Co-ordinate the improvement of Bromley’s designated Renewal 
Areas, and other areas with environmental difficulties, to reduce 
health inequalities; and encourage all communities to improve 
their own environments. 
 
Neighbourhoods offer good quality homes and an accessible 
range of shops and services, appropriate to the roles of the 
different centres - from town centres to local neighbourhood 
centres and parades. 
 
Ensure new community facilities are appropriately located to 
provide accessible effective modern services, and resist the net 
loss of facilities 

 
Homes 
 
A range of decent homes of different types and sizes are available and housing 
supply is tailored to local needs.   Any new housing complements and respects the 
character of neighbourhood in which it is located, paying particular attention to the 

Page 21



Vision and Objectives 
8 

density of development, parking requirements and improving the choice of 
accommodation available.  
 
Objectives: Ensure there is an appropriate supply of homes to meet the 

varied needs of the local population, which responds to changing 
demographics, in particular as the population ages.  

 
Ensure new residential development and conversions 
complement and respect local character. 
 
Ensure new homes are designed to minimise environmental 
impact and are supported by appropriate social and 
environmental infrastructure. 

 
Business, employment and the local economy 
 
Bromley is a prosperous, thriving and skilled borough where businesses choose to 
locate.  New businesses start up and grow using local skills, supply chains and 
investment and Business Areas offer high quality flexible accommodation.  There is 
an improved range of employment opportunities for residents and education and 
skills levels have been raised throughout the Borough. 
 
Objectives: Business Areas adapt successfully to the changing needs of 

modern industry and commerce. 
 

Ensure there are an appropriate supply of commercial land and a 
range of flexible quality business premises across the borough. 
 
Ensure businesses contribute to a high quality, sustainable 
environment, through their premises development and locational 
decisions. 
 
Support the appropriate provision of facilities to deliver high 
quality education and training 
 
Support the SOLDC designation at Biggin Hill to enhance the 
areas employment and business opportunities, whilst having 
regard to the accessibility and environmental constraints.  

Town centres provide a range of goods and services and are safe, clean and 
welcoming for all.  Bromley Town Centre is a competitive Metropolitan Town Centre, 
complementing others in the region and attracting a wide range of visitors to its 
shopping, cinema, theatre and restaurant areas.  Orpington functions as a strong and 
vibrant major centre, offering a good range of shopping, leisure and public amenities. 
These centres, together with the district, local and neighbourhood centres, provide 
accessible shops, services and facilities for residents and wider communities across 
the Borough. 

Objectives: Ensure vitality of Bromley Town Centre, delivering the aims of 
the Area Action Plan. 

 
Encourage a diverse offer in town centres, including shops and 
markets, services, leisure and cultural facilities as well as homes. 
 

Page 22



Vision and Objectives 
9 

Support the continued improvement of Orpington and other 
district and local centres. 
 
Encourage safe town centres and a prosperous evening 
economy. 

 
Maintain and improve neighbourhood centres and parades 
across the borough to ensure locally accessible facilities. 

 
 
Design and the public realm 
 
New development of all kinds is well designed, safe, energy efficient and 
complements its surroundings, respecting the existing scale and layout.  Private or 
public open space, and appropriate car parking are key considerations.  Public art 
and street furniture make places more attractive and comfortable for users.  Our 
roads and streets are clean but uncluttered, with street trees and verges improving 
their appearance.   
 
Objective: Ensure development attains high quality design standards.  
 

Ensure development includes appropriate well planned private or 
public open space. 
 
Ensure public areas are well designed, safe and accessible. 

 
Built heritage 
 
Our man-made heritage assets; areas of distinctive character, listed buildings, 
conservation areas and monuments, are protected and enhanced.  No historic 
features are considered to be “at risk” and underused heritage assets are brought 
back into productive uses. The Borough’s rich heritage is widely enjoyed. 
 
Objective: Continue to protect locally and nationally significant heritage 

assets. 
 

Ensure development complements and improves the setting of 
heritage assets. 
 
Encourage greater accessibility of heritage assets. 
 
Encourage a proactive approach to the protection and 
improvement of heritage assets to contribute to strategic, local 
planning and economic objectives.  

 
Transport 
 
Moving around the borough is easier due to reduced road congestion and improved 
public transport networks. Commuting traffic has reduced as more people share car 
journeys and choose alternative ways of working and travelling.  Reduced road traffic 
results in less pollution and greenhouse gases from transportation.  Any new 
development should where appropriate include electric vehicle charging points and 
there are more car clubs, increasing travel choices for local people.  Walking and 
cycling to work, school and for leisure, has increased and the road environment is 

Page 23



Vision and Objectives 
10 

safer for vulnerable users.   Public transport is more accessible to those with mobility 
problems and is safer and more reliable.   
 
Objectives: Reduce road congestion at peak times through better 

management of the network and encouraging patterns of 
development that reduce the need to travel.  

 
Supporting improvements to public transport links and facilitate 
environments that encourage walking and cycling. 
 
Locate major developments where they can maximise the use of 
public transport. 
 

 Ensure new developments include electric charging points, 
cycling facilities and car clubs where appropriate. 

 
 Ensure streets are safe, accessible and uncluttered, improve 

road safety and reduce air and noise pollution from traffic. 
 

 
 
Environmental challenges 
 
New development is designed in such a way as to not only enhance the character of 
the area but also to ensure it does not worsen any environmental problems.  
Buildings are resource efficient, using less energy, producing less carbon and 
conserving water.  Opportunities for appropriate low carbon, decentralised energy 
networks and renewable energy are considered and flood risk is reduced.  Less 
waste is produced and more is managed and disposed of locally through new cleaner 
technologies.  Pollution control prioritises key local problems and new development 
helps bring contaminated land back into use. 
 
Objectives: Reduce environmental impacts and the use of precious 

resources in the design and construction of new development. 
 
 Support the development of local energy networks and low-

carbon and renewable energy generation. 
 
 Improve the resilience of buildings and places to cope with a 

changing climate, ensuring flood risk is managed and potential 
problems of extreme weather are minimised. 

 
Reduce the amount of waste that ends up in landfill, particularly 
biodegradable waste, and increase self-sufficiency. 
 
Reduce air pollution and minimise problems of noise and light 
pollution.  Ensure contaminated land can be remediated where 
possible. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 24



Vision and Objectives 
11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Living In Bromley 
12 

LIVING IN BROMLEY      

 

Housing    
 
Introduction 
 
The London Borough of Bromley is the largest borough in London with an 
area of 15,014 hectares, half of which is designated as Green Belt.  Bromley’s 
distinctive character arises from its protected open space: countryside, parks, 
gardens, playing fields, and woodlands spread throughout the Borough. 
These existing open space designations restrict the number of large sites 
which can come forward for housing. The Borough’s housing target is 
therefore very much capacity led having regard to the existing land 
designations and policy constraints.  
 
 
Context (National and London Plan Policies) 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires Local Authorities to 
use their evidence base to ensure that their Local Plan meets the full, 
objectively assessed needs for market and affordable housing in the housing 
market area, as far as is consistent with the policies set out in the Framework, 
including identifying key sites which are critical to the delivery of the housing 
strategy over the plan period.  
 
Local planning authorities should identify and update annually a supply of 
specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years worth of housing 
against their housing requirements with an additional buffer of 5% (moved 
from later in the plan period) to ensure choice and competition in the market 
for land. Where there has been a record of persistent under delivery of 
housing, local planning authorities should increase the buffer to 20% (moved 
forward from later in the plan period) to provide a realistic prospect of 
achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and competition in the 
market for land.  
 
The NPPF sets out that local planning authorities may make an allowance for 
windfall sites in the five-year supply if they have compelling evidence that 
such sites have consistently become available in the local area and will 
continue to provide a reliable source of supply.  
 
London Plan  
 
The Mayor recognises the pressing need for more homes in London in order 
to promote opportunity and provide a real choice for all Londoners in ways 
that meet their needs at a price they can afford (LP Policy 3.3).  
 

Page 26



Living In Bromley 
13 

The London Plan has been informed by both the London-wide Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and the London-wide Strategic Housing 
Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) and makes reference to the annual 
requirement for housing in London1 which is greater than the total minimum 
housing provision target2.  Boroughs should seek to achieve and exceed the 
relevant minimum borough annual average target.  
 
LP Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to optimise housing output taking 
account of local context and character, design principles and public transport 
capacity. Importantly LP Policy 3.5 states that housing developments should 
be of the highest quality internally and externally and in relation to their 
context and to the wider environment taking into account the strategic policies 
in the London Plan to protect and enhance London’s residential environment 
and the attractiveness as a place to live. 
 
LP Policy 3.8 states that account should be taken of the changing age and 
structure of London’s population and in particular, the varied needs of older 
Londoners, including for supported and affordable provision. It also requires 
that all new housing is built to ‘Lifetime Homes’ standards and that ten percent 
of new housing is designed to be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable 
for residents who are wheelchair users.  
 
Boroughs are required to set an overall target in their plans for the amount of 
affordable housing provision needed over the plan period in their areas and 
separate targets for social/affordable rented and intermediate housing. 
Boroughs should also reflect the strategic priority accorded to the provision of 
affordable housing. The London Plan states that affordable housing targets 
may be expressed in absolute or percentage terms.  
 
The London Plan states that it is expected that new development in London 
will seek to achieve the highest possible Code for Sustainable Homes Levels. 
The London Housing strategy outlines the minimum Code for Sustainable 
Homes levels required for publicly funded housing developments and sets out 
the requirement to meet Code Level 4 from 2011. 
 
There are a series of SPGs (Supplementary Planning Guidance) which 
expand on the London Plan Policies.  Importantly, a new housing SPG has 
recently been published (November 2012) and gives further guidance on 
housing supply, quality, choice, affordable housing, stock and investment, 
infrastructure and mixed use developments.  
 
 
Local Issues and Evidence   
 
There are a number of local issues which are of relevance to the Living in 
Bromley Chapter. Particularly important local issues include the retention of 

                                                 
1
 34,900 dwellings as stated in the London-wide SHMA (2009) 

2
 32,210 dwellings as stated in the London-wide SHLAA (2009) 

Page 27



Living In Bromley 
14 

the valued local character, the ageing population within the Borough, and 
housing need and supply. 
 
The issues consultation responses highlight the ageing population within the 
borough and also the importance of the borough’s local character.  
Importantly, Building a Better Bromley 2020 Vision states that housing policy 
will reflect the changing needs of our residents, but we must ensure that the 
very special nature of the Borough is preserved.   
 
A London-wide SHLAA which all London Boroughs took part in was carried 
out in 2009.  The primary role of the SHLAA is to identify sites with potential 
for housing; consider their housing potential; and assess when they are likely 
to be developed. A SHLAA is an important evidence base for plan making.  
The evidence provided by the SHLAA has provided boroughs with their 
average annual housing provision monitoring targets 2011 – 2021.  Bromley’s 
current housing provision monitoring target in the London Plan is 500 units 
per annum. 
 
The NPPF specifies Local Planning Authorities should have a clear 
understanding of housing needs in their area and prepare a Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA) to assess their full housing needs3.  The SHMA 
should identify the scale and mix of housing and range of tenures that the 
local population is likely to need over the Plan period.   
 
The South-East London sub region (Bromley, Bexley, Southwark, Lewisham 
and Greenwich) commissioned a SHMA (including individual borough housing 
requirements studies).  The study demonstrates a high level of need across 
the sub region and highlights a number of key challenges and issues.  
Importantly within the sub region there is an estimated requirement for 10,450 
additional market homes and a need for an extra 16,800 affordable homes 
over the next 5 years.  It is anticipated that the housing requirements will 
change due to the Government’s Welfare Reforms; however, it is too early to 
predict how the reforms will impact upon need.  
 
An Affordable Housing Viability Assessment Update was carried out in 2012 
to refresh a previous Assessment undertaken in 2009/10 and to help inform 
the development of the Council’s affordable housing policies within the 
emerging Local Plan.  The Update reviews the impact on development 
viability of varying thresholds, proportions and tenure mixes.  It has 
reassessed the financial capacity of residential schemes in the Borough to 
deliver affordable housing without their viability being unduly affected or that 
of the Plan as a whole. 
 
The Update recognises that viability variations are seen throughout the 
Borough driven by varying house prices.  Despite this it is considered that a 
simple borough-wide approach to affordable housing provision should 
continue to be considered with variations relating to site size and not 
geography.  

                                                 
3
 Paragraph 159 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012  

Page 28



Living In Bromley 
15 

 
The Update specifies that the options need to be considered in relation to the 
viable advantages of applying them as well as any shortcomings that could 
result from applying them.  Additionally, the affordable housing policy will 
need to incorporate flexibility when developers demonstrate viability issues 
that require discussions with the Council. 
 

QUESTION SET 1 
 
 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
Housing Supply 
 
The London Plan states that boroughs should seek to achieve and exceed the 
relevant minimum borough annual average target. Bromley’s annual housing 
target as set out in the London Plan is 500 units per annum.  
 
A review of the 2009 SHLAA (from which the Council’s target of 500 units per 
annum has arisen) is currently taking place and could result in a more realistic 
long term target for the Council. The integrity of Bromley's Green Belt, 
Metropolitan Open Land, and, Urban Open Space, and size, bulk and design 
of residential buildings and garden land should be reflected in any 
assessment of the capacity of the Borough to accommodate further growth.  
 
In anticipation of the SHLAA review the Council submitted a more realistic 
target in the region of 470 units per annum in response to the London Plan 
consultation having regard to the likely delivery of the SHLAA sites. 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 1  
Seek to deliver a realistic annual housing target of 470 homes. 

 
The capacity of the Borough to accommodate further growth depends on 
local, regional and national policies regarding Green Belt, Metropolitan Open 
Land, Urban Open Space, size, bulk and design of residential buildings and 
garden land.  If existing policies on these issues are continued, then it is 
estimated that there is scope for around 470 dwellings per annum to be built 
in the next ten years, a large proportion of which will be accommodated in 
Bromley Town Centre.  
 
The Council has demonstrated that it can meet the current London Plan target 
of 500 dwellings per annum for the next five years4 however, this target is not 
considered achievable in the long term without impacting on local character.   
 
The Council considers that a long term target in the region of 470 homes per 
annum in anticipation of the SHLAA review will reflect the availability of sites 

                                                 
4
 LB Bromley five year supply paper – Five year supply of deliverable land for housing June 

2012  

Page 29



Living In Bromley 
16 

and retain the local character and context, whilst maintaining the Green Belt.  
This approach is in accordance with national and regional policy and in line 
with the Council’s evidence submitted to the London Plan EiP.  It is 
considered a realistic long term target for the Borough.   
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 2  
Seek to deliver the current London Plan annual target (currently 500 
homes per annum) 

 
The current London Plan target of 500 units per annum is based on a London-
wide SHLAA.   The Council’s five year supply paper demonstrates that the 
Council can meet this target for the next five years until 2018.  However, the 
Council considers that a long term target of 500 units per annum may not be 
achievable without impacting on the local character.  The importance of 
retaining local character and protecting open space was highlighted in the 
Core Strategy Issues Document (July 2011).  The forthcoming London-wide 
SHLAA review will need to have regard to the potential impact on local 
character whilst also assessing the deliverability of the sites.   

 

OPTION 3  
Seek to significantly exceed current London Plan target of 500 homes 
per annum.  

 
Housing development in recent years has led to concerns about the changing 
character of the Borough’s residential areas.  Development planned for the 
next five years could average 500 units per annum, distributed across large 
allocated and ‘windfall’ sites in addition to small sites.  A target in excess of 
the current London Plan target is likely to have an adverse impact on the 
character of the borough.  Growth above the level the Council considers a 
realistic target will have additional unsustainable demands on existing 
infrastructure which in turn will require additional land to be allocated.  
 
The provision of a significantly lower number of houses is not considered as 
an option as it would be contrary to regional and national policy.  
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
Location 
 
In accordance with the London Plan (Policy 3.3), Bromley is required to 
identify and seek to enable development capacity to be brought forward to 
meet the housing targets having regard to the potential to realise brownfield 
housing capacity through the spatial structure it provides including;  
 

• Intensification 

• Town centre renewal 

• Opportunity and intensification areas and growth corridors 

Page 30



Living In Bromley 
17 

• Mixed use redevelopment  

• Sensitive renewal of existing areas 
 

The London-wide SHLAA recognises that in London, the housing market has 
little regard to borough boundaries and unlike the rest of the country, over 
96% of housing comes from brownfield sources.  A large proportion of new 
housing in Bromley is therefore built on existing brownfield sites.  During the 
monitoring period 2010-2011 94% of new and converted dwellings were built 
on previously developed land5.  
 
The options below identify the preferred locations for housing development 
within the borough. 
 
The release of Green Belt land for housing is not considered as an option as it 
is contrary to regional and national policy6 which seek to protect the Green 
Belt from inappropriate development.   
 

PREFERRED OPTION 4   
Town centre first approach. 

 
Town centres are considered the most accessible locations with good public 
transport and road networks.   This approach which is supported by national 
and regional policy would assist in town centre renewal and would help to 
retain the character of the rest of the Borough.  The Bromley Town Centre 
Area Action Plan demonstrates that Bromley Town Centre will be a major 
contributor in accommodating growth.   
 
The intensification of areas outside of the town centre is not considered a 
sustainable option as it will have a detrimental impact on the character of the 
Borough.   
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 5  
Existing brownfield sites & windfall sites at a density that respects local 
character.  

 
As noted above this may result in some developments coming forward at 
densities lower than that as set out in the London Plan Density Matrix and 
some coming forward at higher densities.  
 
The local suburban character of much of the Borough is highly valued.  
Following workshops and consultation as part of developing the issues for the 
Core Strategy and now the Local Plan, a character assessment was 
undertaken and has been used to inform the issues document.   

                                                 
5 London Borough of Bromley Annual Monitoring Report 2010-2011 

6 London Plan Policy 7.16 and Chapter 9 of the NPPF
 

Page 31



Living In Bromley 
18 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 6  
Protection of residential gardens  

 
While the use of previously developed land is encouraged, open land in built 
up areas, including private residential gardens is not considered to be 
previously developed.  Inappropriate development of residential gardens 
should be resisted where development would cause harm to the local area.   
 
Many residential areas within the Borough are characterised by spacious rear 
gardens and well separated buildings.  The supporting paragraphs to London 
Plan Policy 3.5 recognise the important role that gardens play.  They 
acknowledge that pressure for new housing development means that gardens 
can be threatened by inappropriate development and their loss can cause 
significant local concern.  The London Plan supports the presumption against 
development on back gardens where it can be justified. This is further 
supported by the NPPF which states that Local Planning Authorities should 
consider the case for setting out policies to resist inappropriate development 
of residential gardens for example where it would cause harm to the local 
area. The Mayor’s Housing SPG (November 2012) sets out the importance of 
gardens which include defining local context and character; providing safe, 
secure and sustainable environments and play space; supporting biodiversity, 
protecting London’s trees, green corridors and networks; abating flood risk 
and mitigating the effects of climate change including the heat island effect; 
and enhancing the distinct character of suburban London.  
 
Having regard to the above, the Council will resist the loss of private 
residential gardens on the basis of the contribution that they make to the 
character and appearance of the area (including the contribution made by 
trees and other vegetation on the site), their contribution to mitigating climate 
change and reducing flood risk, and their ecological value in terms of 
providing habitats for wildlife.  Proposals which undermine the character of the 
Borough or which would be likely to result in detriment to existing residential 
amenities will be resisted.   
 

QUESTION SET 2  
 

PREFERRED OPTION 7  
Renewal of existing residential areas.  

 
Policy 3.14 of the London Plan states that loss of housing should be resisted 
and boroughs should promote the efficient use of the existing stock by 
reducing the number of vacant, unfit and unsatisfactory dwellings.  In 
particular, boroughs should prioritise long term empty homes, derelict empty 
homes and listed buildings to be brought back into residential use.  
 

Page 32



Living In Bromley 
19 

Building a Better Bromley 2020 Vision states that we will foster initiatives 
designed to bring more empty properties back into use. 
 
The London Plan (Policy 2.14 and Map 2.5) also identifies Areas of 
Regeneration within the Borough that could benefit from regeneration which 
could include additional housing provision or the improvement of existing 
homes.  Bromley’s approach to these areas is considered later in this chapter 
(see Options relating to Renewal Areas).    
 
The renewal of existing residential areas should respect local character and 
enhance and improve the existing area.   
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 

OPTION 8  
Intensification of existing areas at a higher density.  

 
As outlined earlier this is not considered sustainable in the long term as it will 
have a detrimental impact on the valued character of the Borough.  
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
Quality / Design  
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 9   
The design of all new housing development should be of a high 
standard and layout and enhance the quality of local places whilst 
respecting local character, context and density.   

 
In accordance with the London Plan Policy 3.5, housing developments should 
be of the highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context 
and to the wider environment.  The design of all new housing developments 
should enhance the quality of local places taking into account: physical 
context, local character, density, tenure, and land use mix.  All new 
development should make a positive contribution to the area in which it is 
located.  Good urban design including space around and between buildings 
and their landscaping contributes to the quality of the built environment.  In 
major development proposals a design statement should be submitted to the 
Council to include information of the key design principles, density, mix and 
distribution of uses as well as provide sufficient illustrations to demonstrate 
the relationship of the development to its wider surroundings.   
 
The Borough is required to incorporate minimum space standards that 
generally conform with the minimum space standards as set out in the London 
Plan7.  This may result in some developments coming forward at densities 

                                                 
7
 London Plan Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 

Page 33



Living In Bromley 
20 

lower than that set out in the London Plan Density Matrix and some coming 
forward at higher densities i.e. optimising housing potential in accordance with 
LP Policy 3.4.  
 
Regard will be had to the London Plan Density Matrix but the character 
assessment work already undertaken demonstrates that these can’t be strictly 
applied in all situations without harm to the valued local character. 
 

OPTION 10 
All new developments to be built in accordance with the London Plan 
density Matrix. 

 
This is not a preferred option to be applied across the whole Borough as it is 
considered it will have a detrimental impact on the character of the Borough.  
The density Matrix is intended to be used as a guide and there may be 
convincing environmental or local character arguments for an alternative 
density.  
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 11   
Where housing is part of a mixed use development, the Council will 
have regard to the amenity and character of the existing area, the 
existing mix of houses and identified need, and the provision of amenity 
space.    

 
The London Plan encourages mixed use developments8.  The incorporation of 
an element of mixed use into development schemes for business and 
commercial uses can add variety and diversity of land uses, complementing 
their surroundings and contributing to sustainable development objectives.   
Mixed use developments can also assist in bringing forward facilities and 
services for communities.   
 
The character and amenity of existing residential areas should not be 
undermined by inappropriate new uses. The residential amenity of the new 
residential development proposed should not be compromised and the 
Council will seek to ensure that an appropriate level of amenity space is 
provided.    
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
Housing Type and Choice 
 
The London Plan states that Londoners should have a genuine choice of 
homes that they can afford and which meet their requirements for different 
sizes and types of dwellings in the highest quality environments.   New 

                                                 
8
 London Plan Policies 2.7, 2.15, 2.16, 3.3, 4.2, 4.3 

Page 34



Living In Bromley 
21 

developments should offer a range of housing choice in terms of mix of 
housing sizes and types.   
 
Boroughs are required to set an overall target in the LDF for the amount of 
affordable housing provision needed over the plan period in their areas and 
separate targets for social rented/affordable rented and intermediate housing.  
Boroughs should also reflect the strategic priority accorded to the provision of 
affordable housing.  The London Plan states that affordable housing targets 
may be expressed in absolute or percentage terms.  
 
 
Affordable Housing  
 
A draft update to the Affordable Housing Viability Assessment (AHVA) has 
been carried out to bring up to date some aspects of the Assessment carried 
out in 2010.  The Update has assessed a range of scheme scenarios in 
relation to density, affordable housing tenure, proportion of affordable housing 
and planning obligation costs across the Borough.  The results relate to 
residual land valuations after the above scenarios have been factored in. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 12   
35% target for affordable housing on sites of 0.4ha or larger or capable 
of providing 10 units or more.  In negotiating the amount of affordable 
housing on each site, the Council will seek 35% provision, with 60% 
affordable/social rented housing and 40% intermediate provision unless 
it can be demonstrated that a lower level should be sought or that the 
60:40 split would not create mixed and balanced communities.   

 
A single Borough-wide approach to affordable housing provision is still seen 
to be a suitable option as opposed to different percentage targets in different 
locations in the Borough.   
 
The Update has shown that a percentage target of 35% on site affordable 
housing is still viable.  Importantly, there would still need to be flexibility within 
any detailed policy wordings to enable the percentage of affordable housing 
on site to be negotiated where necessary.   
 
Whilst the target relates to the percentage of habitable rooms on site, when 
assessing applications, the Council will consider the overall contribution in 
terms of floor space and unit numbers to ensure that a proportionate 
percentage of overall development is affordable housing.  Further information 
on this will be contained in the forthcoming development management 
policies.  
 
The target is not set as a maximum level and there may be some sites that 
come forward with more than 35% affordable housing, particularly on smaller 
sites.   
 
The tenure mix of 60% affordable rented/social rented and 40% intermediate 
housing is in accordance with LP Policy 3.11 and the Mayor’s Housing SPG.  

Page 35



Living In Bromley 
22 

Boroughs are recommended to include affordable rent alongside social rent, 
for example where an existing policy specifies 70% social rented and 30% 
intermediate housing for affordable purposes, the affordable rented housing 
should be within the 70%.  The new Affordable Homes Programme (2011-15) 
is targeted towards Affordable Rented Housing. 
 
Affordable housing will normally be required on site.  In exceptional 
circumstances, a payment in-lieu of affordable housing on site or provision in 
another location will be acceptable where it can be demonstrated that: 
 

• it would be impractical to transfer the affordable housing to a registered 
provider (RP); or 

• on site provision of affordable units would reduce the viability of the 
development to such a degree that it would not proceed; or 

• on site provision of affordable units would not create mixed and balanced 
communities and there would be benefit in providing such units at another 
location. 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 13 
50% target for large sites. 

 
A target of 50% affordable housing was assessed in the AHVA (2010) 
because the London Plan (2008) included LP Policy 3A.9 Affordable Housing 
Targets that specified a strategic London-wide target of 50% affordable 
housing provision.  The AHVA advised that a 50% target would be over 
ambitious due to; the existence of low value areas, the likelihood that planning 
obligations would increase, the need to stimulate and maintain all housing 
supply and that a target up to 40% would be more realistic and still 
challenging. 
 
As set out above the AHVA Update states that the viability of sites begins to 
reduce when 40% affordable housing, Mayoral CIL and potential future 
Borough CIL levels are factored in, especially in lower value areas.  
Consequently a 50% target would not be consistently achievable on large 
sites.  
 

OPTION 14  
40% Borough-wide target on large sites.   

 
The evidence from the AHVA suggests that this may be an option for the 
Council to consider.  The Update also specifies that a target of 40% could be 
considered.   
 
An emphasis is placed upon the need for flexibility and the potential need to 
negotiate in some lower value instances or on difficult sites.  It is evident that 
in lower value areas poorer viability results may occur when combined with 
Mayoral CIL and any future Borough specific CIL requirement.  It is more 
likely that in these instances 40% affordable housing could be accommodated 

Page 36



Living In Bromley 
23 

on uncomplicated greenfield sites (i.e. without major abnormal costs).  
Medium to higher value sites are seen to be more likely to be able to bear 
greater costs and obligations, including 40% affordable housing.  
 
 

OPTION 15   
Numerical target. 

 
It would be difficult to forecast a numerical target for the Borough as 
affordable housing is only being sought on larger sites (10 units and above). 
The lack of a percentage target applied to individual sites would create 
landowner and developer uncertainty on the contribution expected - 
potentially increasing hope value, and stalling the market. 
 
 

OPTION 16  
Increase affordable housing target and therefore provision in some 
areas and decrease in others. 

 
This would result in an over complicated policy option.  The AHVA evidence 
demonstrates that it may be difficult to set a different target level for different 
areas due to the varying land values within those areas.    
 
The Update considered the viability of seeking financial contributions on 
smaller sites.   
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 

NEW OPTION 17  
Financial contributions to be sought on sites providing 1-9 dwellings. 

 
The AHVA and the Update included reviewing the potential to bring all new 
housing sites providing additional net dwellings in to the overall policy scope.  
This is compared to the existing position where affordable housing is required 
on sites providing 10 or more dwellings.  The approach taken in the 
Assessment and the Update is to consider if financial contributions from 
smaller sites (i.e. 1-9 units) could be viable.   
 
The Update sets out that it is often impractical to expect on-site affordable 
housing to be integrated into the smallest sites especially sites of fewer than 5 
dwellings.  It may be possible in some instances but problematic in others 
owing to design, affordability and management issues.   
 
The evidence set out in the Assessment and the Update suggests that it could 
be viable in some instances to introduce financial contributions for smaller 
sites.  The figures that could be considered are 10% of the number of 
affordable housing units for sites of 1-4 units and between 10-20% for sites of 
5-9 units. (for example for a 2 unit scheme, 10% affordable housing equates 
to 0.1 units). 
 

Page 37



Living In Bromley 
24 

The introduction of financial contributions on smaller sites is not a preferred 
option due to the complexity and uncertainty and potentially negative impact 
on bringing sites forward. 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 18    
Apply the principles of affordable housing policy to care home 
developments (Class C2)   

 
New Extra Care Housing developments are treated as residential dwellings 
(C3) and therefore subject to a S106 requirement for an affordable element or 
financial contributions.  The London Plan (para 3.51) also supports the 
principles of affordable housing to the range of developments including Care 
Homes (Class C2).  These principles include taking account of site 
circumstances, development viability, needs assessments and circumstances 
where “off-site “ contributions, contingent obligations or other phasing 
measures may be appropriate. 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 19   
Development should provide a mix of housing types that reflects local 
circumstances and contributes to sustainable communities.   

 
Encouraging a mix of housing types and sizes will help address local 
shortages across different tenures and will assist in providing sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed communities in accordance with the NPPF (para 50)  and 
London Plan Policies. Importantly, there are key client groups that the Council 
has statutory duties towards (e.g. the homeless, care leavers and those owed 
a duty under the Children’s Act for example). 
 
Current evidence demonstrates that there is an existing need for family 
homes across all tenures (in particular 3 and 4 bed units).  We recognise that 
this need will change throughout the life of the plan and therefore this 
evidence will be kept under review and updated accordingly. Development 
proposals coming forward should have regard to the most up to date 
evidence.    
 
The London Plan requires that all new housing to be built to Lifetime Homes 
standards enabling people to live in their own homes if their mobility is 
impaired.  There will however be those who wish to move to alternative 
accommodation for a range of reasons.  Some feel isolated and wish to move 
out of choice, whilst others require alternative accommodation out of 
necessity.  
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
 

Page 38



Living In Bromley 
25 

 
Specialist Accommodation 
 
The London Plan requires ten percent of new housing is designed to be 
wheelchair accessible.  This is generally provided as affordable housing, as is 
the majority of supported housing for other vulnerable groups including, 
people with mental health problems, people with learning disabilities, 
homeless people, and vulnerable young adults from 16 years.  The nature of 
this supported housing (accommodation and support service) is provided in a 
variety of forms, from hostel accommodation with shared facilities, to self 
contained units with co-ordinated and holistic support plans.   
 
Whilst the majority of older people (80%) live in private accommodation, only 
30% of specialist older persons housing is available in private tenures (private 
rented or owner-occupation).This highlights an imbalance in the tenure mix 
available to older person households. (“A better fit? Creating housing choices 
for an ageing population” 2012). 
 
The London Plan notes the scale of the projected growth in London’s older 
population.   Bromley has the largest older population in London with 48,800 
people aged 65+ years in 2011, expected to increase to 52,350 by 2014 
(source: GLA Round 2010 Population Projections SHLAA). 

The body of evidence illustrates the scale of the challenge presented by an 
ageing population and the need to increase accommodation choices.   This 
challenge will need to be addressed over the plan period with an increasing 
pressure on the provision of appropriate housing for older people.   
 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation support 
the widening of options and choices for older people who may be seeking 
private assisted or extra care.  The benefits to the housing market of 
properties released back into the housing market as a result of downsizing 
were also highlighted. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 20 
Work with partners to encourage the provision of specialist and 
supported accommodation, to meet the particular needs of the 
borough’s residents, including wheelchair users, vulnerable and older 
people.   

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
QUESTION SET 4  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



Living In Bromley 
26 

Renewal Areas  
 
Introduction and Background 

 

“Planning must be a creative exercise in finding ways to enhance and 

improve the places in which we live our lives” (National Planning Policy 

Framework) 

 

Under the London Plan, Boroughs need to identify areas for regeneration 

and set out integrated spatial policies that bring together regeneration, 

development and transport proposals with improvements in learning and 

skills, health, safety, access, employment, environment and housing, in 

local plans and strategies.   

 

Such an integrated approach to these areas will assist in delivering the 

2030 Vision for the Borough as set out at the beginning of this document.  

In particular it will contribute to meeting the objectives related to homes, 

business, employment and the local economy and health and wellbeing.  

 

Working with the Council and strategic and local partners the Mayor will 

prioritise investment for “neighbourhood based action” in these areas (LP 

Policy 2.14).   

 
Local issues and evidence 
 
The London Plan Map 2.5 (copied below) identifies 6 areas in Bromley, as 
Regeneration Areas.  The areas include: 

o Betts Park area  
o Maple Rd, Franklin Rd area 
o Turpington Lane area 
o Cotmandene Crescent, Whippendell Way area 
o Blacksmith Lane, Wooten Green, Rookery Gardens area 
o Quilter Road, Ramsden area 

 
The London Plan (July 2011) Map 2.5 Regeneration Areas 
 

 

Page 40



Living In Bromley 
27 

The London Plan highlights these areas based on information about  

• income,  

• employment,  

• health deprivation and disability,  

• education, skills and training,  

• barriers to housing, 

• crime. 
 
Generally Bromley Borough scores favourably, however the pattern of scores, 
set out in detail in the Bromley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
2011 is varied within the Borough, with concentrations of poorer scores to the 
north west of the Borough in Crystal Palace, Penge and Anerley, to the north 
in Mottingham, and to the east in the Cray Valley, as well as centrally through 
Downham and Bromley Common.   
 
The areas identified in the London Plan map are a snapshot highlighting 
tightly drawn artificial electoral districts.  They do not take account of changes 
taking place over time, the picture in the wider area or other areas where the 
Council and partner organisations are already seeking to address issues of 
renewal, notably other parts of Crystal Palace, Penge & Anerley, the Cray 
Valley and Mottingham. 
  
Bromley’s Core Strategy Issues Document (2011) described the distinct 
characteristics of the different “Places” within Bromley.  The “Places” which 
contain the highlighted areas for regeneration (London Plan map 2.5) are also 
likely to be subject to the greatest change. 
 
Map of Bromley’s Places 

 

Page 41



Living In Bromley 
28 

 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
As required by the London Plan the Local Plan will define areas for renewal 
and develop integrated spatial policies to address the Bromley Local Plan 
vision.  
 
Identifying Areas for Renewal  
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 21 
Define “Areas for Renewal” rather than “Areas for Regeneration” 

 
The Council proposes to define “Areas for Renewal” based on particular 
“Places”, as understood through the Core Strategy Issues Document (2011). 
This approach acknowledges that areas which would benefit from renewal 
opportunities and Mayoral investment do not have such sharply defined 
borders.  An approach based on “Places” enables the Council to consider 
proposals in the wider vicinity to support renewal, address issues highlighted 
through Bromley’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and deliver the 
vision of this Plan. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 22 
 Identifying the Areas for Renewal based on “Places” which include the 
areas highlighted in the London Plan (grouped where adjacent.)   

 
Areas for Renewal based on “Places” which include the areas highlighted in 
the London Plan, namely:  
- “Crystal Palace Penge & Anerley 
- “Bromley Common”  
- “Cray Valley, St Paul’s Cray & St Mary Cray” 
- “Orpington, Goddington & Knoll” 
 
The two “Places” described as “Cray Valley, St Paul’s Cray & St Mary Cray” 
and “Orpington, Goddington & Knoll” lie adjacent to one another and it is 
therefore sensible to address renewal issues along a single Area for Renewal 
to be referred to as “The Cray Valley”. 
 

Page 42



Living In Bromley 
29 

 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

NEW OPTION 23  
Identifying the precise areas highlighted in The London Plan as of 
“Areas for Regeneration”. 

 
The individual Lower Super Output Areas do not provide a logical basis for 
renewal strategies seeking to improve the environmental, economic and 
social sustainability of the areas, and therefore a tight definition of areas 
based on the artificial electoral districts is not considered appropriate.  
 

OPTION 24 
Areas for Renewal based on individual “Places” rather than grouped as 
in Option 22. 

 
Two Areas for Renewal lie adjacent:  
- “Cray Valley, St Paul’s Cray & St Mary Cray” 
- “Orpington, Goddington & Knoll” 
 
Considering adjacent Areas for Renewal separately would fail to maximise 
opportunities for synergies across adjacent areas.   

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
 
 

Page 43



Living In Bromley 
30 

 
Duty to Co-operate 
 
The Localism Act places a duty on local authorities to work together on 
planning issues.  The NPPF expands on this, indicating that Local Plans 
should be based on co-operation with neighbouring authorities, public, 
voluntary and private sector organisations.   
 

PREFERRED OPTION 25 
Additionally, identify as Renewal Areas those Bromley Places abutting 
“Areas for Regeneration” in neighbouring boroughs, where estates 
cross borough boundaries.  

 
In addition to the Areas for Renewal identified in Option 22, identify Bromley 
Places where estates cut across borough boundaries into Regeneration Areas 
in adjacent boroughs:  
  
(i)  “Ravensbourne, Plaistow & Sundridge” (adjacent to Downham, 

Lewisham).  Several Bromley roads form part of the interwar 
“Downham Estate”, the Lewisham element of which is defined as an  
“Area of Local Regeneration” within the Lewisham Core Strategy. 

(ii)  “Mottingham” (adjacent to Grove Park, Lewisham, adjacent to Eltham, 
Greenwich). Several estate roads straddle the borough boundaries and 
adjacent estates share similar characteristics to the Mottingham Estate. 

 

 
 

Page 44



Living In Bromley 
31 

PREFERRED OPTION 26 
The Council will work with adjacent authorities and local stakeholders in 
order to plan strategically across administrative boundaries and to meet 
the duty to co-operate.  

 
To address cross borough issues along the length of the Boroughs’ boundary, 
considering in particular areas of pressure on social infrastructure, close to 
our shared borders with neighbouring boroughs, (notably along the urban & 
suburban boundaries to the north and west of the Borough). 
 
With regard to the Areas for Renewal as identified in preferred Option 22 and 
Option 25, this will involve working: 

(i) chiefly with Croydon, but also with reference to Southwark, 
Lambeth and Lewisham in respect of “Crystal Palace, Penge 
and Anerley” 

(ii) with Lewisham and Greenwich in respect of “Mottingham” 
(iii) with Lewisham in respect of “Ravensbourne, Plaistow & 

Sundridge” and, 
(iv) with Bexley in respect of “The Cray Valley” 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 27  
Additionally, identify all Bromley “Places” which adjoin London Plan 
Regeneration Areas in neighbouring boroughs. 

 
In addition to the “Places” identified in Option 22, identify as “Areas for 
Renewal” all “Places” with abutting regeneration areas in adjacent boroughs 
(excluding open space boundaries), namely: 

(v) “Clock House, Elmers End & Eden Park”  
(vi) “Beckenham, Copers Cope & Kangley Bridge”  
(vii) “Ravensbourne, Plaistow & Sundridge 
(viii) “Mottingham”  
(ix) “Chislehurst”  

 
Of the relevant “Places” only two (identified in Option 25) have a clear cross 
Borough relationship, in respect of renewal issues.  It is not therefore 
considered necessary to designate the other three “Places”. 
 

QUESTION SET 3 

Page 45



Living In Bromley 
32 

Delivery 
 
As required by the London Plan (LP Policy 2.14) the Council will set out 
integrated spatial policies and work with strategic and local partners to co-
ordinate plans for improvement in Areas of Renewal, including learning and 
skills, health, safety, access, employment, environment and housing. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 28 
Where development opportunities exist or arise within Renewal Areas, 
or within such proximity that they could significantly impact on the 
Areas, the Council will seek to maximise their contribution to social, 
economic and environmental improvements, and will consider preparing 
development briefs to achieve this end. 

 
Locally sensitive proposals involving economic, education and training, 
housing, social, transport, security, heritage, development and environmental 
measures can support improvements in Renewal Areas.  Renewal 
opportunities should involve active engagement with residents, businesses 
and other appropriate stakeholders, taking account of aspirations for the 
specific area concerned and the wider Renewal Area. 
 
The London Plan indicates that in its identified areas for regeneration the 
Mayor will work with strategic and local partners to co-ordinate their sustained 
renewal by prioritising them for neighbourhood-based action and investment. 
 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

QUESTION SET 4  

Page 46



Living In Bromley 
33 

Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
 
 

Introduction and Background 

 
Local planning authorities have a statutory duty to assess accommodation 
needs of travellers under the Housing Act and for the preparation of Local 
Plans. The options are in accordance with guidance, address local needs as 
indicated in the evidence paper, and will assist the Council with swift and 
effective action against future unauthorised developments.  
 
Gypsies and Travellers have traditionally stopped in Bromley whilst working in 
and travelling through the Borough. The 1960 Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act prohibited caravans from common land.  With fewer 
stopping places much of the Gypsy and Traveller population became settled 
and placed in social housing stock.  St Mary Cray has one of the largest 
settled housed Gypsy populations in the UK.  Of those who retain a nomadic 
lifestyle the majority are Romany Gypsy families, based chiefly on two Council 
sites in the Cray Valley.  There are also a number of Irish Travellers on 
temporary sites across the Borough. 
 
There is also a community of Travelling Showpeople in Layhams Road.  Show 
people are a community of self employed business people who travel the 
country, often with their families, holding fairs.  They do not in general share 
the same culture or traditions as Gypsies and Travellers  
 
The Government Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, relates to “Gypsies and 
Travellers” and “Travelling Showpeople” under the umbrella of “travellers”.  It 
requires local planning authorities to make their own assessment of need for 
the purposes of planning, demonstrating an up-to-date five year supply. 
 
Map 1 (below) pinpoints Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
locations, and the evidence base document sets out their current planning 
status.  All lie within the Green Belt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



Living In Bromley 
34 

Map1 

 
 
Pressure for Sites 
 
All the existing 36 Local Authority pitches in the Borough are currently 
occupied.  A private site with permission is not available to Gypsies and 
travellers.  A second private site is currently the subject of an appeal to 
increase the number of pitches. 
 
There are currently 16 long established pitches across the Borough without 
permanent permission.   13 pitches have temporary permissions due to expire 
over the next 2 to 3 years, whilst another site, which has been occupied for 
over 17 years, has an expired temporary permission for 3 pitches.   
 
Additionally there are 10 outstanding applications for a pitch on the waiting list 
for the Council’s sites some relating to families currently housed in bricks and 
mortar, others relating to families currently on the Councils pitches and 
another from a family on the south coast. 
 
The Travelling Showpeople’s Guild have confirmed that the recent permission 
satisfies their needs until 2017. 
 
In addition to establishing the appropriate level of pitch provision the guidance 
also requires Local Plans to address effective enforcement of planning policy. 
 
Speeding up the enforcement process helps to keep costs down. 
Enforcement action will be quicker and more effective, and a wider range of 
powers can be used, where appropriate authorised provision is made for 
Gypsies and Travellers within the area. (“Guide to effective use of 
enforcement powers” ODPM 2006). 
 

Page 48



Living In Bromley 
35 

Enforcement against unauthorised developments, where the land is within the 
ownership of the Gypsies and Travellers, where the intention is to set up a 
permanent family are addressed through the planning process. 
 
Unauthorised Encampments 
 
Aside from authorised and unauthorised site developments considered above 
Bromley has recently been the subject of short term unauthorised 
encampments.  There have generally been approximately 3 – 5 encampments 
per year, although this year (2012) there have been 8 this summer, where, 
Gypsies and Travellers arrive on land not within their ownership, without the 
intention to set up a permanent base.  These incursions, which can be the 
same family group moving locations, tend to take place in open public spaces 
(e.g. park land or car parks) or on private land. 
 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
In order to facilitate effective enforcement and in response to the latest 
guidance  “Planning policy for traveller sites” (PPTS) the Council needs to 
consider options to meet current need of up to 25 pitches and “demonstrate 
an up to date 5 year supply of deliverable sites”.   
 
All sites in Bromley which have either current or historic use as traveller sites 
lie within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  Whilst the PPTS makes the point that 
such sites are inappropriate, the studies commissioned by Bromley have 
pointed out the difficulty in practice of finding sites other than within the Green 
Belt. 
 
The PPTS advises that local planning authority can, through the plan making 
process, make exceptional limited alteration to the defined Green Belt 
boundary to accommodate a site inset within the Green Belt, to meet a 
specific, identified need for a traveller site.  Subject to the outcome of the 
consultation alterations will therefore be made in respect of all Green Belt 
sites with permanent permission for use by travellers and sites which are 
allocated as a result of this process.  
 
Local Authority Sites 
 
A previous permission for 3 pitches on the Star Lane site lapsed in 2009.    
There is no additional capacity to create additional pitches at Old Maidstone 
Road. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 29 
Further expansion of existing Local Authority sites  

 
Seek Government funding to create 3 pitches on the Star Lane site (see Map 
2).  There is no further scope for expansion at the Old Maidstone Road site.  
 
 
 

Page 49



Living In Bromley 
36 

Existing Private Sites without permanent permissions 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 30 
Allocate certain existing sites without permanent permissions as 
Traveller sites. 

 
As highlighted above, and identified in the evidence base there are currently 
16 long established pitches across the Borough without permanent planning 
permission. 
 
(i) Saltbox Hill.  (see Map 3)  
This single site, known as “Meadow View”, contains 3 pitches for which 
temporary permission has now lapsed.  It is occupied by one family who have 
been on the site for some 17 years.  Their children and now their 
grandchildren are schooled locally they are an established part of the local 
community in Biggin Hill. 
 
(ii) Layhams Road.  (see Map 3)  
There are temporary permissions for 10 pitches 4 sites close to the boundary 
with Croydon, which will lapse in 2014 and 2015.  The families are established 
in the area with the children schooled locally, just across the Borough 
boundary in New Addington which provides good accessibility to other local 
shops and services. 

• Millies View 

• St Josephs Place (Dixon’s Holdings) 

• Mead Green 

• Delany & Cash   
 
(iii) Hockenden Lane. (see Map 2)  
There are temporary permissions for 3 pitches on 2 sites.  The temporary 
permissions were granted on appeal on these sites in 2007 and again in 
2009. Permissions on both sites expire in 2015 by which time the occupants 
will have lived on the sites for around 10 years making use of services in 
nearby Swanley. 

• Adjacent to Vinsons Cottages 

• Trunks Alley   
 
Additionally there are two existing sites which benefit from established use 
certificates as “caravan sites” rather than “traveller sites”.  Nonetheless they 
can assist the Council in addressing future needs over the lifetime of the plan, 
without the need to seek new Green Belt sites. 
 
(iv)  Chalk Pit, Old Maidstone Road 
 
Since 1960 the site known as “Chalk Pit” has had numerous temporary 
permissions (prior to the 1968 Caravan Act when the Gypsy status of 
applicants became a material consideration). The permissions were described 
as “for the siting of residential caravans”.  An Established Use Certificate for 
25 caravans was finally granted in 2003.  Allocation of this private site would 

Page 50



Living In Bromley 
37 

not affect the existing permission nor guarantee that the site would 
immediately come forward as traveller pitches, however, its designation as a 
Traveller Site offer potential to negotiate such a use, if necessary, over the 
period of the plan. (Recent contact indicates that the caravans on the site are 
currently unoccupied). 
 
(v)  King Henry’s Drive 
 
The site was purchased by a family of travelling Showmen in the mid 1960’s.  
The Council considered the use of the site in 1998 and 2001 and resolved to 
take no further action against the continued use of this land as showmens’ 
permanent accommodation.  In 2003 the Council granted a certificate of 
lawfulness for existing use as “a permanent residential caravan site for 13 
caravans” for the northern part of the site.  It is however clear from aerial 
photographs dating back to 1998 that the southern part of the site (which 
contains vehicles and equipment) has been in unauthorised use since at least 
that date. 
 
 
The evidence base and previous studies undertaken for the Council support 
the need for permanent pitches to address the long term need on existing 
temporary sites and the future need for additional pitches over the plan 
period. 
 
Map 2 

 
 
 
 

Page 51



Living In Bromley 
38 

 
 
 
Map 3 

 
 
All the existing sites, with or without permission lie within the Metropolitan 
Green Belt.  Whilst the latest guidance (PPTS) makes the point that such sites 
are inappropriate, previous studies commissioned by Bromley have indicated 
the difficulty in practice of finding sites other than within the Green Belt.   
 
The London Plan affords Metropolitan Open Land the same protection as 
Green Belt and Urban Open Space is designated for its local importance.  
Given the London Plan emphasis on optimising the use of land and the 
pressure for housing, land that becomes available within the urban and 
suburban environment has the potential to make an important contribution to 
meeting the Boroughs and London’s housing targets.  They are therefore 
included within the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment.  The 
Mayor has just put out a call for sites. 
 
The PPTS aims to reduce tensions between settled and traveller communities 
in plan-making and to enable provision of suitable accommodation from which 
travellers can access education, health, welfare and employment 
infrastructure. 
 
On this basis the Council has no alternative other than to consider meeting 
traveller needs in Green Belt locations and treat them as indicated in the 
PPTS as sites inset within the Green Belt for traveller use only. 
 

Page 52



Living In Bromley 
39 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

NEW OPTION 31 
Seek additional sites  

 
Subject to defining traveller sites on the basis of Options 29 and 30, above the 
Council does not propose further Green Belt site allocations. 
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 32 
Criteria based policy for new Gypsy and Traveller site proposals 

 
The Council will develop a criteria based policy to address future needs and 
consider proposals submitted to the Council 
 
(i) Consider first the potential of existing sites and sites defined through 

this process for use by Travellers, resisting further alterations to the 
Green Belt boundary.   

 
(ii) Consider applications for new sites subject to:  

o the need for additional provision 
o open space policies 
o impact on residential amenity  
o access to services 
o environmental factors, including flood risk 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Sub regional provision – Duty to Co-operate 
 
Working with sub regional partners in respect of transit sites and plots for 
travelling showpeople will ensure that the responsibility for provision is shared 
by authorities, who have a duty to co-operate.   
 
Transit Site  
 
The NPPF requires local authorities to address the needs for transit site 
accommodation.  The provision of transit pitches will assist in addressing the 
issue of unauthorised encampments.   
 

PREFERRED OPTION 33 
To work with sub region to secure a transit site  

 
The NPPF advises that the number of pitches or plots should relate to the 
surrounding population’s size and density.  All boroughs in the sub region, 
and indeed across London, have a lower provision of pitches and plots than 
Bromley.  In line with the guidance in the NPPF the Council will work 

Page 53



Living In Bromley 
40 

collaboratively with neighbouring local planning authorities, with a view to 
securing a transit site elsewhere in the sub region. 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
Travelling Showpeople 
 
The Travelling Showman’s Guild has agreed that the provision recently made 
at the Keston site (see Map2) meets the needs for Travelling Showpeople to 
2017.  Beyond 2017 a further 0.43 plots would be necessary to address the 5 
year supply and hence no further provision is required at this time. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 34 
To work with the sub region to address the 5 year provision for 
Travelling Showpeople 

 
Work with boroughs within the sub region, all of whom have a lower provision 
of Travelling showpeople plots, to address the need for future provision for 
travelling showpeople.   
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 35 
Criteria based Policy for Travelling Showpeople Plots 

 
Dependant upon sub regional negotiations the Council may develop a criteria 
based policy to address future proposals 
 
(i) Consider first the potential for the intensification of the existing sites 
(ii) The Council will resist new sites but consider the expansion of the 

existing sites to accommodate expansion beyond 2017 on the basis of  
o the need for additional provision 
o open space policies 
o impact on residential amenity  
o access to services 
o environmental factors, including flood risk 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
QUESTION SET 4  

 
 

Page 54



Living In Bromley 
41 

A suite of Development Management Policies will be produced to support the 
strategic options  
 
Development Management policies (housing) 
 
Housing design 
Minimum floor space 
Garden size 
Play space 
Lifetime homes 
Wheelchair accessibility  
Secured by design 
Privacy  
Lighting 
Street scene 
Layout 
Space about buildings 
Scale of extensions 
Side space 
Residential amenity 
Resist net loss of older persons accommodation 
Supported housing, location and need 
Code for Sustainable Homes 
House in Multiple Occupation (as defined in the Housing Act 2004) 
 
Development Management policies (renewal areas) 
 

• to bring together regeneration, development and transport proposals 
with improvements in learning and skills, health, safety, access, 
employment, environment and housing (noting the London Plan 
requires no loss of housing) 

• to assess tenure splits in Renewal Areas to ensure a balanced mix of 
housing and deliver sustainable communities. 

• to work with the Mayor and stakeholders to access funding for 
neighbourhood based action.  

• to set criteria to negotiate maximum benefits to the Areas of Renewal 
and address shortfalls  

 
Development Management policies (Travellers sites) 
Criteria based policy for future needs for 

• Gypsies and Travellers and  

• Travelling Showpeople 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



Living In Bromley 
42 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



Supporting Communities 
43 

SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES       
 
Introduction and background 
 

Bromley’s communities are supported by a wide a range of community services 

and facilities. The provision and maintenance of appropriate social infrastructure is 

fundamental to ensuring Bromley has strong and stable local communities.  The 

nature of social infrastructure is varied in type and size, as appropriate to different 

catchments, and for example, includes the following:   

 

• At local community level - GPs and clinics, primary schools and early 
years provision, village halls, churches, libraries, police safer 
neighbourhood teams, public houses and local open spaces, 

• Facilities such as secondary schools and colleges, ambulance & fire 
stations and parks, have wider catchments within the borough  

• The Princess Royal University Hospital (PRU), Bromley College of Further 
and Higher Education and the Churchill Theatre serve Bromley and 
neighbouring boroughs whilst the National Sports Centre and the 
specialist mental health services at the Bethlem (South London and 
Maudsley Trust) are used by people from London, the South East and 
nationally.  

 

The National Planning Policy Framework sets out planning principles, advising that 

Local Plans should deliver sufficient community and cultural facilities and services 

to meet the needs of the local population (such as for sports, recreation and 

places of worship).  Policies should take account of the health status of the 

population, understand barriers to improving health and wellbeing and support 

local strategies to improve health, social and cultural well being for all. 
 
With regard to equality and inclusion the Council is required to comply with the 
Equality Act 2010.  Additionally the London Plan requires boroughs to develop 
policies to ensure physical environment can meet highest standards of accessibility 
and inclusion (Policy 7.2). 
 
Local issues and evidence 
 

Changes in population structure lead to different pressures on community 

infrastructure.  The population in Bromley rose by over 13,500 (approximately 5%) 

during the decade since the 2001.  The most significant increases are observed in 

both the young and the older populations:  

• 0-19yr olds accounted for 24% of the Bromley population in the 2001 Census, 
and with a marked increase in births since 2001, this age group has now 
expanded by around 3,500 and is projected to increase to 26.8% of the 
Boroughs population by 2026.  Additionally, advances in modern medicine 
have resulted in more children with disabilities and complex needs surviving 
at birth and into later life.  

• Bromley has the largest elderly population in London.  The number of older 
people in the borough continues to increase with over 6,000 more people 
over 60years of age recorded in 2011 than in 2011, almost half of the total 

Page 57



Supporting Communities 
44 

borough increase.  Notably the population aged 80 years plus is predicted to 
rise to 5.6% of the Boroughs population by 2021. 

 

The main implications of these demographic changes include pressures on  

• Health facilities    

• Education facilities 

• Community facilities (to support and quality of life) 

• Recreational & cultural facilities (including provision specifically for youth) 
It is also important to note that there are spatial implications of these changes, with 

the pattern of population growth varying between wards. 
 
There is a spatial dimension to the demographic changes, to the historic patterns of 
existing provision and to transport access (notably in some suburban and rural 
locations).   Included amongst the range of spatial issues the Local Plan needs to 
address are: 

• the capacity of social infrastructure to meet the needs of the Borough’s 
increasing population over the plan period, particularly, 

• in areas of planned growth, 

• in “Areas of Renewal” based on the London Plan defined “Areas of 
Regeneration”  (see Living in Bromley section), 

• opportunities to ensure the sufficiency and flexibility of community facilities in 
the “Places” in Bromley, including in particular: 

• town centres and local centres, 

• rural Green Belt villages, (note separate paper on Working in Bromley) 

• the impact of increasing pressures on social infrastructure from demand 
beyond the Borough boundary. 

 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation indicate that 
residents highly value facilities and environments that benefit their local community.  
They recognise the contribution such facilities make to health and wellbeing and 
acknowledge the disparities in health and wellbeing across the Borough.  
 

Strategic policy options 
 
Defining Community Uses 
 
The availability of local community venues across the borough is essential to enable 
locally accessible services and support people’s quality of life, through support 
services, cultural and social activities.   Community facilities often face challenges in 
finding or retaining sites due to the nature of the activities, the impact on residential 
amenity and to financial pressures.   
 

PREFERRED OPTION 35  
To support the quality of life in all Bromley’s neighbourhoods through the 
appropriate provision of a range of social infrastructure including health and 
education provision, cultural, play, recreation and sports facilities, places of 
worship, and provision related to community safety such as police facilities 
and fire stations. 

 

Page 58



Supporting Communities 
45 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 
The London Plan advises that the list above, taken from its Policy 3.16, is not 
intended to be exhaustive and other facilities can be included as social 
infrastructure, including informal recreational facilities.  The NPPF advises that 
planning policies should plan positively for the provision and use of shared space 
and community facilities, promoting opportunities for meetings between members of 
the community.  Not all such places fall within the London Plan definition of “Social 
Infrastructure”, for example the NPPF specifically mentions local shops and public 
houses.  Additionally there may be other local infrastructure, open spaces or 
facilities which are distinctive to Bromley borough or the “Places” within Bromley 
identified in the Core Strategy Issues Document (July 2011). 
 
The Local Plan can therefore develop on the basic London Plan definition of Social 
Infrastructure to take account of the particular character of Bromley and the Places 
within Bromley to ensure it retains its distinctive nature. 

The closure or sale of these places can sometimes damage communities. Under the 
Localism Act, voluntary and community organisations can nominate an asset to be 
included on a list of ‘assets of community value’ that the Council will hold. The 
community will then be given a period of time to prepare and make a bid for the 
asset. 

PREFERRED OPTION 36  
Additionally define types of community facilities identified locally as important 
to the community.  

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Planning for Social Infrastructure 
 
Against the backdrop of increasing demands on community services and facilities 
and the spatial variation of provision, the Council will need to work with agencies 
and providers to ensure a wide range of accessible community, recreational and 
leisure facilities to support well being and enhance quality of life.  The London Plan, 
requires local authorities, to engage with partners and stakeholders, in developing 
their Local Plans, working with local groups and communities to identify their needs, 
maximise equality of access to facilities, support local strategies to improve health 
and wellbeing and plan positively for the provision of sufficient community and 
cultural facilities and services, and enabling their development & modernisation. 
(Policies 3.16 – 3.19) 
 
The Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which will be continually reviewed, will identify 
supporting infrastructure, including schools, open space, community, health and 
leisure services which will assist in creating thriving and sustainable places in 
Bromley over the Local Plan period. 
 

Page 59



Supporting Communities 
46 

The Local Plan seeks to ensure locally accessible shops, services and facilities.  
Locally accessible facilities can be best ensured through a town centre first 
approach for new community use proposals.  Such a strategy will be supported by 
proposed flexible approaches to retail frontages and in turn assist in maintaining and 
improving neighbourhood centres and parades across the borough.  It is however 
acknowledged that for some facilities and services a more local geographical spread 
is desirable to support appropriate provision.  In such circumstances locations 
additional to site in area identified as priority locations would be appropriate. 
 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation highlighted the 
importance of accessible facilities.  In particular responses proposed encouraging 
new facilities in accessible locations and the flexible, enhanced and efficient use of 
existing community facilities.  Responses stressed the need for greater social 
integration and specific reference was made to the need for facilities of young 
people and places of worship. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 37  
Develop a “Town Centre First” sequential test approach for new community 
uses to prioritise: 
- Town Centres / Village centres, 
- existing community sites (hub creation), 
- as part of major mixed use developments where no appropriate town centre 
location available, 
- relocations to more accessible locations 

 
Existing community uses are scattered throughout the borough.  The mixed 
community use of existing buildings can enhance their long term sustainability and 
supporting uses viability financially marginal uses and new community buildings to 
be designed flexibly for multiple use. Where facilities are re-provided in more 
appropriate buildings the challenge is to find an appropriate use for the redundant 
infrastructure which may include historic public buildings which may be listed or lie 
within conservation areas. 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 38  
Support for “community hubs”, providing a range of community 
infrastructure. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Education 
 
Context  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework advises that local authorities should “give 
great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools”.  The Academies Act 
(2010) has changed the landscape of education provision.  Academies are publically 
funded independent schools which are free from local authority and national 

Page 60



Supporting Communities 
47 

government control.  The Act also encourages the establishment of new Free 
Schools, which are all-ability state funded schools set up in response to parental 
demand.  
 
The London Plan highlights Local authorities’ strategic role in taking a proactive, 
positive and collaborative approach to development that will widen choice in 
education, promoting a good supply of strong schools and encouraging the 
development of Academies and Free Schools.  Whilst the Academies Act widens 
the scope of providers, Local Authorities are still be required to fulfil their statutory 
duty to secure sufficient school places within their areas. This will involve a 
collaborative approach as indicated in the London Plan. 
 
The statutory age for education and training is increasing to 18+ years by 2015 and 
the shape of higher and further education is currently changing with the recent 
merger between Bromley College of Further and Higher Education and Orpington 
College of Further Education.  It is clear from the recent White Paper that the nature 
of Higher Education will continue to evolve over the plan period.  
 
As a result of improvements in healthcare, and specifically maternity care, child 
survival rates are improving nationally.  There has been, and is likely to continue to 
be, increased numbers of children with special educational needs requiring 
educational placements and specialist care.   
 
Local trends 
 
The increases in the birth rate since 2001 impact on services for children & families 
and have led to significant pressures in early years provision and the primary 
education sector.   Secondary school pupil intakes are similarly forecast to increase 
throughout the plan period and are anticipated to become unmanageable by the end 
of the decade. Given current pressures for school places across London, the mayor 
has recently announced plans to set up a dedicated unit "New Schools for London" 
to help secure new sites for schools.  
 
Secondary school catchments often extend beyond the boroughs borders.  
Additionally, information from the Department for Education suggests that, in terms 
of primary places, there will be greater growth in London Boroughs which border 
Bromley, namely Croydon, Lambeth, Southwark, Lewisham, Greenwich and Bexley. 
The Council anticipates that this will further increase pressure in those areas of the 
borough where there is greatest cross borough movement such as Beckenham and 
West Wickham. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Supporting Communities 
48 

 
 
 
 

Bromley Year 7 Forecast and Published Admission Numbers (PAN) Capacity 

 
 
Special educational needs have historically been addressed in part through out-
borough placements; however, proposals are being explored to enable provision in-
borough.  Provision over the plan period for increasing numbers of places will need 
to be addressed through the Local Plan. 
 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation demonstrated 
residents concerns about the need to ensure sufficient school places in both primary 
and secondary sectors and highlighted local pressures.   The Archdiocese of 
Southwark highlighted the currently vacant All Saints secondary school site, which 
lies within the Green Belt, and suggested that it offers potential for residential 
development.  Bromley College indicated it intention to enhance the further and 
higher education it offers from two sites in Orpington Town Centre and Bromley 
Common (Green Belt) and requested supportive planning polices to facilitate 
improvements to their educational offer. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 39  
To work with agencies and providers to ensure the provision of an appropriate 
range of educational facilities to cater for life long learning across the 
spectrum from early years to further and higher education. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Safeguarding education sites would enable the Council to make best use of existing 
education infrastructure resources and would be in line with the London Plan which 
advises “Land already in educational use should be safeguarded and new sites 

Page 62



Supporting Communities 
49 

secured to meet additional demands or changes in provision” (para 3.103) 
Designating “Educational Land” would reflect approaches in neighbouring boroughs. 
 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 40  
Designate sites with education use, including schools, colleges and purpose 
built day nurseries, as “Education Land” and protect them for the period of 
the plan. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Current UDP Policy C7 permits new or extensions to existing educational 
establishments or pre school facilities provided they are located so as to maximise 
access by means of transport other than the car.  In light of the continuing pressure 
on rolls it will be important to ensure this positive approach is maintained and where 
necessary to make additional new provision. 
 
The Council seeks to accommodate children in primary schools in the locality in 
which they live.  Current projections for primary schools show a projected shortfall of 
13 forms of entry by 2017 concentrated in the centre, north and west of the 
Borough. 
   
The Council is currently exploring opportunities for additional provision on existing 
primary school sites to meet this shortfall and a small surplus of places to facilitate 
pupil mobility and parental preference.  Planning beyond 2017 is less certain, being 
dependant upon future births data, there may therefore be a need for additional 
primary schools later in the plan period.  Secondary school pressures can be 
predicted over a longer period as the children progress through the primary sector.   
It is anticipated that an additional secondary school will be required by the end of the 
decade.  The Council will ensure sustainable future provision through a proactive, 
positive and collaborative approach with providers.   
 

PREFERRED OPTION 41  
Assess pressure areas over the plan period and plan positively for proposals 
to expand existing provision and allocate new sites as required. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
The NPPF attaches great importance to the meeting the educational needs of 
existing and new communities. The Council will encourage potential school 
proposers to consider locating schools in areas of the Borough with the greatest 
pupil demand to deliver sustainable education provision. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 42  
Develop a criteria based policy approach to new sites which considers the 
“need” for the proposed provision and other policies of the Local Plan. 

 
 

Page 63



Supporting Communities 
50 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Options for Health & Healthy Environments 
 
Context  
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 changed the framework within which 
healthcare is delivered, with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), GP-led groups 
of doctors commissioning acute, community and mental health services, whilst a 
new National Commissioning Board (NCB) commissioning GP, dental, pharmacy 
and optometry services.  The Act (highlighted in the London Plan draft amendments 
para 3.9) gives local councils an enhanced role in improving public health in their 
area, advising that the implementation of a joint health and wellbeing strategy 
(through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) process) provides an 
opportunity to align strategies and programmes, including informing plan-making 
and development management.   
 
The nature of provision of primary health care services has also evolved over recent 
years whereby a number of secondary health care services traditionally provided in 
hospitals are now being provided at the local level in health centres.  National 
Guidance sets out a drive to bring 50% of outpatient and secondary care activity out 
of hospitals (acute care), including minor surgical procedures and treatments, 
therapies & diagnostic tests, and into community primary care settings. 
 
There is considerable variation in the capacity of GP practices in Bromley, but GPs 
commonly work in smaller practices and with larger list sizes than the national 
average.  More than a third of GP surgeries are not compliant with the Disability 
Discrimination Act, about half of which cannot be adapted to achieve compliance 
 
Local trends 
 
The draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) highlights areas of current pressure and 
proposals for health facility development, namely in Bromley Town Centre, 
Orpington and Penge / Anerley.  The nature of requirements over time will be 
indicated through the strategies of health service providers and the IDP review 
process.  
 
Bromley’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2011 outlines the main issues 
relating to the life expectancy, quality of life and the wellbeing of the population as a 
whole and of people with specific needs.  The Bromley JSNA 2011 concludes that  

“key issues for further action are those which affect a large proportion of the 
population and where the situation appears to be worsening, these are: 

• Diabetes (for which obesity is a key risk factor) 

• High blood pressure (Hypertension) 

• Adult obesity 

• Childhood obesity 

• Anxiety / depression 

• Dementia 

• Support for Carers”. 

Page 64



Supporting Communities 
51 

 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation flagged the 
importance of accessible health facilities, particularly with reference to public 
transport.  The responses also emphasised the impact of the local environment, in 
particular appropriate housing on individual’s health and wellbeing.  Responses 
highlighted the need for new housing development to take account of infrastructure 
provision, including transport, shops, doctor’s surgeries as well as the provision of 
green space, wildlife and recreation areas in order to promote health and well being. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 43  
To enhance the health and wellbeing of residents; working with relevant 
health professionals to deliver good quality, accessible, health facilities to 
meet the needs of the community.  

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Whilst the availability of health infrastructure is an essential response to ill health, 
the immediate and wider environment impact significantly the individuals ability to 
remain healthy and to live lifestyles, for example, encouraging activity through a high 
quality pedestrian environment and public realm; through the encouragement of 
healthy modes of transport, and by ensuring built environments appropriate to 
peoples needs. The JSNA specifically flags the impact of appropriate housing on 
both physical and mental health.   The nature of the  environments in which we live, 
work and relax can therefore have a significant affect on health, notably obesity and 
anxiety / depression, in addition to the more obvious environment health impacts 
such as asthma and pulmonary (lung) diseases. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 44  
To ensure that developments produce environments which support health and 
wellbeing and the impact of environments on health is acknowledged 
throughout the Local Plan, particularly in respect of: 

• Housing 

• Transport 

• Built environment and public realm  

• Open Space  

• Recreation Leisure, Play and Youth 

• Climate Change 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The London Plan (Policy 3.2) advises that Boroughs should integrate health policies 
with planning, transport, housing and environmental policies.  Whilst an overarching 
policy could highlight the impact of the environments on health, from the very local 
(housing conditions), to the global (climate impacts), it is considered important that 
the links should instead be highlighted throughout all the relevant policies of the 
Local Plan.  

 

Option 45  
Develop a single explicit policy relating to producing healthy environments. 

Page 65



Supporting Communities 
52 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
 
Leisure and Recreation, Play and Youth 
 
Context 
 
The landscape in which sport and physical activity is delivered is rapidly changing 
with communities, voluntary clubs and individuals all taking a more prominent 
role.  Particularly in straightened economic circumstances opportunities to support 
existing provision will necessitate working collaboratively with partners and local 
stakeholders to ensure the long term sustainability of sports and recreation facilities.   
 
 
The vast majority of sports and recreational sites have open space designations. 
The NPPF advises that local planning authorities should plan positively to enhance 
the beneficial use of Green Belt, such as providing opportunities for outdoor sport 
and recreation (para 81). 
 
The NPPF clarifies that new buildings in the Green Belt are inappropriate but that 
exceptions to this include the “provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, 
outdoor recreationQ as long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and 
does not conflict with the purposes of including land within it” (para 89)  There has 
been a subtle shift from the former Green Belt guidance which limited such new 
buildings to “essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation” which it 
defined as “small changing rooms or unobtrusive spectator accommodation or small 
stables”.   
 
Local trends 
 
The health and wellbeing of residents in Bromley is supported by a range of sports 
facilities, to which private clubs make a significant contribution.  Pro Active South 
London, a partnership of organisations and individuals, co-ordinating the delivery of 
sport and active recreation across south London with Pro-Active Bromley co-
ordinates and promotes the development of sport and physical activity in the 
Borough aims to increase participation generally and particularly engage young 
people.   
 
There is good provision of parks across the borough however some lack the 
recommended quality of facilities and there are some areas outside the 
recommended 400m catchment for a local park.   
 
The need for increased provision of facilities for children and young people is a 
recurring theme in consultations with the public, both to support the life opportunities 
for children and families and to divert young people from anti-social behaviour.  Pro- 
Active Bromley Strategic Framework 2011–2016 indicates the development of a 
comprehensive facilities strategy Playing Field Strategy.  
 

Page 66



Supporting Communities 
53 

It will be important to ensure that new developments include the provision of amenity 
green space to address the needs of the projected future population.   
 
The responses to the Core Strategy Issues Document consultation 
made an explicit link between health and the natural environment, with Bromley’s 
green infrastructure having multiple functions, in respect of health, leisure and a 
quality public realm.  Responses highlighted the need to enhance the provision of 
quality green spaces and enhance biodiversity to improve community cohesion, 
health and well being of residents. Open space and recreational facilities were 
valued for generating a sense of local identity, supporting leisure activities and 
community participation, particularly amongst young people. 
A range of suggestions were put forward including 

• the need for further youth provision 

• a range of park improvements to enhance usage 

• proposals for larger mixed use recreation developments on designated open 
spaces 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 46  
Encourage the provision of sports and recreation facilities in line with national 
guidance and local strategies, securing enhancement where appropriate 
opportunities arise. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
Leisure facilities are under increasing funding pressure.  The ability of existing 
sports and recreational infrastructure to meet the needs of a growing population and 
to remain sustainable will be dependant upon their ability to work in partnership with 
and attract funding from the private and voluntary sector.  
 
The JSNA notes that numerous studies illustrate the direct benefits of green space 
to both physical and mental health wellbeing.  The presence of green space also 
has indirect benefits, encouraging social contact and integration, provides space for 
physical activity and play and improves air quality.  Small open spaces (below 2ha) 
include informal recreation spaces and green spaces and are an integral part of the 
local area, eg green spaces within estates.  They enhance the appearance of 
residential and other areas and provide opportunities for informal activities close to 
home or work.  The Mayor of London and CABE Space Guide to the Preparation of 
Open Space Strategies (2009) term such spaces, along with pocket parks (approx 
0.4ha)  as “Amenity Green Space”.  In Bromley such spaces are generally 
designated as Urban Open Space. 
 
The Open Space Sport and Recreation Assessment recognises the community 
interaction benefits of small open space with residents identifying this type of open 
space as valuable to the local community, many consultees highlighting the role of 
smaller open spaces in defining the green character of Bromley. 
The study illustrates the need for qualitative enhancements to sites and also 
highlights areas where new provision might be required. It highlighted that the 
quality of provision is significantly better in the west of the Borough than the east 
and that the quality of smaller spaces is much lower than that of larger parks. 
 

Page 67



Supporting Communities 
54 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 47  
To protect valuable smaller open spaces. In addition to resisting the loss of 
Urban Open Spaces (UOS) develop policy to protect smaller open spaces 
where they make a contribution to the local community, and seek new 
provision in areas currently deficient in such spaces, including the 
contribution to children’s informal play and recreation. 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

Option 48  
To determine applications on smaller non designated areas of open space on 
the basis of general design policies. 

 
This approach would not adequately acknowledge the important local contribution 
made by many small open spaces, not only to the physical appearance & sense of 
place, but importantly to the physical and mental health of local residents.  
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
Allotments 
 
Allotment gardens present opportunities for outdoor activity and healthy eating. In 
much of the Borough there are long waiting lists for a plot.  
A call for sites may bring currently unused or underused private open spaces 
forward. The London Plan (Policy 7.22) encourages Land for Food, suggesting that 
as well as protect existing allotments Boroughs should identify other potential 
spaces that could be used for commercial food production or for community 
gardening, including for allotments and orchards. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 49  
To explore the opportunities for allotments and seek to allocate additional 
sites. 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

Option 50  
To maintain the existing provision of allotments but not explore further 
opportunities. 

 
Such an approach would not reflect the London Plan, which encourages boroughs 
to explore opportunities to make better use of open space for food production. 
 
Vacant allotment sites have in the past been rationalised to provide enhanced 
allotment plots and benefits to the local community in terms of open space and 
housing.  However, no option is proposed to release allotment sites for 
developments as this would conflict with London Plan Policy 7.22 which advises that 
existing allotments should be protected.  
 

Page 68



Supporting Communities 
55 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Burial Space 

There are seven cemeteries in Bromley, six of which are owned by the Council. 
Whilst there may be capacity in Biggin Hill and Cray Valley for the next 20 years or 
so elsewhere in the Borough capacity will need to be addressed within the Plan 
period.   

PREFERRED OPTION 51  
To explore the opportunities for Burial Sites and allocate sites. 

 
The use as a cemetery and related facilities “which preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt” are appropriate within the Green Belt and there is therefore potential to 
examine opportunities to address this future need. 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

QUESTION SET 4  
 
 

Development Management Policies 
 
“Supporting Communities” strategic options will be supported by a range of 
development management policies, likely to include the following: 
 

• All new development to integrate and contribute to the creation of vibrant, 
sustainable communities 

• Policy to support the needs of particular groups or communities and resist the 
loss of community facilities without appropriate reprovision (along the lines of 
UDP Policy C1) cross referencing policies related to Areas for Renewal 
(Living in Bromley section). 

• Specific protections for facilities important to local communities, 
a local community / corner shops, 
b pubs, 
c theatre & local arts.  

• Policy regarding sites on the “List of Community Assets” 

• Policy to maximise opportunities for community activities to develop by 
requiring vacant retail units to be marketed for community use before (along 
the lines of UDP Policy S5). 

• Policy encouraging the cultural & leisure use of the public realm. 

• Policy encouraging the provision of health and sports facilities. 

• A criteria based policy seeking to resist the over concentration of hot food 
outlets  

• Policy to require community facilities appropriate to the scale of new 
developments (along the lines of UDP Policy C2 and in line with the NPPF 
para 38),  

Page 69



Supporting Communities 
56 

• Policy seeking to resist the loss of education land and encouraging its 
effective use e.g. dual use encouraged (along the lines of UDP Policy C8). 
New buildings should be designed to minimise the loss of open space 
(subject to other policies of the plan e.g. impact on amenity).  

• Policy encouraging additional public open space in areas of deficiency. 

• Criteria based policy to protect small green spaces which are an integral part 
of the character of the local area, eg green spaces within estates.    

• Policy seeking innovative approaches to greening existing spaces eg tree 
lining, green walls etc and requiring contributions to enhance existing spaces 
where on site provision cannot be made. (cross ref Bromley’s Valued 
Environment and Environmental Challenges)  

• Policy related to “Community Assets” 

• Additional policies in response to Strategic Options. 
  
 
Call for Sites 
 

• Educational sites 

• Allotment sites 

• Burial sites 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



Getting Around 
57 

Getting Around         

 
 
Introduction and background 
 
Bromley’s transport networks are related to the distribution of the population, 
with better access and choice in the more densely populated areas, access to 
public transport is still limited in the rural areas. There is generally good 
access to central London via the rail network, and westwards towards 
Croydon via Tramlink.  
 
 
The main transport pressures in the Borough are: 

• Peak time traffic congestion associated with journeys to work and 
education; 

• Unacceptable overcrowding on rail links into central London during 
peak periods; 

• High car dependency and high mobility amongst much of the 
population; 

• Relatively low public transport accessibility predominately in the south 
(particularly for orbital journeys); including identified need to strengthen 
transport links with employment opportunities at Canary Wharf and in 
the City generally; 

• Social exclusion amongst those without car access or unable to use 
public transport; 

• Low levels of walking and cycling; and 

• External impacts on the local economy (centralisation of shopping and 
services).9 

 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 
 
Local Authorities should actively manage patterns of growth to make the 
fullest possible use of public transport, walking and cycling, and focus 
significant development in locations which are or can be made sustainable10 . 
In line with the NPPF the Council will encourage development where there is 
a high level of accessibility as measured by PTAL level thus promoting 
sustainable transport by encouraging patterns of development that reduce the 
need to travel11. 
 
The Government recognises that different policies and measures will be 
required in different communities and opportunities to maximise sustainable 
transport solutions will vary from urban to rural areas12.  
 

                                                 
9
 Local Implementation Plan Jauary 2012 

10
 NPPF para 17 

11
 Statement of intent- formerly Option 3 DC July 2012 

12
 NPPF para 29 

Page 71



Getting Around 
58 

Transport statements and Transport Assessments are still required for all 
sites that generate significant amount of movements and travel plans are still 
included and required13. 
 
Specific parking standards have been removed with local authorities 
encouraged to consider the accessibility, type, mix, use, availability of public 
transport, levels of car ownership, and the overall need to reduce use of high 
emission vehicles if setting local parking standards 14.  
 
Planning policies should sustain compliance with and contribute towards EU 
limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the 
presence of Air Quality Management Areas and the cumulative impacts on air 
quality from individual sites in local areas. Planning decisions should ensure 
that any new development in Air Quality Management Areas is consistent 
with the local air quality action plan15.  
 
London Plan 2011 and Parking tables 
 
Transport for London (TfL) expect all new developments to be in compliance 
with the maximum parking standards as set out in the adopted London Plan. 
For ease of reference the London Plan Parking tables have been reproduced 
below because they relate to Option 1 later in this paper:- 
 

Designated Blue Badge parking bays recommended in BS 8300:2009 

Building Type Provision from the outset Future provision 

 

number of 
spaces* for 
each employee 
who is a 
disabled 
motorist 

number of 
spaces* for 
visiting 
disabled 
motorists 

number of enlarged standard 
spaces** 

workplaces one space 
5% of the total 
capacity 

a further 5% of the total capacity 

shopping, recreation 
and leisure facilities 

one space  
6% of the total 
capacity  

a further 4% of the total capacity  

railway buildings  one space  
5% of the total 
capacity 

a further 5% of the total capacity 

religious buildings 
and crematoria 

two spaces or 6% whichever is the 
greater.   

a further 4% of the total capacity 

sports facilities determined according to the usage of the sports facility*** 

                                                 
13
 NPPF paras 32, 34, and 36 

14
 NPPF paras 39 and 40 

15
 NPPF para 124 

Page 72



Getting Around 
59 

• Parking spaces designated for use by disabled people should be 2.4m wide by 4.8m long 
with a zone 1.2m wide provided between designated spaces and at the rear outside the 
traffic zone, to enable a disabled driver or passenger to get in or out of a vehicle and 
access the boot safely.  

• Enlarged standard spaces 3.6m wide by 6m long that can be adapted to be parking spaces 
designated for use by disabled people to reflect changes in local population needs and 
allow for flexibility of provision in the future.   

*** Further detailed guidance on parking provision for sports facilities can be found in the Sport 
England publication Accessible Sports Facilities 2010.  

 

 
   Parking for retail  

Maximum standards for retail uses: space per sq m of gross floorspace 

Use PTAL 6 and 5 PTAL 4 to 2 PTAL 1 

Food    

Up to 500 m2 75 50-35 30 

Up to 2500 m2 45-30 30-20 18 

Over 2500 m2 38-25 25-18 15 

Non food 60-40 50-30 30 

Garden Centre 65-45 45-30 25 

Town Centre/ Shopping 
Mall/ Dept Store 

75-50 50-35 30 

Notes: 

Unless for disabled people, no non-operational parking should be provided for locations in PTAL 6 
central. 

Unless for disabled people, no additional parking should be provided for use classes A2-A5 in town 
centre locations. 

10 per cent of all spaces must be for electric vehicles with an additional 10 per cent passive provision for 
electric vehicles in the future. 

 
   Parking for employment uses 

Non-operational maximum standards for employment B1: spaces per sq m of gross floorspace 

Location  

Central London (CAZ) 1000 – 1500 

Inner London 600 – 1000 

Outer London 100 – 600 

Outer London locations identified through a DPD 
where more generous standards should apply (see 
Policy 6.13) 

50 - 100 

Note 

20 per cent of all spaces must be for electric vehicles with an additional 10 per cent passive provision for 
electric vehicles in the future. 

 
  Parking for residential development 

Maximum residential parking standards 

Number of Beds 4 or more 3 1-2 

 2 – 1.5 per unit 1.5 –1 per unit Less than 1 per unit 

Notes: 

All developments in areas of good public transport accessibility should aim for significantly less than 1 
space per unit. 

Adequate parking spaces for disabled people must be provided preferably on-site 

20 per cent of all spaces must be for electric vehicles with an additional 20 per cent passive provision for 
electric vehicles in the future. 

The forthcoming SPG on Housing will include a table setting out a matrix of residential parking standards 
that reflect PTAL levels. 

 

Page 73



Getting Around 
60 

All new development in the Borough is now (from April 2012) charged the 
Mayors Community Infrastructure levy of £35 per square metre towards the 
costs of Crossrail16. 
 
The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) encourages the provision of publicly 
available charging points for electric vehicles. However, the Mayor’s strategy 
suggests that publicly available charging points should be no more than 1km 
(0.62 miles) apart, and it is not considered that this will be appropriate or 
practically achievable in some of the more rural areas of the Borough17. 
 
There already exists a Mayor’s Electric Vehicle Delivery Strategy 2009. In 
general compliance with the London Plan the Council’s focus will be to 
concentrate initially on providing charging points in its car parks situated in the 
main town centres of Bromley, Orpington, Beckenham, Penge and West 
Wickham The London Plan has established new standards for the provision of 
charging points in new developments, which will be applied as appropriate 
through the development management process18.. 
 
Further regional getting around or access guidance is provided in ‘Improving 
Walkability 2005’, Manual for Streets 2, Accessible Bus Stop Design 
Guidance, and Wheelchair Accessible Housing Best Practice Guidance. 
 
Local Objectives and current Policy 
 
Bromley Local Implementation Plan (LIP) Objectives committed to 
deliver the Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS)- 2011/12 to 2016/17 
 
1. To reduce congestion on the road and public transport networks. 
2. To maintain and enhance the economic and social vitality of Bromley’s 
town centres, and in particular to support the implementation of the Bromley 
Town Centre Area Action Plan over the next fifteen years. 
3. To enable a genuine choice of travel mode for all journeys, appropriate to 
the purpose and length of the journey being made. 
4. To promote the safe use of cycling, walking and public and private19 
transport to improve access to services, facilities and employment, reduce 
peak time congestion, improve journey times, and limit emissions. 
5. To improve in-borough and orbital connectivity, and to secure extensions of 
the Docklands Light Railway and Tramlink into the Borough. 
6. To enable multimodal journeys by improving integration and interchange. 
7. To ensure that Bromley’s streets and other public places are accessible, 
safe, clean, uncluttered and comfortable spaces for people. 
8. To improve accessibility to all forms of transport for people whose mobility 
is impaired for any reason. 
9. To reduce the number and severity of road casualties, with particular focus 
on collisions that lead to death or serious injury. 
10. To improve the environment and reduce air and noise pollution. 

                                                 
16
 London Plan 2011 Policy 8.3 

17
 Local Implementation Plan 2012 

18
 Local Implementation Plan 2012 

19
 Development Control Committee July 26

th
 Minutes- Member request 

Page 74



Getting Around 
61 

11. To maintain the Borough’s transport assets in a safe and serviceable 
condition.  
 
It is intended that all these objectives will be delivered during the lifetime of 
the Mayor’s Transport Strategy i.e. by 2031. 
 
Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan (BTC AAP) 
 
The BTC AAP was adopted in 2010 and includes a parking policy that is 
relevant when considering the parking options for the rest of the Borough (see 
Option 1). 
 
Policy BTC25 Parking 
“Parking provision for non-residential development will be provided in the form of publicly 
available paid parking. A high standard of build quality and operational design (both for 
vehicles and pedestrians) will be expected for new car parks in the town centre, including 
personal security requirements. The Council will seek to reduce existing non residential 
parking provision where this is linked to the implementation of an approved Travel Plan. The 
levels of non residential parking should be consistent with the targets to reduce the level of 
single car occupancy journeys contained within the approved travel plan The Council will 
further develop and expand the Controlled Parking Zones around the town centre to mitigate 
the impacts of commuter and shopper parking. The Council will prioritise the use of on-street 
parking for shorter stays. Residents within opportunity sites will not be eligible to acquire 
Resident’s Parking Permits to park onstreet. The Council will encourage Park & Ride 
operations to be developed. Implementation of an initial Saturdays-only Park & Ride will be 
investigated, based on the Christmas Park & Ride operation. 
The Council will support a full-time Park & Ride service, triggered by development in Phase 
Three, subject to further study, including identification of an acceptable permanent site with 
adequate environmental safeguards and a viable business case.” 

 
Local Issues and evidence 
 
Transport is the main source of many “significant pollutants particularly in 
towns and citiesQLand use planning is an important part of the overall 
transport policy package and can help in promoting more sustainable 
transport choices and reducing the need to travel”20. 
 
LB Bromley Local Plan Issues Document (2011) 
 
The consultation raised the following issues: 

• Can development be appropriately located to help reduce the need to 
travel, reduce road congestion and resolve parking difficulties? 

• Can the parking difficulties created by commuting and increased travel 
be managed to support town centres and the quality of life of the 
Borough? 

• Can accessibility to town centres, business areas, facilities and 
services be improved to meet changing demands? 

• Can public transport (access) to employment areas be improved? 
 
Some of the responses to the questions were not within town planning or 
development management control but other comments have led to options 

                                                 
20
 Air Quality and Land Use Planning DETR 2000 

Page 75



Getting Around 
62 

being devised (on the following pages) which would then lead to further 
Development Management policies being developed. 
 
 
Bromley’s Parking Strategy (Jan 2012)21 
The parking strategy (previously drafted in 2007) aimed to update the Parking 
Enforcement Plan (PEP). The PEP set out reasons for introducing and 
enforcing on-street waiting and loading restrictions. The strategy also sets out 
policy background and seeks to explain “why” our parking service operates as 
it does along with briefly addressing some of the issues the service will face in 
the future. The policy objectives are:- 

• To improve the safety of all road users. 

• To provide sufficient affordable parking spaces in appropriate locations 
to promote and enhance the local economy. 

• To assist in providing a choice of travel mode, and enable motorists to 
switch from unnecessary car journeys, to reduce traffic congestion and 
pollution. 

• To ensure effective loading/unloading for local businesses 

• To provide the right balance between long, medium and short stay 
spaces in particular locations 

• To provide a turnover of available parking space in areas of high 
demand 

• To assist the smooth flow of traffic and reduce traffic congestion 

• To enable residents to park near their homes 

• To assist users with special requirements, such as the disabled 
 
 
Latest DLR evidence 
The growing importance of extending the DLR to Bromley was recognised in 
the Mayor of London’s manifesto pledge followed by the publishing of a pre-
feasibility report on the engineering needs in September. The Council 
continues to lobby regional and local government for such infrastructure 
improvements and intend to carry out an economic appraisal in 2013. 
 

                                                 
21
 Bromley Parking Strategy Jan 2012 

Page 76



Getting Around 
63 

General Getting Around Strategic Approach 
 
Council priority will be to encourage development where there is a high level 
of accessibility as measured by PTAL levels; thus promoting sustainable 
transport by encouraging patterns of development that reduce the need to 
travel. Development in high PTAL areas shortens travel distances and makes 
the best use of available public transport capacity22.  

 
 
Getting Around development management policy areas 
 
Traffic Management policy areas will be streamlined. This will include 
schemes that will be promoted to protect and enhance the local environment 
and particularly sensitive environments, in terms of historic buildings, 
conservation areas, and Air Quality Management Areas with regard to safety, 
noise, environmental impact and pollution23.  
 
Other policy areas will include:-Transport Demand, Assessment of Traffic 
effects, Park and Ride, Access for People with Restricted Mobility, 
Pedestrians, Cyclists, Other Road Users, Public Transport (Planning 
obligations related), Car Clubs, Public Transport inc Travel plans, transport 
contributions and road hierarchy, New Accesses, Residential Roads, Unmade 
Roads, Unadopted Highways, Traffic Management- inc Home Zones, Traffic 
Management and sensitive environments, and Servicing of Premises Road 

                                                 
22
 Formally option 3, now a statement of intent following URS workshop Aug 12 

23
 Formally option 9, now a statement of intent following URS workshop Aug 12 

Figure 1: PTAL Map. Level 1a - 6b = low to high transport accessibility. 

Page 77



Getting Around 
64 

Safety. Following the options consultation new policy development for 
‘Parking’, ‘Relieving congestion’, and ‘Access for all’. 
 
Strategic Getting Around Policy Options 
 
Parking 
The Council is concerned that new developments do not generate additional 
intrusive or obstructive on-street parking as a result of inadequate on-site 
provision.  Therefore, it will use the limited flexibility provided by London Plan 
standards to maximise off-street parking where possible. 
 
In addition, the Council believes that the PTAL system, on which the London 
Plan’s parking standards are based, does not adequately address 
accessibility issues in outer London, but given the lack of a viable, cost 
effective alternative, reluctantly accepts it. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 52   
Minimum parking expectation for residential development. 
 
Apply minimum local parking expectation for residential development and the 
Council will also seek parking for all other uses to reflect the characteristics of 
the local area, including accessibility and in particular consider the impact on 
the environment, and congestion (to be devised as advised in the NPPF). 

 
This option is in compliance with the NPPF and will take into account the 
accessibility of the site; the type and mix of development; local car ownership; 
and the need to reduce the use of high-emission vehicles.  
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 53   
Maximum levels of parking.  
 
Apply London Plan Maximum levels of parking spaces (London Plan Table 
6.2). 

 
This is not a recommended option because the London Plan levels do not 
reflect local expectation and circumstances. In particular, the use of the PTAL 
system does not adequately address accessibility issues in outer London.  
 
However it is recognised that the SPG on Housing was produced in 
November 2012 states the Mayor has considered the scope for greater 
flexibility in different parts of London and that “outer London displays much 
more variation in the factors underlying NPPF parking policy4..greater 
flexibility is therefore required in implementing pan London parking policy 
there, and in particular, its associated parking standards”24. 
 
 

                                                 
24
 Mayors Housing SPG November 2012 Annex 3 para A4 

Page 78



Getting Around 
65 

OPTION 54   
London Plan parking levels 
Develop London Plan levels of parking? 

 
This is not a recommended option because London Plan parking levels do not 
reflect local expectation and circumstances. 
 

OPTION 55 
Adopt Bromley Town Centre parking strategy (Area Action Plan policy 
BTC 25) borough wide.  

 
This is not a recommended option because the town centre has specific 
requirements and circumstances which do not apply to the whole Borough.  
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
 
Relieving congestion 
 
Bromley’s residents continue to make on average 684,000 trips per day 
(2008/09), the fourth highest in London after Westminster, Camden and 
Barnet25 
 
Anticipated housing up to 2017 (Bromley Housing Trajectory) is split into two 
broad clusters, around Bromley Town Centre and Chislehurst, and in the 
north-west around Crystal Palace and Penge. These locations, combined with 
the focus of growth in Bromley Town Centre, mean that obvious transport 
implications for planned future development relate to increasing pressure on 
the road network and public transport services in Bromley town centre. The 
worst current congestion hotspots are focused on the town centre26. 
 
The Council maintains a list of traffic congestion “pinch points” on the road 
network as a means of identifying potential traffic schemes to reduce 
congestion.  Subsequently allowing new development close to these locations 
could further exacerbate the conditions and potentially be counter-intuitive to 
the broader transport policies of the Council. Traffic congestion on the road 
network will impact on the ability of the economy to operate efficiently and the 
potential for people to work and live in the Borough.  
 
In certain situations, mitigation measures could alleviate some of “pinch 
points” through engineering (e.g. increasing capacity) or through travel 
demand measures. In this case, new developments would be assessed on 
their individual case, considering the accessibility of the site; the type and mix 
of development, local car ownership and proposals for the “pinch point”.  
 
 
 

                                                 
25
 Local Implementation Plan , January 2012 

26
 Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan August 2012 

Page 79



Getting Around 
66 

PREFERRED OPTION 56   
Pinch point mitigation measures 
 
Require new major development close to known pinch points (or any new 
development close to significant pinch points) on the road network (identified 
in the Local Implementation Plan (LIP)) to incorporate mitigation measures to 
reduce congestion and the impact of the development on road congestions. 

 
This option would allow developments which can contribute to the Borough 
while contributing to reducing congestion or undertaking measures to reduce 
the impact of the scheme or further exacerbating the pinch point.  
 
OTHER OPTION CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 57  
Manage developments near Pinch Points 
 
Not allow development close to known pinch points on the road network.  

 
This option could be very restrictive and potentially stop developments in 
these areas which, if designed with measures to reduce congestion and the 
impact of development may be acceptable to the Council. Additionally, at 
certain pinch points, the traffic congestion is due to traffic travelling through 
the Borough/area rather than local traffic. 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
 
Access to services for all 
 
Bromley’s geography and southern rural areas make access to employment 
by public transport difficult. Bromley is ranked 30th across London for access 
to employment. 
 
Some 90% of Bromley’s population lives within 440 yards / 400 metres of a 
bus stop. The Borough’s town centres and principal railway stations are 
relatively well served by buses (and for Beckenham, by trams), although 
services away from town centres and on Sundays are significantly less 
frequent. 
 
Access to other services by non-private modes of transport is summarised in 
the following table, which also illustrates Bromley’s ranking compared with 
other boroughs27. 
 

                                                 
27
 Local Implementation Plan 2012 

Page 80



Getting Around 
67 

 
 
Of particular concern is access to GPs and schools. These figures highlight 
the need for inward investment to public transport services in the Borough. 
 
The Council consult with organisations representing people with physical and 
sensory impairment on any design of major schemes and expect new 
developers to do so too. 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 58   
Developers to provide safe and accessible pedestrian and cycle routes 
within schemes. 
 
To promote the safe use of cycling, walking and public and private28 transport 
to improve access to services for all. Developers will be required to provide 
safe and accessible pedestrian and cycle routes within their schemes, and to 
public transport nodes, and local destinations such as schools, health centres 
and local shops and services. 

 
This option builds on the principle set out in BTC24 and applies it across the 
Borough. “The Council will promote walking and cycling for shorter journeys. 
The Council will seek to improve facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, 
including safe and attractive road crossings, with a view to increasing walking 
and cycling. The Council will seek to ensure that the pedestrian environment 
is accessible to people with disabilities. Particular attention will be paid to all 
destination points including schools, employment etc.” 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 59   
Developer contributions towards cycle routes.  
 
Give regard to increased demand for orbital and radial29 cycle routes, 
requiring developments to contribute as set out in the forthcoming Council 
Transport Strategy and apply minimum cycle parking standards as per the 
London Plan (Table 6.3). 

 

                                                 
28
 Development Control Committee July 26

th
 Minutes- Member request 

29
 Development Control Committee July 26

th
 Minutes- Member request 

Page 81



Getting Around 
68 

The vast majority of routes are linear towards central London; therefore, 
orbital routes are often limited in terms of choice and capacity.  The Council is 
broadly supportive of the London Plan and TfL’s aspirations for Cycle 
Superhighways. Taking this further, this option promotes orbital cycle travel, 
the key to achieving a step change in cycling and which could also help 
reduce traffic congestion and relieve pinch points.  Adopted cycle parking 
standards in the London Plan ensure adequate provision of appropriate 
facilities at new developments. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 60  
Developer contributions towards transport services and interchanges. 
 
Require developers, transport providers and operators to ensure accessibility 
to public transport services including public transport interchanges. 

 
This option encourages access to services for all. Developers are required 
therefore to ensure that measures which promote or enhance accessibility to 
public transport services and interchanges are made. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 61   
Public transport developer contributions  
 
Encourage improved public transport routes and frequency with development 
contributing in line with any future Council Transport Strategy; in particular 
where public transport links do not exist or frequency is poor. 

 
There are parts of the Borough, particularly in the south, and more rural areas 
where public transport is very limited. Improvements would be supporting 
better accessibility and assist quality of life. Contributions from developments 
could, therefore, promote or enhance the public transport offering, both in 
terms of frequency or destination. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
OTHER OPTION CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 62  
 Major road building  
 
Encourage a major programme of road building to increase capacity, requiring 
developers to contribute as appropriate. 

 

Page 82



Getting Around 
69 

This option is not recommended due to the high costs involved and the impact 
on development viability, the environment and likely opposition from local 
residents. 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Transport Investment Priorities 
 
The Council recognises the need for future investment in public transport 
infrastructure in order to continue to improve access to local jobs, supporting 
the needs for local businesses to grow and deliver regeneration.  
 
The Borough has historically relied upon rail services to provide both short 
local journeys and longer-distance travel. The MTS forecasts that the Bromley 
rail corridor will be “moderately stressed” in 2017 and “highly stressed” in 
2031 unless significant investment takes place.  
 
The following options set out the possible investment opportunities in public 
transport for the Borough. In compliance with London Plan Policy 6.2 – 
providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for transport, the 
options are to be designated and included in the emerging Local Plan. The 
Council also has the intention to safeguard the proposed DLR route and 
continue the safeguarding of the tramlink extension.  
 

AMENDED PREFERRED OPTION 63  
DLR Extensions 
 
Promote the extensions of the DLR to Bromley North including by 
safeguarding sufficient land to enable construction and operation. In particular 
at former Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan Site A.  

 
This extension would support Bromley Town Centre and increase accessibility 
for residents to Docklands and other major employment centres as well the 
accessibility of Bromley as a destination, and reducing congestion on roads 
and rail.  
 
Bromley Town Centre potential development opportunities should be 
reviewed in light of improved public transport accessibility with the extension 
of the DLR to Bromley North or Bromley South.  
 
Ensure that the ‘Local Plan’ for former Bromley Town Centre Opportunity Site 
A reflects the potential and maximises the opportunities that the extension of 
the DLR would bring to Bromley Town Centre and the wider area. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 

Page 83



Getting Around 
70 

 

AMENDED PREFERRED OPTION 64  
Tramlink extensions  
 
Support the Tramlink extensions to Bromley Town Centre and Crystal Palace, 
improving accessibility and orbital public transport routes to Bromley Town 
Centre.  

 
This option provides economic benefit to Bromley Town Centre. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 65  
Extension of the Bakerloo Line 
 
Support the extension of the Bakerloo line to Bromley North.  

 
This would not provide the same level of economic benefit to Bromley Town 
Centre. 

QUESTION SET 2 
 

OPTION 66  
Overground rail linkages 
Improving overground rail linkages between Bromley North and Lewisham.  

 
Not recommended as this would impact on the case for DLR. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
QUESTION SET 4  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Getting Around 
71 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
72 

Bromley’s Valued Environments                                 
        
 
Introduction 
 
Bromley has a varied environment as far as both the natural and man made 
elements are concerned. By far the greater proportion of the borough 
comprises open space of some description, varying from small formal and 
informal urban open spaces and parks of great importance to local 
communities, especially those living in the more densely developed areas, to 
natural countryside and farmland. There is a similar variation in the built 
environment, which ranges from fairly high density Victorian and Edwardian 
residential areas to more spacious sub-urban developments established in the 
inter and post war periods and the remnants of the former large country 
estates exemplified by Sundridge Park and Holwood House. 
 
It is important that the best features of these environments are conserved, 
whilst being carefully integrated within new developments to meet the needs 
of 21st Century living. 
 
In the previous consultation on the Core Strategy Issues Document (CSID) 
very few of the comments received related to the ‘Built Heritage’ assets, the 
bulk were concerned with open space. A significant number of the comments 
received on the latter were very site specific, some involving the release of 
Green Belt for housing, others dealing with very local issues which could not 
be taken into account by either policies or site designations, although properly 
framed policies would aid in their possible resolution over the years covered 
by the Plans.  
 
As far as ‘Valued Environments’ are concerned, the key issues for the next 20 
years are likely to relate to the pressure on land for development, in particular 
housing and are summarised as follows: 
 

• Applications for demolition and redevelopment of Locally Listed 
Buildings 

• Requests for additional ASRCs and Conservation Areas, limiting the 
scope for redevelopment adding to the pressure to develop open 
space 

• Release of Green Belt land and private open space sites in the built up 
area 

• Farm diversification (legal and illegal)/sub division 
• Food security 
• Relating the provision and maintenance of open space to the changing 

needs of the local population 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
73 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the London Plan 
 
Open and Natural Space 
 
On the Green Belt, the NPPF maintains its fundamental aim to prevent urban 
sprawl by keeping land permanently open ensuring that the essential 
characteristics of openness and their permanence are ensured. 
 
The NPPF requires Local Authorities to set out a strategic approach in their 
Local Plans, planning positively for the creation, protection, enhancement and 
management of networks of biodiversity and green infrastructure. Policies 
should set out criteria against which proposals for any development on or 
affecting protected wildlife or geodiversity sites or landscape areas will be 
judged. Distinctions should be made between the hierarchy of international, 
national and locally designated sites, so that protection is commensurate with 
their status and gives appropriate weight to their importance and the 
contribution that they make to wider ecological networks. 
 
Built heritage 
 
The NPPF requires Local Plans to set out a positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment of the historic environment. The strategy should 
take into account 

• the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their 
conservation;  

• the wider social, cultural, economic and environmental benefits that 
conservation of the historic environment can bring;  

• the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to 
local character and distinctiveness;  

• and opportunities to draw on the contribution made by the historic 
environment to the character of a place.  

In considering this care must be taken with particular regard to the 
designation of both new Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Residential 
Character in order not to devalue the policies or put undue pressure for 
development on other parts of the borough.  
 
In the case of both ‘Open and Natural Space’ (including Green Belt) and ‘Built 
Heritage’, the detailed policies in the recently adopted London Plan, whilst 
developed prior to the publication of the NPPF, have been found to be in 
conformity with the latter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
74 

Strategic Policy Options 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 67  
Review and define all open space designations  

 
This has been undertaken and leaves open the opportunity for 
representations to be made on these and other additional sites to be 
considered. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 68  
Once defined, in view of the importance of the designations, maintain 
and protect the open space  

 

PREFERRED OPTION 69  
Ensure that the GLA ‘All London Green Grid Supplementary Planning 
Guidance’ is incorporated in the Planning Policies to assist in the 
creation of new public spaces, the enhancement of existing open 
spaces and improvements to the links in between  

 
The All London Green Grid is a multifunctional of open spaces which will 
secure benefits including, but not limited to: biodiversity; natural and historic 
landscapes; culture; building a sense of place; the economy; sport; recreation; 
local food production; mitigating and adapting to climate change; water 
management; and the social benefits that promote individual and community 
health and well-being. The open spaces in Bromley will provide part of a 
strategic network of green infrastructure for London. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 70  
Develop policies to improve use of and access to open spaces  

 
This would very much be driven by strategies developed within other 
departments dealing with the development and operation of our open spaces 
in  conjunction with the Strategy and Renewal Division, through this Local 
Plan.  
 

PREFERRED OPTION 71  
Work with neighbouring boroughs to meet the London Plan policy 
objectives for open space  

 
This will ensure that the Open Space policies developed for Bromley, whilst 
reflecting the local circumstances, are in line with the London Plan and the 
policies adopted by adjoining other authorities.  This will be particularly 
important in cases where the open spaces either side of authority boundaries 
are virtually contiguous. In the case of Bromley the most important instance 
will be the Green Chain. The importance of Green Chains is highlighted in the 
London Plan; consequently the fact that we no longer subscribe to the Green 
Chain Project fund does not negate the need to co-operate with adjoining 

Page 88



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
75 

boroughs in supporting and strengthening the South East London Green 
Chain. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 72  
Ensure that full consideration is given to the incorporation of green 
space in all Area Action Plans or Neighbourhood Plans by way of site 
allocations. 

 
This would aid in the provision of new spaces to serve essentially local 
communities when major schemes are developed and reflect what local 
residents see as their priorities in this type of provision. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 73  
Involve ‘Park Friends’ in the development of open space policies. 

 
This would give such groups, with very local knowledge of the users of the 
open spaces, the formal opportunity to have an input to the broader policies 
which could affect the parks and open spaces in which they have a particular 
interest. 
 
 
Built heritage 

 
 
Strategic Policy Options: 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 74  
Develop policies for appropriate areas and buildings of importance to 
the historic environment to ensure protection and enhancement of 
distinctive parts of the Borough 

 
In most respects these have been defined already (Historic Monuments and 
Parks, Conservation Areas, Nationally and Locally Listed Buildings). 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 75  
Maintain the existing criteria for Areas of Special Residential Character 
and add areas where existing criteria are met. 

 

OPTION 76  
Review and update the criteria for Areas of Special Residential 
Character. 

 
Last year, a representation was made by the Chelsfield Park Residents’ 
Association during the consultation on the Core Strategy Issues Document 
asking that this area be considered for such a designation. There may be 
other representations regarding additional areas. It is important that the 
criteria are retained to ensure that areas so defined, are of sufficient quality to 
merit it to avoid the devaluation of the concept and limiting opportunities for 

Page 89



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
76 

development. With the intention to protect open spaces, increasing protection 
for substantial residential areas from change would place excessive pressure 
on the remaining, in many cases already intensively developed parts of the 
borough. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 77  
Work closely with the Bromley Museum, the Museum of London 
Archaeology Service and English Heritage to ensure the protection of 
the Areas of Archaeological Importance.  

 
These areas will, as now be defined on a map, with the guidance and advice 
of the aforementioned bodies that would also be approached for their advice 
and expertise in this field when any proposals of significance are put forward. 
 
Development Management Policies 
 
 “Bromley’s Valued Environments” strategic options will be supported by 
development management policies likely to cover the following: 

• Replacement of and extensions, conversions or alterations to, houses 
in the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open and (MOL) 

• A development on land abutting either the Green Belt MOL 

• Currently there are policies in the UDP which expand on Government 
Guidance giving more detail of how the guidance will be applied in the 
local Bromley environment, namely (in outline): 

¡  the types of development related to farm diversification schemes 
which will be acceptable; 

¡  the criteria required to be met in relation to agricultural workers' 
dwellings and buildings in rural areas; 

¡  the circumstances under which development will be considered 
acceptable on Green Belt, MOL and Urban Open Space; 

¡  the circumstances under which total or substantial demolition of a 
listed building will be considered acceptable; 

¡  the circumstances under which locally listed buildings can be 
replaced, altered, extended or the use changed; 

¡  the criteria to be applied to new developments in Conservation 
areas and where demolition is required 

¡  Approach to tall buildings including locations where tall buildings 
may be considered appropriate and requirement to make a 
positive contribution to the existing character of the surrounding. 

¡  Listed buildings and locally listed buildings, including approach to 
demolition and protection. 

¡  Public realm and boundary treatment 

¡  Development and Management of Trees, Woodland Hedgerows. 

Page 90



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
77 

¡  Development and SSSI, Nature Conservation, and Protected 
Species 

¡  Biodiversity 

 
 

Page 91



Bromley’s Valued Environments 
78 

Page 92



Working in Bromley 
79 

Working in Bromley         
The Working in Bromley chapter is spilt into two sections:  
 
Part 1 - Business, Employment and Local Economy 
 
Part 2 – Town Centres 
 

Part 1 - Business, Employment and Local Economy 
 

QUESTION SET 1 
 
Introduction and Background 
 
Bromley’s economy is one of the largest in outer London, with just over 13,000 
businesses and an estimated 129,000 jobs - an economic scale similar to cities such as 
Reading and Stoke-on-Trent. The borough has consistently had high levels of 
employment and a highly skilled workforce. Approximately two thirds of the jobs in the 
borough are taken by local residents of Bromley and 55% of the local working 
population travel out of the borough to work, the majority in central London.  
 
Employment in the borough is forecast to increase by 6% to 137,000 by 2031, from 
129,000 in 2011; this increase is similar to the percentage change in many other outer 
London boroughs including the adjoining boroughs of Croydon and Bexley. 
 
A strong local economy is key to continuing prosperity in Bromley, underpinning the 
high quality of life which characterises the borough. Business owners and managers 
appreciate the borough’s excellent transport links, its readily available pool of skilled 
staff, low crime levels and green surroundings. 
 
The borough's main employment centres are: Bromley Town Centre; the Major Town 
Centre of Orpington; the District Centres of Beckenham, Penge, Petts Wood and West 
Wickham; and the Business Areas in St. Mary Cray, Lower Sydenham, Elmers End and 
at Biggin Hill Airport. 
 
Bromley Town Centre is the main location for the borough's office-based businesses, 
with approximately 200,000 sqm of floorspace, over one third of the total office 
floorspace in the borough.  Orpington, which benefits from close links with the M25, has 
the next largest concentration with approximately 50,000 sqm. The remainder is mainly 
distributed amongst the borough's other District Centres. 
 
Despite some decline of manufacturing employment in the borough, industry and 
warehousing remain important elements of the local economy. There are approximately 
100 hectares of land in industrial or warehousing use, the majority being concentrated 
within the Business Areas in the Cray Valley, Lower Sydenham (Kangley Bridge Road), 
Elmers End and Biggin Hill Airport. 
 
St Mary Cray is the largest of the areas with 40 hectares used for light industry or 
warehousing.  It is the area with the best connections to the M25 and is the borough's 
prime location for such businesses. Both Lower Sydenham and Elmers End have 
relatively good connections to Central London.  The Business Area at Biggin Hill Airport 
provides premises that benefit from close connections with the aviation industry and 
with air transport facilities. 

Page 93



Working in Bromley 
80 

Map of Business Areas 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



Working in Bromley 
81 

Policy Background 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
The NPPF emphasises planning’s role in contributing to building a strong, responsive 
and competitive economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available 
in the right places and at the right time to support growth and innovation; and by 
identifying and coordinating development requirements, including the provision of 
infrastructure. 
 
Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth through 
the planning system and local planning authorities should plan proactively to meet the 
development needs of business.  Planning policies should avoid the long term 
protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is no reasonable prospect 
of a site being used for that purpose30. 
 
In drawing up Local Plans, local planning authorities should31: 
 

• set out a clear economic vision and strategy for their area which positively and 
proactively encourages sustainable economic growth; 

 

• set criteria, or identify strategic sites, for local and inward investment to match the 
strategy and to meet anticipated needs over the plan period; 

 

• support existing business sectors, taking account of whether they are expanding or 
contracting and, where possible, identify and plan for new or emerging sectors likely 
to locate in their area. Policies should be flexible enough to accommodate needs 
not anticipated in the plan and to allow a rapid response to changes in economic 
circumstances; 

 

• plan positively for the location, promotion and expansion of clusters or networks of 
knowledge driven, creative or high technology industries; 

 

• identify priority areas for economic regeneration, infrastructure provision and 
environmental enhancement; and 

 

• facilitate flexible working practices such as the integration of residential and 
commercial uses within the same unit. 

 
 
London Plan (2011) 
 
The London Plan sets out the Mayoral vision and strategic policy regarding the 
economy and business growth, which the Local Plan has to conform to.  The key 
relevant policies are highlighted below: 
 
Policy 2.6 Outer London: Vision and strategy - The Mayor will, and boroughs and other 
stakeholders should, work to realise the potential of outer London, recognising and 
building upon its great diversity and varied strengths by providing locally sensitive 
approaches through LDFs and other development frameworks to enhance and promote 
                                                 
30
 DCLG (2012) National Planning Policy Framework, Paragraph 22 

31
 DCLG (2012) National Planning Policy Framework, Paragraph 21 

Page 95



Working in Bromley 
82 

its distinct existing and emerging strategic and local economic opportunities, and 
transport requirements. 
 
Policy 2.7 Outer London: Economy - The Mayor will, and boroughs and other 
stakeholders should, seek to address constraints and opportunities in the economic 
growth of outer London so that it can rise above its long term economic trends. 
 
Policy 2.16 Strategic Outer London Development Centres - The Mayor will, and 
boroughs and other stakeholders should, identify, develop and promote strategic 
development centres in outer London or adjacent parts of inner London with one or 
more strategic economic functions of greater than subregional importance by: 
 
a) co-ordinating public and private infrastructure investment 
b) bringing forward adequate development capacity 
c) placing a strong emphasis on creating a distinct and attractive business offer and 
public realm through design and mixed use development as well as any more specialist 
forms of accommodation 
d) improving Londoners’ access to new employment opportunities. 
 
The Mayor will work with boroughs and other partners to develop and implement 
planning frameworks and/or other appropriate spatial planning and investment tools 
that can effect positive change to realise the potential of Strategic Outer London 
Development Centres. 
 
Strategic Industrial Locations and other Industrial Provision 
 
London Plan Policies 2.17 and 4.4 set out a plan-led approach to promoting and 
managing industrial capacity through three types of location: 
 

• Strategic Industrial Locations (SILs). 

• Locally Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS). 

• Other smaller industrial sites. 
 
To meet the needs of different types of industries, the London Plan identifies two broad 
categories of SIL: 
 
Preferred Industrial Locations (PILs) are suitable for firms that have less demanding 
environmental requirements and typically fall within the light industrial, general 
industrial and storage and distribution Use Classes (B1(c), B2 and B8 respectively).  
 
Industrial Business Parks (IBPs) are for firms that need better quality surroundings and 
typically include activities such as research and development (B1b), light industrial 
(B1c) and high value-added general industrial (B2).  Generally they require significantly 
less heavy goods access and are able to relate more harmoniously with neighbouring 
uses than those in PILs. 
 
Policy 4.4 Managing Industrial Land and Premises - The Mayor will work with boroughs 
and other partners to: 
 
a) adopt a rigorous approach to industrial land management to ensure a sufficient stock 
of land and premises to meet the future needs of different types of industrial and 

Page 96



Working in Bromley 
83 

related uses in different parts of London, including for good quality and affordable 
space 
 
b) plan, monitor and manage release of surplus industrial land where this is compatible 
with a) above, so that it can contribute to strategic and local planning objectives, 
especially those to provide more housing, and, in appropriate locations, to provide 
social infrastructure and to contribute to town centre renewal. 
 
Strategic Industrial Locations in Bromley 
 

• St Marys Cray (IBP) (which accounts for 41% of all designated business area 
floorspace in the Borough). 

• Foots Cray Business Area (IBP) (which borders Bexley). 
 
Bromley is ranked as ‘restricted’ for the transfer of industrial land to other uses.   
 
Restricted Transfer: Boroughs in this category typically have low levels of industrial 
land relative to demand (particularly for waste management or land for logistics) and/or 
low proportions of industrial land within the SIL framework. Boroughs in this category 
are encouraged to adopt a more restrictive approach to transfer. 
 
Policy 4.3 Mixed Use Development and Offices - Mixed use development and 
redevelopment should support consolidation and enhancements to the quality of the 
remaining office stock. 
 
Policy 4.12 Improving Opportunities for all - Strategic development proposals should 
support local employment, skills development and training opportunities. 
 
 

Local Issues and Evidence 
 
A recent study undertaken by DTZ32 on behalf of the Council provides an evidence 
base for planning the borough’s long-term future commercial requirements.  
Employment in the borough is forecast to increase by 6% to 137,000 by 2031, from 
129,000 in 2011; this increase is similar to the percentage change in many other outer 
London boroughs including the adjoining boroughs of Croydon and Bexley. 
 
These trends are likely to lead to the following net additional figures for space required 
to accommodate changes in employment: 
 

• A significant requirement for office space (121,000 sq m) driven by business 
services and financial services 

 

• Falling requirements (-9,200 sq m) for industrial /other business space driven by a 
decline in the manufacturing sector, and a decline for warehousing (-7,700 sq m) 

 

• A small increase in non-B uses requiring traditional employment (i.e. B use) sites of 
2,300 sq m, driven by declines in wholesale and increases in health and education. 

 

                                                 
32
 London Borough of Bromley Retail, Office, Industry and Leisure study (DTZ, 2012) 

Page 97



Working in Bromley 
84 

• Also, a brief examination of non-B uses requiring non-traditional (i.e. non-B) sites 
highlights a total requirement of 249,000 sq m of floorspace. This will be driven 
primarily by construction, retail, hotels and restaurants. This requirement is likely to 
need a variety of types and locations of sites across the borough that fall under a 
number of non-B use classes. 

 
 
The sectors that are set to grow the most in Bromley between 2006 and 2031 are 
Business Services, Financial Services, Construction, Health and Education and Hotels 
and Restaurants. Meanwhile, sectors forecast to lose employment include 
Manufacturing, Transport and Communications and Wholesale. 
 
The key to planning employment land provision to 2031 is restricting the release of 
existing office sites and non-office sites that have the potential to be converted to office 
uses.  The DTZ study recommends protecting against loss to other uses existing 
employment land and premises in Bromley that meet the following criteria: 
 

• Existing employment sites or premises that are within town centres.  Bromley South 
represents the greatest opportunity to accommodate additional future development. 

 

• Existing employment sites or premises that are suitable existing office locations 
outside town centres to provide both capacity for growth and choice for the market. 

 
 
It is important to consider how best to protect the Business Areas and office 
accommodation for future business needs, whilst encouraging improvements to the 
existing stock and quality of environment.  This will particularly require proactive activity 
to nurture growth of the office market in Bromley Town Centre over the short, medium 
and long-term given the highlighted anticipated demand for such floorspace. 
 
The Bromley Area Action Plan identifies the need for at least 7,000 sqm of office 
floorspace.  This presents a challenge in terms of provision for future growth and will 
need to be considered in the long-term context of the potential for the DLR to extend to 
Bromley. 
 
The Cray Valley commercial corridor represents just over 50% of all designated 
Business Area floorspace in the borough.  Such an agglomeration requires a particular 
focus to be directed towards the progressive upgrading of employment land in line with 
the SIL status, principally to provide modern industrial premises.  This involves support 
of the intensification, and upgrading, of the area to meet expected future business 
needs, particularly the forecast growth in office (‘B’ use class) based employment. 
 
The SOLDC status of Biggin Hill offers the potential for increased support of economic 
growth activities at Biggin Hill Airport and the adjoining industrial area.  This would 
focus on aviation-related activities, with the provision of associated business 
infrastructure and amenities.  It is important to note this employment growth would not 
increase the number of flights as per the existing lease arrangements and would have 
regard to the accessibility and environmental constraints. 
 
The continued challenging economic climate presents real challenges, highlighting the 
need to continue to ensure Bromley achieves its vision through clear designations, 
identifying where growth and investment will be encouraged.  Economic growth is 

Page 98



Working in Bromley 
85 

important to achieving the long term overall vision of Building a Better Bromley and the 
emerging Local Plan. 
 
 
 
List of Evidence/Documents: 
 
Economic Development and Employment Land Study, 2010, GVA Grimley  
 
Market Demand and Feasibility Report, 2009, GVA Grimley 
 
Retail Office Industry and Leisure Study, 2012, DTZ 
 
Bromley Town Centre AAP, 2010 
 
Land for Industry and Transport, Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 2012, 
Mayor of London  
  
London Office Policy Review 2012, Greater London Authority  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



Working in Bromley 
86 

Strategic Policy Options – Part 1: Business, Employment and Local 
Economy 
 
(1) Strategic Industrial Locations (SIL) 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 78 
Carry forward the London Plan SIL designations for St Marys Cray (Industrial 
Business Park (IBP)) and Foots Cray Business Area (IBP) into the Local Plan and 
continue to protect them for employment uses and encourage upgrading through 
development and refurbishment. 

 
This is the preferred option being in conformity with the London Plan (Policy 2.17 
Strategic Industrial Locations) designation and reflects the borough’s status as a 
‘restricted’ borough for the transfer of industrial land to other uses.  When considering 
alternatives to this option it is important to recognise the London Plan designation and 
therefore an alternative option is not proposed.      
 

PREFERRED NEW OPTION 79 
Increase the economic contribution of the Cray Business Corridor to the local 
renewal area and to the borough as a whole through improving the quality of the 
environment, review the boundary of existing designation and optimisation of 
sites.  

 
The Cray Valley commercial corridor is identified as a SIL within the London Plan and is 
adjacent to two London Plan regeneration areas.  The commercial corridor includes 
Sevenoaks Way/Cray Avenue (which represents over 40% of all designated Business 
Area floorspace in the borough), Crayfields Industrial and Business Parks, and Ruxley 
Corner Business Area.  This corridor represents over 50% of all designated Business 
Area floorspace in the borough. 
 
The Council need to ensure a suitable range of sites for businesses in terms of quality 
and size to meet the forecast growth. Modern businesses typically require a higher 
quality environment than traditional industry and this is one of the key challenges for 
the Cray Valley. 
 
The ‘Living in Bromley’ section includes as a preferred option treating the Mayor’s 
regeneration areas within the Cray Valley as a single renewal area, and the commercial 
area is important in helping to deliver economic, environmental and social 
improvements to this renewal area. 
 

QUESTION SET 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



Working in Bromley 
87 

 
(2) Business Areas Designations 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 80 
Continue to protect the Business Area designations as Locally Significant 
Industrial Sites (LSIS), so they can continue to meet business and employment 
needs and benefit from protection from changes of use and facilitate their 
upgrading through development and refurbishment: 

 
Airport Trading Estate, Biggin Hill 
Crayfields Business Park, St. Paul’s Cray 
Elmers End, Croydon Road 
Farwig Lane, Bromley 
Homesdale Road, Bromley 
Lower Sydenham 
Oakfield Road, Penge 
Ruxley Corner/Foots Cray, Bromley/Bexley border 
Sevenoaks Way/Cray Avenue, St. Mary Cray 
 
This is the preferred option because it reflects the borough’s status as a ‘restricted’ 
borough for the transfer of industrial land to other uses.   
 

Option 81  
Consolidate the Business Areas to provide more flexibility for mixed use 
development in particular areas to ensure the retention of employment land. 

 
This is not a preferred option given the borough’s ‘restricted’ status.  This would involve 
releasing significant areas from business designation and evidence from the London 
Plan does not support this. 
 
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
 
(3) Development Outside Business Areas 
 
 

Option 82 
Maintain the policy approach as per UDP policy EMP5: 

 
“The redevelopment of business sites or premises outside of the Designated Business 
Areas will be permitted provided that: 
 
(i) the size, configuration, access arrangements or other characteristics make it 
unsuitable for uses Classes B1, B2 or B8 use, and 
(ii) full and proper marketing of the site confirms the unsuitability and financial non-
viability of the site or premises for those uses. “ 
 
This is not a preferred option because the approach to redevelopment or loss of non-
designated employment land requires a more quantitative and qualitative approach 
based on clear criteria. 
 

Page 101



Working in Bromley 
88 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 83 
Introduce a criteria based policy (consistent with the London Plan and Mayoral 
Supplementary Planning Guidance) to protect non-designated employment sites 
from change of use.   

 
Although similar to UDP policy EMP5, this approach would be more detailed, for 
example, assessing whether such sites are suitable for continued business use or 
whether this would cause amenity, access, parking or other issues in the area.  
 
Criteria would be based on general economic and land use factors and indicators of 
industrial demand.  In developing criteria-based policies, guidance states that boroughs 
should seek to retain those sites in industrial use that are functionally the most 
important for industrial and related users.  These will generally include the better quality 
industrial sites, but may also include poorer quality sites that provide scope for low cost 
industrial accommodation for which there is demand.  Outside designated Business 
Areas the Council will only permit non-conforming business uses where there would be 
no significant adverse impact on the amenity of the surrounding properties. 
 
This is a preferred option because it acknowledges the criteria based policy approach 
that is consistent with the London Plan and Mayoral Supplementary Planning Guidance 
and reflects the varied needs of business. 
 

Option 84 
Where proposals come forward, consider mixed use or other employment uses 
that retain an employment function. 

 
This is not a preferred option given the borough’s ‘restricted’ status for the transfer of 
industrial land to other uses.   
 
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
 
(4) Future Requirements for Office Floorspace 
 
As noted above, there is a significant future requirement for office space, which raises 
questions as to how the borough is to accommodate this growth.  Local research (DTZ, 
2012) notes that the key to planning employment land provision to 2031 is restricting 
the release of existing office sites and non-office sites that have the potential to be 
converted to office uses. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION  
Option 85 
Protect all existing office floorspace in accessible (based on PTAL rating) 
locations. 

 
Given the identified future requirements for office floorspace, it is therefore the 
preferred option to protect existing office floorspace in accessible locations as these 
are the most sustainable. 
 
 

Page 102



Working in Bromley 
89 

 

Option 86 
Restrict new office developments to accessible (based on PTAL rating) town 
centre locations.  

 
This is not a preferred option because new small office developments based in the 
lesser accessible or non-town centre locations can fulfil a local need, which would 
provide sustainable employment opportunities. 
 

Option 87 
Allow office developments on employment land where PTAL rating and 
accessibility is deemed sufficient. 

 
This is not a preferred option because it prevents the clustering of similar and 
complementary businesses where appropriate and does not take into consideration 
demand for other land use types.  
 

PREFERRED OPTION 88 
Direct proposals for any large new office developments to town centres as part 
of the renewal of office stock. 

 
This is a preferred option because new large office developments are required to be 
located in sustainable town centre locations and will contribute to the renewal of office 
stock, increasing the attractiveness of the borough to businesses.   
 
 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 89  
Seek the expansion and intensification of office use within Bromley Town Centre, 
particularly around Bromley South and Bromley North stations, supported by 
improved transport connections and recognition within the London Plan as an 
Opportunity Area. 

 
The employment land study shows a requirement for an additional 121,000 sq m of 
office floorspace for the period to 2031.  Bromley Town Centre is key to achieving this. 
Other town centres together with the Business Areas will also play an important part 
accommodating smaller scale offices, and for the latter in particular, office use 
combined with other commercial uses. 
 
Much of the existing office stock within the borough is dated and Bromley Town Centre 
offers the greatest potential for new high quality office development. Bromley South has 
the greatest scope, although Bromley North, with the possible DLR extension and the 
former Opportunity Site A is also important.   
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
 
(5) Biggin Hill - Strategic Outer London Development Centre (SOLDC) 
 
The London Plan designates Biggin Hill as a Strategic Outer London Development 
Centre (SOLDC) – a development centre with one or more strategic economic functions 
of greater than sub-regional importance.  This designation raises issues as to how the 

Page 103



Working in Bromley 
90 

Council plans for the employment and business opportunities for Biggin Hill as a 
SOLDC, whilst protecting the environment and quality of life. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 90 
The Council will work with the Airport and businesses in the area to enhance the 
areas employment and business opportunities, subject to the impacts of 
development taking regard to the accessibility and environmental constraints of 
Biggin Hill.  This would accommodate growth on the existing sites through the 
intensification and reuse of vacant buildings to meet the objectives of the 
SOLDC. 

 
 

AMENDED PREFERRED OPTION 91  
Realise the full potential of the Biggin Hill SOLDC and accommodate a feasible 
higher level of economic growth, reviewing appropriate constraints, such as 
accessibility, green belt boundaries and heritage designations while ensuring the 
environmental quality is maintained. 

 
 
The GL Hearn findings identify scope for the intensification of the business and 
employment base in the Biggin Hill area.  This is supported by the borough level 
employment forecasts and employment land study. 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 92 
Encourage a mixed use approach (excluding residential) to West Camp to 
incorporate the planned heritage centre, whilst acknowledging and addressing 
the sustainability issues around the heritage constraints on the buildings. 

 
This option is preferred because it incorporates the planned heritage centre and 
supports a sensitive approach to the heritage constraints of West Camp.   
 

OPTION 93 
Continue to restrict the West Camp area to aviation-related uses. 

 
This is not a preferred option because it restricts the site to aviation-related uses only 
and therefore does not take into consideration the planned heritage centre.     
 

PREFERRED OPTION 94 
Continue to restrict the East Camp area to aviation-related uses. 

 
This is a preferred option because it maintains the important aviation-related uses hub 
at the Airport.     
 

QUESTION SET 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



Working in Bromley 
91 

 
 

Development Management Policies 
 
‘Working in Bromley’ strategic options will be likely to be supported by development 
management policies including the following: 
 
Offices: 
 

• Proposals for large new office development are to be located on defined proposals 
sites or within Bromley, Orpington, Penge and Beckenham town centres. 

 

• Large new office developments will be permitted only on sites that are highly 
accessible by public transport. 

 

• Proposals for office development will be expected to ensure that shopping functions 
of the town centres are not impaired and on small office schemes, mixed use or 
flexible space for small businesses and start-ups can be achieved.  

 

• Policy will utilise criteria restricting the conversion or redevelopment of offices for 
other uses, such as demonstrating vacancy and loss of employment. 

 
 
Development outside Business Areas: 
 

• Outside designated Business Areas the Council will only permit non-conforming 
business uses where there would be no significant adverse impact on the amenity 
of the surrounding properties. 

 

• When considering proposals to refurbish or extend business activities, or those 
involving a change of use, the Council will encourage the inclusion of environmental 
improvements. 

 
 
Small Businesses: 
 

• Encourage proposals, which improve the supply of small business units, managed 
workspaces and live/work units.  Small business and managed workspaces should 
be located in town centres, local parades, Business Areas or land and premises 
used for employment purposes.  

 

• In cases where planning permission is required, the Council will normally permit the 
use, by the householder, of part of a dwelling for business purposes subject to 
specific criteria.  

 

• Schemes that provide facilities for small businesses will be permitted in local 
centres, provided that the vitality and viability of that centre is not impaired 

 
 

• Additional policies in response to the Strategic Options.   
 
 

Page 105



Working in Bromley 
92 

 
 
 

Part 2 – Town Centres 
 
Introduction and Background 
 
Bromley has historically been and still is the main retail centre for the Borough and its 
status is reflected in the London Plan. Bromley is the only Metropolitan centre, serving 
a wide catchment area and offering a high level and range of shopping, employment, 
service, community and leisure functions. The centre has a night-time economy of 
regional/sub-regional importance and has the potential to accommodate a wider leisure 
and cultural offer.   
 
Metropolitan Centre (Bromley) 
 
Bromley is the largest retail centre in the Borough and caters for the wider community 
in terms of retailing and leisure opportunities. Bromley is currently ranked 34th in the 
top 50 CACI Retail Footprint Index. 
  
Major renewal of Bromley Town Centre is planned over the next 15years, supported by 
£5million of GLA funding. This will increase the town’s position in the retail rankings 
and provide an attractive environment for new businesses to locate. The historic core of 
Bromley North Village has also been identified through the Mayor’s Great Spaces as a 
public realm investment priority area. 
  
The Area Action Plan (AAP) for the town centre, which was adopted in 2010, is keen to 
ensure that Bromley continues to maintain its designated position in the retail hierarchy 
as a Metropolitan Town Centre and continue to make it a vibrant place where an 
increasing number of people want to live, work and shop. 
  
To maintain and enhance Bromley’s competitive position, the Council recognises that it 
is vitally important to invest in and improve the centre’s facilities, infrastructure and 
retail offer.  
 
Major Centre (Orpington) 
 
Orpington High Street and adjacent Walnuts Shopping Centre contain a wide selection 
of high-street shops. There is a general market located in front of Orpington College, 
three days a week. Several out-of-town retail parks are located along Sevenoaks Way, 
Court Road and Cray Avenue.  Knoll Rise is the main office location in Orpington and it 
is hoped this can continue to grow in the future. The Nugent Shopping Park comprises 
popular high street stores.  
  
District Centres (Beckenham, Crystal Palace, Penge, Petts Wood, West Wickham) 
 
The role and function of the Borough’s five District Centres changes from centre to 
centre.  Some centres have high footfalls during the day whilst some centres have 
strong evening economies.  
 
Beckenham High Street is the third largest town centre within the Borough and it has 
an important evening economy. Crystal Palace (the area is shared with four other 

Page 106



Working in Bromley 
93 

boroughs), Penge, Petts Wood and West Wickham all have a good mix of chain stores 
(including supermarkets) and independent shops as well as pubs and restaurants and 
community and leisure facilities.  
 
Neighbourhood & Local Centres Parades (Biggin Hill, Chislehurst, Hayes, 
Locksbottom, Mottingham) 
 
The large number of neighbourhood centres and local neighbourhood parades fulfil a 
vital need for many residents particularly those without access to the car or cannot 
access large shops for health related reasons. Neighbourhood and Local centres 
provide local services in sustainable locations. 
 
Individual Shops 
 
As well as the Metropolitan, Major, District & Local Centres, the Borough also has a 
wide variety of local shops serving mainly residential areas. These shops are 
particularly important in rural areas and for people unable to reach larger centres.  
 
Current Trends 
 
The British Retail Consortium (BRC) has recently published evidence that over one-in-
ten stores now stand empty on UK High Streets. The organisation’s latest survey pegs 
national vacancy rates at 11.3%, up 0.4% month-on-month and is the highest rate 
since the BRC started compiling the data in July 2001. Records from the Local Data 
Company show that Bromley is performing better than the national average with a 
vacancy rate of 10.1% compared with the Great Britain average of 14.4%. (Source: 
Local Data Company). 
 
 
Policy Background 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
The NPPF recognises that it is important that needs of retail, leisure and office and 
other main town centre uses are met in full and are not compromised by limited site 
availability. The NPPF makes clear that local planning authorities should therefore 
undertake an assessment of the need to expand town centres to ensure a sufficient 
supply of suitable sites and allocate appropriate edge of centre sites for main town 
centre uses that are well connected to the town centre, where suitable and viable town 
centres sites are not available.  
 
Local plans should define the extent of town centres and their primary shopping areas 
and set policies to define which uses will be permitted in such locations with the 
exception of Bromley which is already contained in the Area Action Plan (AAP). 
 
London Plan (2011) 
 
Table A2.1 of The London Plan (2011) identifies Bromley has having high growth and 
for promotion as a commercial location and for the potential for additional public 
transport capacity. All five of the Boroughs District Centres are identified as having 
‘medium’ growth where a moderate level of demand for retail, leisure/office are 
forecast. 
   

Page 107



Working in Bromley 
94 

The shopping hierarchy of the Borough’s network of town centres has evolved over a 
considerable period of time. The table below sets out the position of town centres within 
the Borough.  
 
Table 1: London Plan designations 
 

Metropolitan Centres – Bromley  
Major centres – Orpington  
District Centres – Beckenham, Crystal Palace, Penge, Petts Wood, West Wickham 

 
 

Local Issues and Evidence 
 
DTZ Retail, Office & Leisure Study (March 2012) 
  
A recent retail, office, leisure and office study undertaken by DTZ on behalf of the 
Council suggested there was room for additional retail floorspace in the years ahead. 
The larger town and district centres will act as the main focus for retailing, employment 
leisure and community facilities as well as housing as part of mixed use schemes. In all 
centres, it will be important that new development improves the streetscape and 
contributes to a high quality and accessible environment.  
The table below sets out the capacity of comparison and convenience goods in the 
years ahead based on currently forecasting. 
 
Net Additional Comparison Goods Floorspace Requirements (sqm) 
 
Centres 2016 2021 2026 

Beckenham 1,150 2,450 4,000 

Bromley 10,700 23,100 37,700 

Orpington 2,500 5,400 8,800 

Petts Wood 650 1,450 2,350 

Penge 1,100 2,400 3,900 

West Wickham 1,250 2,700 4,400 

 
Net Additional Convenience Goods Floorspace Requirements (sqm) 
 
Centres 2016 2021 2026 

Beckenham 700 900 1,100 

Bromley 1,100 1,350 1,600 

Orpington 300 500 700 

Petts Wood - - 50 

Penge - 50 150 

West Wickham 800 950 1,050 

 
Based on the comparison and convenience modelling carried out by DTZ there is 
capacity for growth in every Metropolitan, Major and District Centre based on current 
forecasts with the largest growth being in Bromley Town Centre. 
 
Local parades survey  
 
Bromley produces a Survey of Local Parade Shop Frontages every four years. The last 
publication covered the period July 2010-2011. The next publication is due to take 
place in 2014 and thereafter be produced on an annual basis. Summary tables and pie 

Page 108



Working in Bromley 
95 

charts detail the percentages of retail and non-retail uses for each of the 73 local 
centres.  
 
The retention and provision of small shopping parades and local shops will be 
promoted where they serve a local need. They can provide important and convenient 
facilities for ‘top up’ shopping and are of significant importance to those who have 
limited access to the larger centres across the Borough.      
 
Mary Portas Review 
 
The Portas Review: an independent review into the future of our high streets was 
published on the 13 December 2011. It set out what Mary Portas thought had led to the 
decline of the high street and made 28 recommendations about what could be done – 
by government, local authorities and business – to breathe life back into them.  In light 
of the Mary Portas report a working group has been set up within the Council to assess 
the recommendations and how they can be applied to the various town centres within 
the Borough. Many of the issues highlighted by the Portas report recommendations will 
be taken up via the various town centre management and business improvement 
district initiatives. 
 
 
Core Strategy Issues Document Responses 
 
Various options were put forward in the Core Strategy Issues Document 2011. The 
main responses from the Issues Consultation are summarised below:- 
 

• Retail should be diverse and include a mix of local and chain offerings i.e. not 
just fashion and clothing shops from the usual brands. 

• Include commitment to build and retain markets like the Thursday market in 
Bromley Town or the Friday and Saturday offerings in the High Street 

• The Council needs to look closer at areas for regeneration, e.g. shop closures in 
Petts Wood 

• Town Centres should be safe and welcoming all day or night. The behaviour of 
youths during the evenings and weekend will deter people from visiting the town 
centre. 

• All existing retail sites should seek to fulfil their potential, including through 
expansion or redevelopment. 

• Sustainable design and construction can add value to the local economy. 
 
 
 

Strategic Policy Options – Part 2: Town Centres 
 
(1) Making sure the Borough remains competitive relative to London and the 
South East  
 
Additional retail floorspace will help improve the retail offer in town centre and help 
Bromley complete more successfully with nearby shopping centres. Bluewater and 
Croydon are Bromley’s biggest competitors with Bluewater’s expenditure for 2011 
reaching £1,140million, Croydon £670million and Bromley £650 million. Bluewater has 
recently announced it is to increase the size of the centre’s retailing and catering 
facilities by approximately 35,000sqm. Bluewater is also considering expanding its 

Page 109



Working in Bromley 
96 

retail offer with an extension to its facilities. Croydon also has plans for redevelopment 
of the Whitgift Centre which will increase competition.  
 
Bromley has a retail turnover of £650 million and a broad catchment area to the south 
east of London, encompassing Sevenoaks and beyond. Major renewal of Bromley town 
centre is planned over the next 15 years, supported by £5 million of GLA funding. It is 
hoped that the boost in expenditure will increase the town’s position in the retail 
rankings and provide an attractive environment for businesses, workers and shoppers. 
 
Evidence produced for Bromley Council by CBRE shows that Bromley town centre 
dominates its own catchment, despite the presences of retail centres such as Croydon, 
the West End, Bluewater and Lakeside. Bromley retains 18.4% of market share from its 
catchment. This is particularly high given the level of competition across south London. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 95  
Focus new development in the Town Centres and only allow out of centre 
development where it meets the criteria set out in the NPPF.  

 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 96  
Consider the physical extent of the borough’s linear shopping centres and the 
role of primary and secondary frontages in supporting their competitiveness and 
role in the retail economy. 

 
 
(2) Bromley Metropolitan Centre 
 
Bromley’s function is primarily as a comparison goods shopping destination. The AAP 
sets out that the total retail floorspace of the town centre is approximately 115,200sqm 
including The Glades which comprises 40,700sqm and The Mall 10,780sqm. The 
development of Opportunity Site G (Churchill Place) will provide the qualitative 
expansion of the prime retail offer needed to ensure the centres long term 
competitiveness.  
 
The latest Retail Capacity Study (2012) concluded that Bromley could accommodate 
capacity for a further 10,700 sqm net of comparison floorspace at 2016; rising to about 
23,100 sqm by 2021 and 37,700sqm by 2026 if forecast trends occur.   
 
The Retail Policies for Bromley Town Centre are contained within the AAP which are 
still valid. Following a successful statutory challenge to quash the policy for  AAP 
Opportunity Site A (Bromley North Station) the Council has been ordered by the High 
Court  to prepare, publish, consult upon and promote an new policy  the OSA site in 
accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England 
Regulations 2004).  The key issues that need to be addressed in the reconsideration of 
the land use mix for the site included: Changes in national and regional  policy  
affecting plan making since the adoption of the AAP in October 2010;  An assessment 
of potential impact of an extension of the Dockland Light Railway south from Lewisham 
with a termination point at Bromley North; The future provision of offices floorspace; 
and the  provision of community facilities.  The review will afford the Council the 
opportunity to review with TfL and other transport operators  the future planning for 
Bromley North Station with regards to DLR/Tramlink options, alternative bus station 

Page 110



Working in Bromley 
97 

layouts, rail head parking and general interchange requirements. This is seen as crucial 
as much of the viability arguments have  been over the cost of the transport 
infrastructure dictating the level of the enabling housing development. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 97  
To revisit the contribution Opportunity Site A (OSA) from the BTC AAP can make 
to the development of Bromley Town Centre 

 
 
(3) Continue to develop and grow Orpington 
 
Public realm improvements for Orpington Town Centre which were completed in July 
2010. As part of the town centre improvements Orpington library has been successfully 
relocated into the Walnuts and a planning application was granted for a partial 
redevelopment of the Walnuts shopping centre to include a new 9 screen cinema with 
additional retail and additional restaurant uses. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 98  
Encourage a mix of new retailers and businesses to the area to improve the 
overall offer for shoppers. 

 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 99 
Encourage more independent shops to set up along with continental markets as 
set out in the NPPF and Mary Portas review 

 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 100  
Encourage the reuse of upper floors for both residential and commercial uses.  

 
 
(4) Ensuring the Vitality & Viability of the Borough’s Town Centres 
 
The leisure and evening economy has seen one of the largest growth areas in recent 
years and provides an opportunity for diversification of the range of activities in town 
centres. Bromley, Orpington & Beckenham have the largest provision of pubs, 
restaurants and leisure facilities. All of the other District and Local Centres also contain 
a proportion of these facilities which the Council wishes to maintain.  
 
In order to maintain the vitality and viability of town centres, government guidance 
recommends that retail floorspace is concentrated within the core of commercial 
locations and that other town centre uses such as leisure, offices and community 
facilities are allowed on the fringe of the core. 
     
The Council also wishes to continue to promote Bromley’s market as an essential part 
of the retail centre and encourage ancillary facilities. 
 
Housing in the town centre along with essential community facilities and leisure 
developments is also part and parcel of attracting a mix of uses to a town centre 
alongside further retail expansion. 
 
 

Page 111



Working in Bromley 
98 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 101 
Cluster restaurants, pubs and hot food takeaways where they will not harm the 
retail character of the shopping frontages and where they do not impact upon 
residential amenity in town centres. 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 102  
To protect the retail function and broader role of the District Centres 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 103 
Explore options of extending the recreational and leisure offer available in 
District Centres 

 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 104  
Define town centre boundaries for Metropolitan, Major and District Centres as per 
the requirements of the NPFF and London Plan 

 
 
(5) Ensuring an adequate supply of local shops and community services 
 
Bromley has 73 local neighbourhood parades which ensure a vital mix of services for 
local people. The majority of parades contain a mix of different Use Classes. The latest 
local parades review study shows that the majority of parades are performing well.  
 
Protecting retailing in core areas coupled with more flexibility in secondary areas is long 
established. The policies have been working well and are likely to be carried through to 
the new Local Plan. The local parades review study shows that the vast majority of 
parades are performing well.  The Borough’s town centres are relatively buoyant 
compared to other areas supporting a firm policy stance. Key frontages already contain 
established non-shop uses. A relaxation of policy would result in changes to the make-
up of centres resulting in fewer shops and an increase in other uses including pubs, 
restaurants and cafes. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION  105  
prevent vacant units from staying empty by allowing a variety of use classes 

 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

OPTION 106 
Aspire to maintain, promote and enhance all 73 local parades 

 

OPTION 107 
Remove local parade designations where all shop units are vacant or with non 
A1 use class 

 

Development Management Policies 
 
Indicative Development Management Policies will centre around the following topics:  
 

Page 112



Working in Bromley 
99 

Major, Metropolitan, Town Centres, District & Local Centres 
 
Primary Frontages & Secondary Frontages 
 
The Glades 
 
Local Neighbourhood Centres and Parades & Individual Shops 
 
Retail & Leisure Development 
 
Food & Drink Premises 
 
Re-use of upper floors above shops 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
100 

Environmental challenges      
 
 
More sustainable design and construction 
 
Introduction and background 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the general definition of 
sustainable development, and states the need for the planning system to contribute 
to the protection and enhancement of the environment by supporting the prudent use 
of natural resources and the move to a low carbon economy, amongst other tasks. It 
states that Local Authorities should set out local policies for tackling environmental 
issues including mitigating and adapting to a changing climate.  
 
In addition to individual policies requiring certain environmental standards to be met – 
water usage, carbon reduction, etc - The London Plan also sets out the general 
principles of sustainable design and construction. It expects that planning 
applications should include information about what steps have been taken to reduce 
the impacts of the proposal.  It suggests that boroughs may set local standards for 
sustainable design and construction using a nationally recognised assessment 
scheme, such as the Code for Sustainable Homes. 
 
Local issues and evidence 
 
The potential environmental impacts of development are an important consideration 
in any area, although the impacts themselves vary widely (equally, potential 
environmental impacts on development itself are also important).  One of the key 
issues in Bromley, like the rest of the South East of England, is the significant 
pressure on water supplies and there is a key priority to make the most efficient use 
of this precious resource. The Environment Agency figures show that the average 
consumption of water per day in the Borough is well above the target set in the 
London Plan so it is important that any new development helps reduce water 
consumption.  As well as issues of natural resources,   the impact on the health and 
wellbeing of people living in Bromley can be improved or degraded by the quality of 
development.  More sustainable design and construction needs to address potential 
problems of overheating, noise and air pollution to ensure more comfortable and 
healthy internal environments for both housing and commercial development. 
 
The London Borough of Bromley currently considers major development proposals 
against the London Plan’s sustainable design and construction policies.   There is 
high variability within the information submitted, partly due to the individual nature of 
each application and key aspects of more sustainable design which are not required 
under Building Regulations are often neglected. 
 
 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
To be cost-effective and feasible, sustainable design and construction measures 
needs to be considered from the outset of any development proposal rather than 

Page 114



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
101 

treated as an add-on once the design has been decided. Broadly, sustainable design 
and construction standards include measures to: 

• Reduce carbon dioxide emissions 

• Avoid internal overheating and contribution to the heat island effect 

• Make more efficient use of natural resources, including water 

• Minimise pollution 

• Minimise the generation of waste and increasing reuse and recycling 

• Reduce the impact of natural hazards such as flooding 

• Ensure developments are comfortable and secure for users 

• Use sustainable procurement 

• Promote and protect biodiversity 
 
Standards such as the Code for Sustainable Homes offer a way of measuring the 
likely impacts of these various aspects and publicly funded housing is already 
required to achieve a certain level (currently Level 4).  Although there is a cost 
involved in the assessment, it is a nationally recognised system with considerable 
flexibility.  Achieving a Code Level does not cover all possible environmental issues 
and it would not negate the need for the proposal to additionally consider other 
related policies such as a specific target of carbon reduction. 
 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 108 
Proposals for development should include details about how all aspects of 
sustainable design and construction have been taken into account (in, for 
example, their design and access statement) and explain how this will reduce 
the environmental impact of the development and ensure it is environmentally 
resilient. 

 

NEW OPTION 109 
Proposals for major developments should reach a specified level of a 
nationally recognised standard (for example, The Code for Sustainable Homes) 
to show how they have addressed sustainable design and construction. 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Energy and Carbon Management 
 
Introduction and background 
 
The Government and the GLA have highlighted the need for Local Authorities to 
tackle the challenge of increasing energy efficiency and reducing carbon emissions, 
with Planning having a key role to play.  The National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) emphasises this role, stating that Local Authorities should: 
 

• adopt proactive strategies to mitigate and adapt to a changing climate 

• actively support energy efficiency improvements to existing buildings, 

• maximise renewable energy and low carbon energy development while 
ensuring that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily 

• consider identifying suitable sites for renewable and low carbon energy 
sources 

Page 115



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
102 

• support community led initiatives for renewable and low carbon energy 
 
The London Plan 2011 states that all development should make the fullest 
contribution to the reduction of carbon emissions and as such Local Planning 
Authorities should include detailed policies and proposals in their LDFs/ Local Plans.  
It sets out an approach towards “zero carbon” development with a policy which 
expects major developments to achieve an additional 25% reduction in carbon 
emissions on top of Building Regulations.  This extra reduction steps up over time 
with the intention that all new residential developments should be “zero carbon” by 
2016 and all other development by 2019. (See London Plan Policy 5.2) 
 
The London Plan also prioritises the development of local energy networks where 
both heat and power can be supplied from a low or zero carbon source on site, or 
from an existing network nearby (see London Plan Policy 5.5, 5.6).  The policy 
requires developers to assess whether this kind of decentralised energy network 
might be appropriate to their proposal and to make provision for connections now or 
in the future.  
 
In order to help achieve the carbon reductions, it is expected that developments 
incorporate renewable energy where feasible, with an expectation that this would 
account for 20% of the carbon reduction.   The London Plan expects Boroughs to 
develop more detailed policies and proposals to support the development of 
renewable energy and in particular, to identify broad areas where specific renewable 
technologies are appropriate. 
 
Local issues and evidence  
 
The latest Government statistics demonstrate that Bromley is a higher than average 
per capita Carbon Dioxide emitter in the domestic sector at 2.5 tonnes per capita, 
indeed Bromley has the highest emissions of the London Boroughs.  Emissions from 
road transport are also above the London average due in part to areas with a 
relatively sparse public transport network.  Any new development should therefore 
ensure it does not put further pressure on the congested road network. 
 
 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
Levels of carbon reduction expected from development 
 
Currently, Bromley uses the policies in the London Plan which require residential 
developments of 10 units or more and other developments of 1000sqm or more (i.e. 
“major developments”) to reduce their carbon emissions by 25% more than the 
Building Regulations (this reduction increases over time as set out above).   
 
Whilst keeping in general conformity with the London Plan, it would be possible for 
the Borough to develop more detailed or localised policy on carbon reduction in new 
development.  A technical study would need to show what is likely to be feasible and 
financially viable in a range of development scenarios to provide evidence for such a 
localised policy.  
 

Page 116



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
103 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 110 
Major developments should achieve the minimum standards set out in the 
London Plan 

 

OPTION 111 
Local standards should be developed which respond to Bromley’s particular 
local circumstances 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Feasibility in different sizes and types of development 
 
In many cases, so-called “major” developments (10 residential units or more, 
1000sqm non-residential) are able to achieve the target of carbon reduction set out in 
the London Plan policy but in some circumstances it is not practically feasible.  The 
current policy takes account of feasibility and viability issues and these are 
addressed on an individual basis.  It is likely that a greater carbon reduction (i.e. 
above the building regulations) is possible in some non-major developments but 
there are currently no policy requirements for this to be investigated.  Where it is not 
practically possible to make reductions on-site, the London Plan suggests that a local 
policy may require an in-lieu payment to go towards reducing carbon through a 
scheme or project elsewhere.  This would necessitate the development of project(s) 
to which the payment could be made, possibly through a local CIL scheme. 
 

OPTION 112 
All new development should be screened for the feasibility and viability of 
additional carbon reductions above the level set in Building Regulations 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 113 
Major developments (10 units residential, 1000sqm non-residential or mixed 
use) should aim to achieve a minimum additional carbon reduction in line with 
the London Plan policy. 

 

OPTION 114 
Where additional carbon reduction is not possible on site, an in-lieu payment 
should be made towards carbon reduction off site 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Encouraging the development of local energy networks (decentralised energy 
schemes) 
 
Local energy networks can be a very efficient way of generating electricity and heat.  
Normally, large power stations lose the heat produced from the production of power 
but on a smaller scale this can be redirected through a network.  Although the 
Borough does not have the extensive local energy networks as in the denser parts of 
London, there are some existing small schemes and these periodically require 
refurbishment, upgrading or may be subject to redevelopment.   

Page 117



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
104 

 
Where development occurs and the proposed uses, or those nearby, indicate that a 
local energy network may be feasible, a new network could be established to provide 
more efficient and lower carbon energy and heat for that development and its 
neighbours.   Where other smaller scale development occurs, it may be possible for it 
to connect to an existing network. The London Plan requires boroughs to help 
identify and establish decentralised energy network opportunities.  Work has already 
taken place in the form of a “heat map” of the Borough which will help guide future 
development. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 115 
All new development should investigate whether it can connect to an existing, 
local energy network. 

 
QUESTION SET 1 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 116 
All major development should investigate the feasibility of establishing a new 
energy network or connect to and expand an existing network. 

 
QUESTION SET 1 

 
 
Incorporating renewable energy into new development 
 
Use of renewable energy provides a significant opportunity to reduce carbon 
emissions and increase energy security.  It can give householders and businesses 
the opportunity to reduce energy bills and can provide local employment 
opportunities.  It is usually most effective and financially viable to design the 
production of renewable energy into a development from the outset so it is an 
important inclusion in a planning application.  The London Plan has an expectation 
that all major developments seek to reduce carbon emissions by 20% by including 
on-site renewable energy generation wherever feasible.  Together with efficiency 
measures this can make a significant reduction in the overall carbon emissions of a 
development. 
 
Bromley has been applying the Mayor’s policy on renewable energy successfully on 
major developments across the Borough.  A range of solutions have been adopted 
including both electricity and hot water producing panels, biomass powered boilers 
and heat pumps in the ground or air.  When considered from the outset of a 
development proposal, these technologies have been successfully incorporated into 
the overall design without any additional impacts on the visual amenity. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 117 
All major developments should include renewable energy generation on-site to 
account for a minimum of 20% of the total carbon reduction. 

 
 
 

Page 118



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
105 

 

OPTION 118 
Where major developments cannot practically include renewable energy on-
site, a contribution should be made towards an agreed scheme of production 
off-site. 

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Improving environmental resilience 
 
Flood risk  
 
Managing and reducing flood risk now and in the future is another important 
environmental challenge.  The European Water Framework Directive sets the scene 
for improvements in flood risk management to which the UK have responded with 
several levels of policy and good practice.  The National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) technical guide includes the advice previously contained in Planning Policy 
Statement 25 (PPS 25) including the use of a sequential test when planning for 
development, to ensure that the most vulnerable land uses are appropriately sited. 
 
The London Plan reiterates that development proposals must comply with the flood 
risk assessment and management set out in National policy and respond to 
Catchment Flood Management Plans (i.e. plans which may cover several Local 
Authority areas).  Boroughs are advised to use Strategic Flood Risk Assessments to 
identify problem areas and develop actions and policy approaches to reducing risks. 
 
A key issue in flood risk management is that the impact of any land use change or 
development may not be obvious around the development itself, but may have a 
significant effect elsewhere.  This means that Flood Risk Assessments must 
demonstrate that the development does not exacerbate problems on site or 
downstream. Road and building configurations should ensure that any flow paths of 
flood water across the ground are maintained, or improved, and importantly not 
redirect the flow to other properties elsewhere.  
 
 
Local Issues and evidence 
  
The area covered by London Borough of Bromley has a number of challenges to 
meet when considering reducing flood risk. Flooding from rivers (fluvial flooding) is 
the main problem for some, while other areas suffer from occasional groundwater or 
surface water flooding – caused when heavy rain does not have time to soak into the 
ground.  Data from the Environment Agency allows the mapping of areas most likely 
to flood from different causes and this information can help plan for the location of 
any vulnerable development in the future and show opportunities for improving 
existing problem areas.  The Environment Agency states that in 2010 there were 
around 9000 properties at risk from flooding of some kind, although only 5% of these 
are considered to be at “significant risk”.  
 
Bromley completed a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) in 2008 and data 
from the Environment Agency is regularly updated, forming a useful starting point for 

Page 119



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
106 

the consideration of the location of development.  The Preliminary Flood Risk 
Assessment (PFRA) has also been completed, giving an overview of the Borough’s 
vulnerability to all forms of flooding.  It estimates that future flood risk is potentially 
“high” in the Borough.  Based on Drain London surface modelling outputs, it is 
estimated that approximately 20,410 properties could be at risk from flooding in a 
rainfall event with a 1 in 200 annual chance of occurring. 
 
Strategic Policy Options 
 
Flood Risk Assessments 
 
Information about the potential for a new development to cause flooding is essential 
in reducing its risks.  Below the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for the whole 
Borough, site specific Flood Risk Assessments should be submitted with proposals 
larger than 1 hectare in Flood Zone 1 (the zone least likely to flood), all proposals in 
Flood Zones 2 and 3, and also for those areas identified by the Bromley (as the Lead 
Local Flood Authority) as Critical Drainage Areas.  These areas will be identified in 
the forthcoming Local Flood Strategy. Flood risk may also occur in other situations 
but Risk Assessments are not mandatory in other locations. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 119 
Flood Risk Assessments should be required in areas identified in the NPPF 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 120 
Critical Drainage Areas should be expanded to include locations with locally 
identified flood risk issues. 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
 
Planning policy must ensure that new inappropriate new developments are prevented 
in areas at risk of surface water flooding and that any proposed development is 
directed away from areas that are at higher risk.  Where development is not 
inappropriate (i.e. it should not be in this location because of a risk of surface water 
flooding) a Flood Risk Assessment will show to what extent it may increase the risk 
of flooding.  Surface water management solutions can then be incorporated through 
the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS). These are site specific 
schemes to delay and reduce the amount of water leaving a site, involving “hard” 
engineering and/ or soft landscaping, with the ideal outcome of reducing run-off to 
the rate it would be generated by an undeveloped greenfield location.   
 
The London Plan states that developments should use SUDS unless there are 
practical reasons for not doing so, and presents a “drainage hierarchy “ of the basic 
techniques that should be used from rainwater storage for later use (the most 
desirable) down to rainwater going straight into the sewer (the least desirable).   
Currently, technical advice on SUDS is available from the Environment Agency and 

Page 120



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
107 

the construction industry but the wide range of scenarios and solutions can mean 
that in some cases the results are not well tailored to the site and are ineffective.  
Ongoing management of schemes is essential to their success.  
 
 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 121 
Require SUDS to follow the London Plan drainage hierarchy outlined in the 
London Plan or other latest guidance, and Environment Agency guidance 

 

OPTION 122 
Require SUDS that accord with locally established criteria to improve their 
effectiveness.  

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Overheating and Cooling 
 
The London Plan strongly encourages development that avoids internal overheating, 
excessive heat generation and contributes to the prevention of further overheating, 
especially where the urban heat island is most intense. The Plan also expects that 
development proposals should reduce reliance on air conditioning systems. 
Proposals should demonstrate how the design, materials, construction and operation 
of the development would minimise overheating and keep a building cool through 
active cooling measures. 
 
The ‘Urban Heat Island (UHI) Effect’ describes the increased temperature of urban 
and suburban air compared to the rural surroundings. The UHI is the result of the 
propensity of urban land surfaces, such as roads, buildings and pavements to absorb 
and retain more heat than rural areas. This can add up to 5-6°C to night-time 
temperatures which represents a significant danger to vulnerable people in times of 
heatwave. The north of the borough (and particularly the north-west) can already 
experience elevated temperatures because of the UHI effect and this situation is 
likely to be exacerbated by a) the changing climate and b) unsustainable 
development. It is therefore crucial that new development does not adversely 
increase the local UHI effect and is adapted suitably to remain thermally comfortable 
for residents (preferably without the use of artificial cooling). 
 

Page 121



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
108 

 
 
 
That LB Bromley has a large, growing elderly population, who are particularly 
vulnerable to heat-stress, means this issue of great local significance. 
 

 
Strategic Policy Options 
 

NEW PREFERRED OPTION 123 
Developers should address the risks associated with a changing climate, as 
highlighted in the NPPF, The London Plan and The Mayor’s Climate Change 
Adaptation Strategy, and investigate site-specific means of adapting to it. 

 

NEW OPTION 124 
Development should adhere to the design guidance published by The Mayor of 
London and the Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers aimed at 
reducing the risk of overheating in new development.  

 
QUESTION SET 3 

 
Waste management 
 
Introduction and Background 
 
The continuing challenge to deal with the waste we produce can be tackled in a 
number of ways.  Schemes to encourage people to reduce what they throw away and 
increase reuse and recycling can make a major contribution but space is still needed 

Page 122



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
109 

to deal with managing the remaining waste and disposing of it in the least 
environmentally damaging way, taking into account the impact of its transportation. 
 
National planning guidance on waste is still contained in PPS10 (which has not been 
superseded by the NPPF and is to be updated in a forthcoming National Waste 
Strategy) the focus of which is the waste hierarchy in which the most desirable option 
is to reduce waste, then reuse, recycle, produce energy from it and finally send it to 
landfill.   
 
The London Plan upholds this hierarchy and encourages waste to be seen as a 
resource to be exploited for benefit rather than a problem.  The options for dealing 
with waste are becoming more innovative and as more waste is separated at source, 
it can be reused and recycled more effectively.  Tackling biodegradable waste has 
become a key priority with a target of none of this waste going to landfill by 2031.   
 
In terms of land use, the London Plan focuses on increasing London’s capacity for 
managing waste to increase self sufficiency and it recognises that there is need for 
flexibility in light of changing methods of waste management. Each London Borough 
must allocate sufficient land and identify existing waste management facilities to 
provide capacity to manage the tonnages of waste apportioned in the London Plan.  
Boroughs can pool apportionment requirements.  Existing waste sites should be 
protected and used to the maximum, and if a site is lost an additional compensatory 
site provision will be required. 
 
Local issues and evidence 
 
As shown in the table below, the total amount of municipal waste produced in 
Bromley has been reducing and, importantly, so has the amount being sent to landfill.  
Increased recycling, incineration and composting have helped decrease the landfill 
quantity by almost 50% since 2007/8. 
 
(amounts in tonnes) 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Total municipal waste 
                          
165,251  

                
158,447        150,807        145,576        140,379  

Household waste 
                          
143,996  

                
137,214        132,076        126,992        120,325  

Landfill 
                            
70,206  

                  
63,596         56,625         48,265         36,967  

Incineration (waste to 
energy) 

                            
43,947  

                  
43,897         40,253         40,325         42,403  

Dry recycling 
                            
39,743  

                  
39,292         39,839         37,860         36,836  

Composting 
                             
9,837  

                  
10,604         13,301         18,453         23,329  

Inert waste 
                             
1,529  

                    
1,058              788              673              843  

Recycling rate 34.34% 36.36% 40.23% 44.34% 50% 

 
Bromley does not currently have any sites within the borough for disposal, 
reprocessing of refuse or recyclate.   Operationally, Bromley therefore sends the 
material to a variety of processors in London and surrounding counties. 
 

Page 123



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
110 

The mayor’s waste apportionment requirements (which are described in the London 
Plan) require each borough to provide specified capacity for waste management. 
Bromley meets this requirement through its membership of the South East London 
Waste Partnership Group, which pools the capacity from 5 south-east London 
boroughs. In order to show how the apportionment targets are being met, the group 
of Boroughs produce a frequently updated Technical Paper which shows the capacity 
of each site in their area and the overall tonnages against the Plan targets.  On the 
basis of this arrangement, Bromley does not have need of further capacity to meet 
the current London Plan target.   
 
In terms of municipal waste sites in Bromley, a waste Transfer Station is an integral 
element of the Household Waste Recycling Centres at Waldo Road and Churchfields 
Road. In addition, planning permission has been granted to a third party for an 
Anaerobic Digestion plant (which processes organic waste into biogas, electricity, 
heat and compost) in the south east of the borough. 
 
The introduction of a revised collection methodology in Bromley, incorporating 
separate weekly collection of food waste, means that the utilisation of this site by the 
council may be an attractive proposition. 
 
The Borough will continue to resist where possible the need for Bromley to be a 
through-route for waste disposal. 
 
Strategic options 
 
Waste management capacity 
 
The London Plan requires Boroughs to ensure that they retain and if possible 
increase their waste capacity.  Currently, Bromley is meeting its requirements 
through pooling resources with other Boroughs and so the priority is to maintain its 
current facilities.  It is acknowledged that whilst there are benefits in having the 
Waldo Road Depot in its current location in terms of waste collection, it also has 
limitations.  In a recent study, alternative sites were not found but should one come 
up in the future, relocation – which must retain all the efficiency benefits and capacity 
of the existing site – may be an option. 
 

PREFERRED OPTION 125  
Retain and designate all existing waste management sites 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 

PREFERRED OPTION 126 
Consider additional sites to increase capacity where feasible 

 
QUESTION SET 2 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
111 

Pollution control 
 
Introduction and background 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) acknowledges the importance of 
planning in creating secure and healthy places through the range of its different 
functions.  The location of development and its design and quality can influence the 
quality of the air, noise pollution, light pollution and the condition of the soils and 
groundwater. Whilst the planning system cannot tackle all aspects of pollution it has 
an important role in collaboration with other controls and regulations to protect the 
environment and human health. 
 
Having recognised the detrimental effect that it can have upon the health of the 
population, improving air quality is increasingly seen as a key environmental issue.  
The NPPF makes a number of references to air quality.  It states that planning 
policies enable compliance with and contribute towards EU air pollution limits or 
national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air Quality 
Management Areas and the cumulative impacts on air quality from individual sites in 
local areas. Planning decisions should ensure that any new development in Air 
Quality Management Areas is consistent with the local air quality action plan. 
 
At the regional level, the GLA recognises the importance of making the Capital a 
cleaner, healthier city and the London Plan states that Boroughs should have 
planning policies to help reduce pollutants and minimise public exposure.  Local 
Plans should include policies to help reduce particular air pollutants identified in the 
National Air Quality Strategy.  Similarly, the remediation of contaminated sites should 
be encouraged and local plans should set out policies to achieve this. 
 
In terms of noise pollution, the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions 
should aim to avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health 
and quality of life as a result of new development.  It should be recognised that while 
noise can have adverse impacts on health and quality of life, there is some 
development that cannot avoid creating noise. In these situations, existing 
businesses should not have unreasonable restrictions applied to them. Areas of 
tranquillity should be identified and protected to conserve their recreational and 
amenity value. 
 
The Noise Policy Statement England sets out a vision to promote good health and a 
good quality of life through the effective management of noise.  It introduces a 
method for assessing effects of noise based on a set of “effect levels” which relate to 
adverse effects on health.  This kind of criteria based assessment could be used to 
develop local standards and trigger the point at which mitigation may be required. 
 

Local issues and evidence 
 
Although not always obvious, pollution of the air, water and land are ongoing 
environmental issues in Bromley which planning can influence and help improve.  
Fortunately, the majority of recorded incidents of pollution are categorised as being 
“minor”, but between 2005 and 2010 there have been some more significant cases.    
As well as discrete incidents of pollution which can be linked to particular events and 

Page 125



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
112 

are usually limited in time, there are ongoing pollution issues such as air quality and 
contaminated land.   
 

The Borough periodically reviews and assessed air quality within its area as part of 
the Government's National Air Quality Strategy. National air quality objectives 
(AQOs) have been designated for:  

• Nitrogen dioxide (NO2)  
• Particulates  
• Carbon monoxide  
• Benzene  
• 1,3-Butadiene  
• Sulphur dioxide  
• Lead  
• Ozone 

Following extensive air quality modelling Bromley, like many other local authorities, 
declared an air quality management area (AQMA) in 2007. The AQMA covers the 
North and North West of the borough and is in response of predicted exceedance in 
nitrogen dioxide levels. In 2010 Bromley subsequently published an Air Quality 
Action Plan detailing actions to tackle the air quality exceedances.  
 
The demand for both new homes and protection of the open space means that 
previously used land – some of which will be contaminated – is the most developable 
area in Bromley.  Where contamination needs addressing, due diligence is very 
important to ensure any required remediation does not make the planned project 
unviable.  The old PPG23 required a Desk Study with any application where specific 
questions on the Planning Application are answered yes/no. The same guidance 
explained the requirements of each investigation stage as well as the roles of the 
regulator, developer and appointed consultant.  Local policies will need to build on 
this previous document and also take into account other available guidance so that 
there is transparency over what is expected of developments. 
 
 
Development Management policies 
 
- Submission of information about sustainable design and construction with a 

planning application 
- Submission of an energy assessment and strategy with a planning application 
- Consideration of decentralised energy networks for electricity, heating and cooling 
- Requirements for renewable energy 
- Recycling of materials 
- Control of the use of external cladding for increasing energy efficiency 
- Reducing overheating and the need for powered cooling 
- Inclusion of soft landscaping, green roofs and walls in and around developments 
- Use of shelters and shading in the public realm 
- Conservation of habitats, biodiversity and wildlife corridors 
- Development of new habitats 
- Use of water saving measures in new development to meet maximum standards 

Page 126



                                                                                                               

Environmental Challenges 
113 

 
- Requirement for Flood Risk Assessments 
- Use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes (SUDS) 
- Use of local CIL to contribute to larger flood risk and surface water management 

schemes 
 
- Existing waste management sites should be designated and retained 
- New waste management sites 
- Recycling of construction material and site waste management plans 
- Space for recycling in new development 
- Reparation of aggregate sites 
 
- Requirement for air quality assessments 
- Proposals for potentially polluting development 
- Reparation of contaminated land 
- Control of noise pollution 
- Ventilation 
- Control of light pollution 
- Hazardous substances 
- Protection of groundwater zones 
 
 

QUESTION SET 4 
 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is left intentionally blank



 
         Appendix C 
Consultation Questions 
 
The questions, as far as possible, are standardised to enable the analysis of the 
responses and assessment of the level of support for the vision and objectives, 
each of the Preferred Options, areas of concern and further issues or options 
that may require consideration.  
 
Four sets of questions have been developed and their position is indicated in 
the draft Options and Preferred Strategy document. The final on-line version will 
work as a questionnaire, with the questions embedded at the appropriate point, 
to be completed as the document, or sections of the document are read. Links 
to other relevant sections will help people navigate the document as a whole. 
 
Question set 1 - Vision and objectives 
 
After each vision and objectives: 
 
“Do you agree with the vision and objectives?  - yes/ no   
 
“Is there anything else that should be included?”  -box for comments 
 
Question set 2 - Strategic options where there are no alternatives 
 
After each Preferred Option and associated text: 
 
“Do you agree that the Preferred Option is the most appropriate approach to 
delivering the vision and objectives?”  - yes/ no  
 
“If you do not agree, are there any other strategic options that would be more 
appropriate?” – box for comments 
 
Question set 3 - Strategic policies with exclusive alternatives (either-or) 
 
After each set of alternatives: 
 
“Do you agree that the Preferred Option is the most appropriate approach to 
delivering the vision and objectives?” yes/ no  
 
“If you do not agree, is another of the identified options more appropriate?  If so, 
which one?”  - answer box  
 
“Are there any additional alternative strategic policies that should be 
considered? – box for comments 
 
Question set 4 – Catch all for missing elements 
 
At the end of each thematic chapter: 
 
“Are there any additional issues requiring strategic policies which should be 
included or any other comments?” – box for comments 
 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
RES13032 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: ITALIAN GARDENS AND GLADES TERRACE APPLICATION 
FOR REGISTRATION AS TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN 
 

Contact Officer: Marion Paine, Lawyer 
Tel: 020 8461 7647    E-mail:  Marion.Paine@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Director of Resources 

Ward: Bromley Town 

 
1. Reason for report 

 To update committee in relation to the submissions arising from the application for registration 
of the site as a Town or Village Green, report on specialist legal advice received from Counsel, 
and agree on the next steps required to process the application. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 That a Public Inquiry be held to recommend whether or not the site be registered as a 
Town or Village Green. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 131



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres:  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated to be under £40,000 
 

2. Ongoing costs: Non-Recurring Cost:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: 420030/2208 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £n/a 
 

5. Source of funding: Provision set aside for Queens Gardens Development within Legal Services 
revenue budget 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   currently and until work completed, one legal officer to 
advise Council in capacity as Registration Authority and one to advise Council in capacity as 
land owner. 

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   Difficult to estimate at this stage 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Difficult to project numbers   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 132



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

 3.1 The site comprises 2 areas adjacent to each other, namely the entrance terrace leading to 
The Glades shopping centre built on top of part of the car park of that centre, and secondly, the 
Italian Garden, which leads to Queens Gardens.  

 3.2 An application to have the site registered as a Town or Village Green (“The Application”), 
made on behalf of Bromley Civic Society and Friends of Bromley Town Parks and Gardens in 
terms of Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 (“The Act”) was received by the Council on 14th 
February 2012. 

 3.3 The Council is the owner of the site and Aviva Life and Pensions Ltd hold a long lease, 
whilst CSC Bromley Limited are their tenants in possession. When the Council acquired the site 
in 1986 using powers under the Town & Country Planning Act, it was acquired for the purpose 
of facilitating the development of The Glades. It has never been appropriated to any other 
purpose and therefore continues to be held for planning purposes. 

 3.4 By way of general background, prior to the receipt of The Application, a planning application 
for extending the development of The Glades shopping centre had been received and was due 
to be heard by Development Control Committee on 14th February 2012. This proposal involved 
the provision of built development over the site covered by The Application. The planning 
application was refused by the Committee, as was a subsequent planning application for an 
amended scheme. 

 3.5 The Council is the Registration Authority in Terms of The Act, which means that it has the 
ultimate responsibility for deciding whether or not the application should succeed. 

 3.6 For The Application to succeed, The Act requires the applicant to should be demonstrate 
that land which is capable of being registered, and on which a significant number of the 
inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in 
lawful sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years prior to the application. 

 3.7 In terms of The Act, the Council as Registration Authority is required to publicise the 
Application and to invite objections. This was done and objections were received from the 
Council in its capacity as landowner, Aviva Life and Pensions Ltd and CSC Bromley Ltd. These 
objections were notified to the Applicant, who responded with further observations. All relevant 
documents may be inspected on file by the Committee. 

 In summary, the objections were as follows: 

 3.7.1. There has not been a use for lawful sports and pastimes, 

 3.7.2. The use has not taken place for the requisite period of 20 years prior to the application, 

 3.7.3. The use has not been by a significant number of the inhabitants of a qualifying locality,  

 3.7.4. The use has not been “as of right”, and 

 3.7.5. The site is not land which is capable of being registered as a Town or Village Green, as it 
is held for planning purposes. 

 3.8 Whilst the Act provides that the Council as Registration Authority carries responsibility for 
the making of the decision as to whether The Application should succeed, the courts have 
supported the view that a realistic and transparent way for complex or disputed applications to 
be dealt with is to hold a public inquiry into the competing claims. Such an Inquiry would be held 

Page 133



  

4

before a barrister or similarly qualified person, who would then make a recommendation to the 
Council as to whether the application should succeed. 

 3.9 Given the position of the Council as Landowner and objector, and given that there is an 
argument that objections 3, 4 and 5 may be considered as preliminary points which, if 
adequately supported might suggest that the application could be rejected without recourse to 
further investigation, the advice of a barrister specialising in this field of law was sought. 

 3.10 The advice of that barrister is held on file and is not a public document, but may be 
inspected by members.  

 3.11 In essence, the advice is that these objections are not sufficient to reject the application 
without further consideration of evidence. The barrister was subsequently asked to confirm the 
advice in relation to point 5 in particular, and, in discussion, was robust in his view that the fact 
of the site being held for planning purposes was not neccessarily at odds with Town or Village 
Green status. This is supported by case law (in particular BDW Trading (t/a Barratt Homes) v 
Spooner in 2011) which states that land may be registered as a Town or Village Green 
notwithstnding that development may take place there. 

 3.12 The strong recommendation in the advice is that a Public Inquiry should take place where 
evidence in support of the opposing claims may be given and considered by an independent 
expert, who would then make recommendations to the Council as to the merits of the 
Application.   

4.    FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Cost of holding a public Inquiry 

5.     LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Covered in the body of the report 

6.    PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 2 legal officers to advise the Council in different capacities. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

The application, objections and response to objections may 
all be viewed on file. In addition, the legal opinion which was 
obtained from the specialist barrister may also be viewed by 
committee members, but this is a confidential document. 

 

Page 134



  

1

Report No. 
DRR13/025 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: APPEALS BY CAPITAL SHOPPING CENTRES LTD (CSC) 
AGAINST THE COUNCIL'S DECISION TO REFUSE PLANNING 
AND LISTED BUILDING CONSENT FOR DEVELOPMENT AT 
QUEEN'S GARDENS, BROMLEY 
 

Contact Officer: Jim Kehoe Deputy Chief Planner, Tel. 020 8313 4441 
Tony Stewart Development Control Manager,Tel: 020 8313 4956      
E-mail:  Jim.Kehoe@bromley.gov.uk, Tony.Stewart@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Director of Renewal & Recreation 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

This report seeks Members views at to whether the ground of refusal should be defended at 
appeal as drafted or amended as requested by the appellants. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

Members views are requested. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 135



  

2

 

Corporate Policy 
1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost Not known at this time 
 

2. Ongoing costs: Non-Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Central Contingency provision 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £150k 
 

5. Source of funding: Existing revenue budget for 2012/13 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 53 fte’s (excluding Building Control, Land Charges)   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 14 
____________________________________________________________________________
__ 

 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement Non-Statutory - Government Guidance None: 
Further Details 

 

2. Call-in: Applicable Not Applicable:  Further Details  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): several thousand 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 136



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 Development Control Committee on 28 June 2012 refused planning permission for an 
application for planning permission (12/01339) and consent for an application for listed building 
consent (12/01340).  Both applications related to a proposal to extend the Glades Shopping 
Centre by adding 5 restaurants and relocating the gates to Queen’s Gardens. 

3.2 The applicants (CSC) have confirmed that they intend to appeal against the refusal of 
permission and consent 

3.3 Their agents have written to the Council in a letter dated 10th December 2012 a copy of which is 
attached to this report.  In short they are asked that the Council withdraw the part of the reason 
for refusal highlighted in their letter – “and be detrimental to the amenities of residential 
properties in the vicinity of Queens Garden by reason of increased evening activity resulting in 
noise and disturbance”. 

3.4 In support of their request they make reference to a decision taken in February 2011 (ref. 
11/02466).  This concerned the use of land adjacent to Abbaye (now Belgo) in Queen’s 
Gardens for the installation of decking with umbrellas, lighting and fencing and use of the land 
for the placing of tables and chairs.  The main issues identified were the impact on the living 
conditions of the occupiers of flats near the site and the effect on the character of Queen’s 
Gardens which is in Bromley Town Conservation Area.  On the first issue the Inspector 
concluded that the level of disturbance was acceptable due to the town centre location.  On the 
second issue he also considered the proposal acceptable and granted permission. 

3.5 The appellants have pointed out that the Council is required to have evidence to substantiate 
each reason for refusal.  Their conclusion based on the nature of the development, the 
development plan allocation and no objection from the environmental health officer is that part 
of the ground of refusal “cannot be reasonably upheld”.  Should an Inspector concur that part of 
the ground of refusal is unreasonable an award of costs would be likely. 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Addressed in the report. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

A successful claim for costs against the Council could be expected if the appellants succeed in 
their appeal against refusal of permission.  It is not possible to put a figure to the level of costs. 
An amount of £150k is held in the central contingency as a provision for any potential costs that 
may be incurred for any planning appeals that are lost. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy and Personal Considerations 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Letter from Nathaniel Lichfield and Partners dated  
10 December 2012 

 

Page 137



Page 138

This page is left intentionally blank



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



  

1

Report No. 
DRR13/017 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 
Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT (AMR) 2011/12 
 

Contact officer  Louisa Bruce Senior Planner and Mary Manuel, Head of Planning Strategy 
and Projects 
Tel: 020 8313 4303    E-mail: Louisa.bruce@bromley.gov.uk  
mary.manuel@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Chief Planner 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report outlines the new requirement under the Localism Act 2011 (section 113) for  the 
Council to produce an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR)  setting out information on the plan 
making process, the progress and effectiveness of the Local Plan and the extent to which the 
planning policies set out in the Local Plan documents are being achieved.  

1.2 It highlights the main achievements of 2011/12 and includes as Appendix 1 the full AMR for 
Development Control Committee to consider and agree, after which it will be made available to 
residents and the wider community via the Council’s website to meet the Council’s 
responsibilities, 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That the Committee: 

Consider Appendix 1 in light of the Council’s duty under the Localism Act 2011 and agree 
it as the Council’s AMR for 2011/12. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 143



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People Excellent Council Quality Environment Safer Bromley 
Supporting Independence Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring Cost:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Planning 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £2.725m 
 

5. Source of funding: Existing Revenue Account 2012/13 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  76 Full-time 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:    
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Borough-wide  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:   
 

Page 144



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires all local authorities under section 113 to produce an Authorities 
Monitoring Report (AMR) . This should set out progress in the implementation of the Local 
Development Scheme, the progress and effectiveness of the Local Plan and the extent to which 
the policies set out in the Local Plan are being achieved. 

3.2 This replaces the previous requirement placed on the Council under the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to produce an Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the 
Department of Communities and Local Government by 31st December each year. 

3.3 The format of this first Authority Monitoring Report is similar to that of the previous Annual 
Monitoring Reports. However, as the Council is no longer required to use the specific indicators 
set out in Government guidance the report uses where appropriate more local indicators. The 
majority of indicators continue for consistency and to demonstrate progress. The main purpose 
of the new AMR is to inform residents and the  community of progress and the Council  can 
choose how this best done.  

3.4 The suggestion is that information on key indicators is brought together in a single report to 
DCC once a year but information that is available on a more regular basis, for instance town 
centre retail vacancies collected by town centre management is published routinely on the 
Council’s website. The full AMR will also be published on the website to meet the Council’s 
responsibility to publicise and make available the information to the local community in a cost 
effective manner. 

3.5 Section 2 of the AMR sets out the report highlights.  

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The AMR monitors progress against policies saved in the UDP and DPDs for Bromley together 
with progress in the plan making process. It highlights progress in delivering key elements of 
Bromley 2020, in particular, ‘Valued Environments’ and ‘thriving Town Centres’ . 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Financial and Personnel and Legal Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

The Localism Act 2011; 5yr Supply Paper (DCC June 2012) 

 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is left intentionally blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
FRAMEWORK 

 
AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT 
1

ST
 APRIL 2011 – 31

ST
 MARCH 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JANUARY 2013 

Page 147



 2

Contents Page 
 
 
 
Section           Page 
 
1.0 Introduction         3 
 
2.0 Report Highlights        5 
 
3.0 Development Plan Production       6 
 
4.0 Business Development and Town Centre Policies    8 
 
5.0 Housing Policies        13 

            
6.0 The Natural Environment Indicators      15 
 
7.0 The Built Environment Indicators      16 
 
8.0 Community Indicators        17 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Annex 1 – Section 106 agreements 2011-12      19 
    
Annex 2 – Saved and expired policies       31 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



 3

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) every local planning authority has a 

responsibility for reporting the extent to which the policies set out in local development plans 
are being achieved. To this end, Bromley Council has produced an AMR every year since 
2006.  

 
1.2 The Localism Act 2011 (and Town and Country Planning Regulations 2012) removes the 
 requirement for  local planning authorities to produce an Annual Monitoring Report for the 
 Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG). However, the Act retains the 
 overall duty to monitor the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and the 
 extent to which the policies set out in the Local Development Documents are being 
 achieved. For this reason the Council will continue to publish an AMR at least annually but 
 subsequent versions will take on a slightly different form. The Localism Act gives more 
 flexibility as to when and how often an AMR is prepared. The Council will now be  able to 
 choose which targets and indicators to include in the report. The Council may issue updated 
 AMR information from time to time.  

 
  
 Background 

 
1.3 This is the eighth Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report which has been 
 renamed and is now called the Local plan - Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR).  

 
1.4 The requirement for a local authority to produce an Authority Monitoring Report is set out in 
 Section 113 of the Localism Act 2011. The Act requires every authority to produce a series of 
 reports containing information on the implementation of the Local Development Scheme, the 
 progress and effectiveness of the Local Plan and the extent to which the planning policies set 
 out in the Local Plan documents are being achieved.  

 
1.5 Significant changes have occurred within the planning system over the past monitoring year, 
 with the replacement of Planning Policy Statements and Guidance with the National Planning 
 Policy Framework (NPPF) . In relation to monitoring the Government has announced the 
 withdrawal of a number of pieces of guidance, including the requirement for monitoring of 
 Core Output Indicators, as of 30

th
 March 2011. Further changes to monitoring guidance are 

 contained within the 2012 Local Planning Regulations.  
 
1.6 This AMR covers the period 1

st
 April 2011 to 31

st
 March 2012.  

 
 
 Bromley Profile 
 
1.7 Bromley makes up one of the 33 London Boroughs and is the largest geographically. With a 
 population of just over 306,000 in 2011 and an area of 64sq miles, Bromley has the fourth 
 highest population amongst the London Boroughs.  
 
1.8 The Borough occupies a strategic position in the South East of the Capital and South East 
 with rail connections to Central London and easy access to the M25 and National Rail 
 Network and major South East airports.  
 
1.9 Bromley is a distinctive part of London’s suburbs that is closely connected to London’s 
 economy and itself has one of the largest borough economies south of the Thames. Open 
 countryside, protected by the Green Belt that encircles London, makes up over half the 
 Borough. The areas of Green Belt in the Borough has many characterises in common with the 
 rural parts of Kent and Surrey.  
 
 
 Population Structure 
 

Population 1991 (Census) 294,723 

Population 2001 (Census) 295,532 

Population 2011 (Census) 306,361 

Page 149



 4

 Bromley’s Local Plan 
 
1.10 The term local plan has been introduced by the NPPF and the Local Planning Regulations 
 2012. A local plan is a document that contains policies on the development and use of land, 
 the allocations of sites for a particular type of use and development management and site 
 allocations policies.  
 
1.11 The London Borough of Bromley is in the process of replacing the saved policies from its 
 adopted Unitary Development Plan (2006) with a series of documents that are easier to use 
 and to update.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



 5

2.0 Report Highlights 
 
2.1 The highlights of the report are set out in two key sections, progress in the plan making 

progress outlined in the Local Development Scheme and the monitoring results from the 
saved policies within Bromley’s UDP and other core indicators.  

 
  
2.2 Key aspects of the Local Development Scheme: 
 

• Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan (adopted October 2010) continues its implementation. 
A development programme document for the delivery of the projects continues to be regularly 
updated. 

• Addendums to the two adopted Supplementary Planning Documents for ‘Affordable Housing’ 
and ‘Planning Obligations’ were agreed in Jan 2012 to reflect the new Government definition 
of ‘affordable rented housing’. 

• A substantial programme of public consultation on the Core Strategy Issues Document took 
place over the Summer of 2011 following the LDFAP and Executive’s endorsement of the 
local area profiles and thematic issues. The responses were reported to Development Control 
Committee, and in anticipation of the NPPF Members agreed that all further work should be 
appropriate to a Core Strategy or a broader Local Plan. 

 
 
2.3 Key findings of the Policy Progress Section: 
 

§ There is a continuing loss of employment land to other uses. The loss of employment land will 
require careful consideration and need to be set against a healthy supply of housing land.  

§ The number of vacant units in the Borough’s main town centres have remained largely 
unchanged.  

§ The number of homes built in the period 2011-12 was 547 units which exceeded the London 
Plan target of 500. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 151



 6

3.0 Development Plan Production 
 
3.1 The Council prepared a LDS in 2009 as required by Government, illustrating how the 
 preparation of the development plan documents  would be managed.  
 
3.2 The Council keeps under review the plan making process and timescales. The Government’s 
 recent planning reforms included a move from LDF’s to Local Plans. In linking with this 
 Bromley has moved from a Core Strategy as the central element of the LDF to the 
 preparation of a Local Plan.   
 
3.3 In line with government guidance the LDS is not being formally updated but its progress will 

continue to be reported and made available to the public.  
 
 
 Progress since April 2011 
 
3.4 There are central elements of the Local Development Scheme and Local Development 
 Framework that have been progressed this year with key documents, in particular the Core 
 Strategy Issues Document. This went out to public consultation for 3 months over the summer 
 of 2011. The scale of the work involved has been significantly greater than originally 
 anticipated and this contributes to the review of the overall LDF process, in particular the Core 
 Strategy, to ensure that it is delivered effectively within the current environment of major public 
 spending cuts impacting on the Council and other key partners. In light new regulations and 
 the publication of the NPPF in March 2012 the Council is preparing a Local Plan.  
 
 
 Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan 
 
3.5 Since the adoption of the Bromley Town Centre Area Action Plan in 2010 there has 
 been progress towards the delivery of the various opportunity sites and areas in accordance 
 with the Council’s Town Centre Development Programme.  
 
3.6 Site K (Bromley South Central) has been granted planning permission and the Bromley 
 North Village Improvement programme is expected to be implemented by Spring  2013. The 
 Council is also currently in the process of selecting a preferred development partner to deliver 
 Site G (Churchill Place)  and a proposed scheme is being considered for Site C (The Old 
 Town Hall). 
 
3.7 The following tables summarise the core and local indicators which have been assessed in 
 terms of their policy performance during the period 2011-12.  
 
 
Summary of performance – core output indicators 
 

Indicator 

Business development and town centre COIs 

BD1   Total amount of employment floorspace on previously developed land by type 

BD2 Floorspace on previously developed land 

BD3 Employment land available by type 

  

H1 Plan period housing targets 

H4 Gypsy & Traveller pitches 

H5 Gross affordable housing completions 

  

E1 Number of planning permissions granted contrary to Environment Agency advice on 
flooding and water quality grounds 

E3 Renewable energy generation 

  

W1 Capacity of new waste management facilities by waste planning authority 

W2 Amount of municipal waste arising and managed by waste planning authority 

 

Page 152



 7

 
Local indicators 
 

Local Policy Objective 1:  Vacancy rates in town centres  

Local Policy Objective 2:  Number of A1 uses in Primary Frontages 

Local Policy Objective 2:  To encourage energy efficiency and promote environmentally 
acceptable energy generation and use. 

Local Policy Objective 4:  Number of applications safeguarding or achieving the provision 
of services/facilities for the community 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153



 8

4.0 Business Development & Town Centres  
 
 
4.1 This section of the AMR reports on indicators in relation to employment land, retail and town 
 centres. 
 
4.2 The Borough’s main employment centres are Bromley Town Centre, Orpington, Beckenham, 
 Penge, Petts Wood and West Wickham. The main Business Areas are located within St.Mary 
 Cray, Lower Sydenham, Elmers End and Biggin Hill.  
 
4.3 Bromley Town Centre is the main location for the Borough’s office-based businesses.  
 
 

Indicator Core BD1: Total amount of additional 
floorspace – by type 

Current Position B1 = -8,913m2 net 
B2 = 0 
B8 = -1,217m2 net 

 
 

Indicator Core BD2: Total amount of employment 
floorspace on previously developed land by 
type 

Target 100%  

Progress/Target met 100% 

 
 
 

Indicator Core BD3: Employment land supply by type 

Current Position Total land designated Business use = 902,818.6 
sqm (land allocated with the UDP as Business 
Area). 

 
 
 
4.4 Bromley Town Centre and it’s surroundings are by far the largest centre of employment in the 
 Borough. There are nearly 26,000 jobs based in the area, about a quarter of all jobs in the 
 Borough. Orpington is also a significant employment and secondary office location and the 
 Borough’s second largest retail centre.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



 9

 
4.5 The Borough’s Town Centres continue to be important to attracting a wide range of residents 
 and visitors for shopping, cinema, theatre and restaurants. Bromley Metropolitan town centre 
 remains the Borough’s main shopping destination and also enjoys a healthy evening economy 
 with people visiting the Theatre, Pavilion (for leisure purposes), restaurants and bars.   
 
4.6 Orpington functions as a strong and vibrant Major centre, offering a good range of shopping, 
 leisure and public amenities. In September 2012 planning permission was granted for the 
 demolition of Crown House and erection of a 7 screen (950 seat) cinema, 3 x restaurants and 
 4 x retail units in the Walnuts Shopping Centre.  
 
4.7 Beckenham is the biggest of the five District Centres having a mixture of shops, restaurants, 
 supermarkets, night-club and bars. The London Plan also identifies Beckenham has having a 
 strong evening economy.  
 
Retail Hierarchy 
 

Centres Retail Hierarchy 

Bromley Metropolitan Centre 

Orpington Major Town Centre 

Beckenham 
Penge 
Petts Wood 
West Wickham 

District Centres 
 

Biggin Hill 
Chislehurst 
Hayes 
Locksbottom 
Mottingham 

Local Centres 

 
 
4.8 A network of smaller Local Centres and Neighbourhood Parades primarily offer convenience 
 and ‘top up’ shopping and services to their localities.   

4.9 Bromley produces a Survey of Shop Frontages every four years. The last publication covered 
 the period July 2010-2011. The next publication is due to take place in 2014 and thereafter be 
 produced on an annual basis. Summary tables and pie charts detail the percentages of retail 
 and non-retail uses for each of the 73 local centres.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



 10

Vacant shop premises 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source: Goad  

 
 
 
4.10 Given the current economic climate all three centres are still performing robustly in terms of 

vacant outlets compared to the national average.  
 
4.11 The Borough’s Town Centre Managers own recording of vacant units (which measures vacant 

upper as well as lower units) suggest that data held for Bromley in 2012 shows that the 
number of vacant units is slightly lower in compared with the data shown for GOAD for 2011.  

  
4.12 The table below shows recent trends in footfall in Bromley, Orpington and Beckenham town 
 centres. Pedestrian flows “footfall” are key indicators of the vitality of town centres. The 
 Council carries out footfall counts every December.  
 
 
 

Town Centre Data  

Bromley - December  

Year Footfall - December* 

2007-08 167,464 

2008-09 214,338 

2009-10 216,450 

2010-11 198,624 

2011-12 204,750 

2012-13 198,852 

  

*Bromley Footfall is a calculation of a Saturday & Sunday footfall combined 

 

 

Vacant Outlets in Bromley, Orpington & Beckenham Town Centres

39

38

43

30

30

34

37

14

19

20

18

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

26/10/2007

14/01/2009

01/07/2011

07/03/2007

02/07/2009

11/08/2010

19/03/2012

09/04/2008

11/12/2009

14/06/2011

23/05/2012

B
ro

m
le

y
O

rp
in

g
to

n
B

e
c
k

e
n

h
a

m

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e

Number of Vacant Units

Vacant Outlets

 

Page 156



 11

4.13 Another reason for the continued steady number of people in Bromley Town Centre is the 
 transfer of the Charter market which moved from Bromley North to the High Street in July 
 2012.   
 
 
Town Centre Footfall  
  

Orpington - December  

Year Footfall - December 

2007-08 48,435 

2008-09 60,984 

2009-10 39,336 

2010-11 24,084 

2011-2012 33,084 

2012-2013 42,468 

  
*Orpington Footfall for the period 2010-11 is considerably lower than 
the previous yr because of adverse weather conditions (i.e snow) on 
the day counting took place   

  

  

Town Centre Data  

Beckenham - December Footfall - December 

Year   

2007-08 25,260 

2008-09 18,966 

2009-10 26,304 

2010-11 No data 

2011-12 22,746 

2012-13 25,158 
 
 
4.14 In all three town centres footfall has risen slightly which shows visitors are continuing to 
 support the high street in what are challenging times for high streets nationally. Going forward 
 more sophisticated data will make pedestrian data more readily available in Bromley with
 automatic people counters, which have been installed at Marks & Spencer and Primark. It is 
 envisaged that more recent data will be released within the next 6 months.  
 
4.15 The data below measures the degree to which Class A1 uses predominate in the busiest parts 
 of the Borough’s town centres and use data from the latest GOAD maps.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



 12

 
A1 (shop) uses in core (primary) frontages 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.16 The above figures show that Bromley and Beckenham retained over 50% of shops A1 use 
 class within primary retail frontages for the period 2011-12 whilst Orpington is just slightly 
 below the target at 46.3%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Percentage of A1 (retail use) in Bromley Town Centre Primary Retail Frontages 
(High St only) 

 

Target   Retain over 50% of A1 units in primary retail frontage 
 
Current Position  69. 9% of units in core frontages A1 use  

 

Percentage of A1 (retail use) in Beckenham Town Centre 

 

Target   Retain over 50% of A1 units in primary retail frontage 
 
Current Position  63.3% of units in core frontages A1 use  

 

Percentage of A1 (retail use) in Orpington Town Centre 

 

Target   Retain over 50% of A1 units in primary retail frontage 
 
Current Position  46.3% of units in core frontages A1 use  

 

Page 158



 13

5.0 HOUSING 
 
 
5.1 The 2011 London Plan sets an annual monitoring target of 500 units per  annum for the period 
 2011/12-2020/21.   
 

Indicator  Core H1: Plan period and housing targets 

Target 500 units per annum  
2011/12-2021/22 = 5000 units (London Plan 
2011). 
 

Progress 547 net units completed (target met 2011-2012) 

 

 
Five year supply position  
 
5.2 The Council’s five year housing supply paper was updated by the Council in June 2012.   The 

paper was based on the current London Plan period of 2011/12 – 2021/22 to which the annual 
housing completion target of 500 units relates.  An estimate for 2011/12 completions of 500 
units was included in the paper.  Actual net completions have exceeded this estimate by 47 
units.    

 
5.3 The NPPF requires boroughs to demonstrate an additional 5% buffer in their five year supply 

documents that would increase the figure from 2453 to 2576 units.  The Council’s five year 
supply paper (June 2012) showed that there are over 2640 deliverable units in the pipeline 
and concluded that Bromley is able to meet its five year supply target. 

 
5.4 The Council’s five year supply paper will be formally updated at least on an annual basis and 
 represents the most current position on housing supply for the Borough. 
 
5.5 The total number of dwellings completed as affordable housing in the year 2011-12 was 213 
 units.   

 
 

Indicator  Core H4: Net additional pitches (Gypsy and 
Traveller)  

Target  The London Plan (2011) does not set borough 
targets, but requires in Policy 3.8 that local 
authorities ensure that the accommodation 
requirements of gypsies and travellers (including 
travelling show people) are identified and 
addressed in line with national policy, in co-
ordination with neighbouring boroughs and 
districts as appropriate. 

Progress/Target met  • The Council commenced work on an 
assessment of local need (as required by 
the Government’s Planning Policy for 
Traveller Sites, with a view to consultation 
through the Local Plan process). 

• The Planning Inspectorate upheld the 
Council’s decision to refuse a 
retrospective planning application July 
2011 in Cudham Lane (Archie’s Stables)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159



 14

 
Previous 2010-11 
 

Indicator  Core H4: Net additional pitches (Gypsy and Traveller)  

Target  The Draft London Plan (minor amendment Sept 2010) does 
not set borough targets, indicating that boroughs will be 
responsible for determining the right level of site provision, 
reflecting local need and historic demand and for bringing 
forward land in DPD’s.  

Progress/Target met  Temporary (5yr) permission was granted on appeal for 
Hockenden Lane  

Page 160



6.0 The Natural Environment  
 
 

Indicator Core E1 – Number of planning permissions 
granted contrary to Environment Agency 
advice on flooding and water quality grounds 

Current Position None 

 
 
 

Indicator  Local Policy Objective 2: To encourage 
energy efficiency and promote 
environmentally acceptable energy generation 
and use 

Current Position All major applications are required to include 
details of how the proposed development will 
meet or preferably exceed building regulations 

 
 
 

Indicator Core E3 – Renewable energy generation 

Current Position A reduction in CO2 emissions of 20% from (on-
site) renewable energy is expected from all major 
developments unless it is proven not to be 
feasible 

 
 
 

Indicator Core W1 – Capacity of new waste 
management facilities by waste planning 
authority 

Current Position No new facilities have been granted or completed 
within the reporting period 

 
 
 

Indicator Core W2: Amount of municipal waste arising 
and managed by type by waste planning 
authority 

Current Position Total municipal waste = 140,379 tonnes 
Household waste = 120,325 
Landfill = 36,967 
Incineration (waste to energy) = 42,403 
Dry recycling = 36,836 
Composting = 23,329 
Inert waste = 843 
Recycling rate =  50% 

 
 
 
6.1 In terms of core indicator W1, there were no changes in capacity made to the two Civic 
 Amenity sites (Churchfields Road, Penge and Waldo Road, Bromley). The London Plan 
 (2008) consolidated with alterations since 2004 has set a target of (Policy 4A.21) for London 
 to be 85% self sufficient in dealing with its waste by 2020 and the tonnage allocations required 
 by each borough to reflect this. All boroughs are required to set aside sufficient land to 
 manage this waste. In Bromley, existing waste management sites will be safeguarded through 
 the LDF process, with future provision being dealt with on a sub-regional basis.  
 
 
 

Page 161



 16

 
7.0 Built Environment 
 
 
7.1 During 2011/12,  505 applications were considered within conservation areas and 40 
 applications were received for listed building consents.  
 
7.2 The Council’s Advisory Panel for Conservation Areas (APCA) met on 12 occasions and 
 considered approximately 240 applications. A total of 815 address points are listed on the 
 statutory list with 2155 address points listed on the local list. 
 
7.3 Just over 9000 hectares of the Borough is Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land. It is 
 estimated that there is about 4 hectares of publicly accessible open space per 1000 
 population.  
 
7.4 152 applications were submitted in 2011/12 in respect of Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land 
 and Urban Open Space. 
 
7.5 Bromley is well served in terms of playing fields and outdoor recreation facilities. An audit of 
 playing pitches and open spaces (2003) confirmed that the Borough has a total of 488 pitches 
 of which 293 (60%) are secured for community use. At that time, the ratio of adult pitches per 
 1000 adults has 1:735, which was above that of all other London Boroughs and above the 
 estimated national average of 1:989 people. Based on the situation at that time, the audit 
 indicated that the Borough had a playing field standard of 0.9ha per 1000 population.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162



 17

8.0 Community  

 
8.1 Some 171 applications related to a range of community facilities were consider over the period 
 2011/12, including associated listed building and conservation area consents, variations, 
 renewals and material alterations.  
 
8.2 150 applications were permitted, the more significant of which are outlined below.  Around a 
 third of the applications involved minor enhancements such as new windows, the addition of 
 floodlighting and notably 12 applications relating to energy generation.  21 refusals for 
 applications relating to community facilities.  6 of the 8 applications which went to appeal were 
 subsequently allowed. 
 
             Health 
 
8.3 In respect of health sites, a condition was varied to allow 3 GP’s to practice at a surgery 
 previously limited to 1 GP, however 2 new consulting rooms at another GP surgery were 
 refused and another 2 GP surgeries, which had operated from converted dwelling houses, 
 were granted permission to revert to residential use when the doctors retired.  
 
8.4 Permission was granted for a consulting room in a pharmacy, reflecting the greater role 
 pharmacies are taking in providing care and advice regarding minor ailments.  Permissions 
 were granted for 2 additional dental surgeries, with extensions to 2 others. Whilst a learning 
 disability day centre reverted to a residential dwelling there was a new facility was permitted 
 and the change of use of another existing facility to enable its operation as a cafeteria run by 
 clients.  
 
  Education 
 
8.5 As has been apparent in recent years there is increasing pressure on school rolls, resulting in 
 13 permissions for additional classrooms and teaching space over the 2011/2012 period.  
 
8.6 The Primary School Development Plan Review (2010) concluded that there was likely to be a 
 need for an additional 7 forms of entry (210 places) by 2013.  The first of these “Basic Need” 
 additional classrooms involved permissions for 3 new modular units for the September 2011 
 intake at Parish, Royston and Valley Primary Schools.   
 
8.7 Pressure for space is also mounting in the secondary sector as schools make additional sixth 
 form provision. These pressures are being experienced across London and no objections 
 were raised to an additional 6 classrooms on a Croydon school site adjacent to the Borough 
 boundary.  
 
8.8 Whilst the number of applications relating to day nurseries is significantly down on last year 
 (which was inflated by numerous applications for canopies) permission was granted for a new 
 day nursery, whilst 2 existing day nurseries were extended and a third rebuilt. 
 
8.9 Other permissions include additional space at Riverside School for children with profound and 
 multiple learning difficulties (including Autistic Spectrum Disorder) and the extensions to a 
 Language College.  
 
8.10 Away from existing school sites proposals for educational uses are frequently refused on 
 residential amenity and highways grounds.  5 such proposed changes of use including 
 nurseries, music tuition and computer training centres were refused over the period 
 2011/2012, although of the 3 that were taken to appeal 2 were subsequently allowed.    
 
 Sports Recreation & Leisure 
 
8.11 11 permissions were granted to enhance open air sports and recreation, including 5 
 playgrounds, replacement cricket nets, stables, all weather football pitches and new pitchside 
 football shelters, new floodlit beach volleyball courts at Crystal Palace National Sports Centre 
 and the refurbishment of tennis courts at Croydon Road Recreation Ground and in Kings Hall 
 Road (former Cyphers Cricket Club). 

Page 163



 18

 
8.12 The majority of the sports and recreation facilities in the Borough are located in areas of 
 protected open space where built development is limited. Over the AMR period 13 
 applications for extended sports, recreation and leisure facilities were permitted, enhancing 
 the provision at Bromley Tennis Centre, Petts Wood Football Club, Sundridge Park Golf 
 Course, a Biggin Hill scout camp dormitory the Bromley & Downham Boys Club, 
 BeaverwoodLodge Sports And Leisure Club, Biggin Hill Squash Club, Cudham Recreation 
 Ground,  Kent House Road Allotment Gardens, renewal applications related to the 
 remodelling of golf and all-weather football facilities at World of Golf and an indoor cricket 
 training centre/ multi-function sports/ leisure facility, health and fitness centre and conference 
 centre at Kent County Cricket Club. 
 
8.13 The former Cyphers and Kent County Cricket Clubs lie within designated Metropolitan Open 
 Land.  The permitted schemes involved enabling residential development of 9 and 48 four/ five 
 bedroom dwellings respectively.  Whilst residential development is inappropriate in MOL the 
 need for enabling residential development was considered to constitute very special 
 circumstances. 
 
8.14 Leisure and recreation in Bromley Town Centre was enhanced by 2 permissions, allowing a 
 Gym to open at the Dreams Bed showroom site on Elmfield Road and a multi screen cinema 
 at Bromley South (Site K). 
 
8.15 3 applications to enhance facilities were refused over the 2011/2012 period 2 of which were 
 subsequently allowed on appeal for a small new gym / health club and enhancements to a golf 
 course and driving range.  Permission was also granted on appeal for the change of use from 
 a snooker club to residential flats. 
 
 Places of Worship 
 
8.16 New places of worship have difficulty in finding acceptable locations.  The only new facility 
 during the period having been for a retrospective use and allowed on appeal.  However where 
 faith uses had already been accepted, permission was granted to further extend a temporary 
 permission for Church use and for a revised design to a previously permitted cemetery chapel, 
 whilst on another site a cemetery was refused and dismissed on appeal.  Permissions were 
 granted on 9 existing places of worship for extensions or alterations to enable them to improve 
 disabled access and become more energy efficient.  
 
8.17 A redundant church was converted to residential flats and an application for a cemetery on 
 agricultural land, with single storey reception building and 70 car parking spaces was refused 
 and dismissed on appeal. 
 
 Specialist Accommodation 
 
8.18 Permission was granted for a new 84 bed care home in Pratts Bottom and applications for 
 extensions to provide additional bedrooms were permitted on 2 other sites providing elderly 
 accommodation.  Extensions to enhance the facilities were permitted on 3 sites and renewals 
 for extensions on a further 2 sites. 
 
8.19 Permissions were granted for the loss of a private care home and a housing association 
 sheltered housing scheme. 
 
8.20 Extensions were permitted to 24 bedrooms in a specialised secure residential young persons 
 centre, but permission was refused for the use as house in multiple occupation (HMO) 
 including 3 rooms on top floor for mother and baby occupation. 
 
 

Page 164



 19 

Appendices 
 
 
Annex 1 shows a list of all the S106 agreements agreed in 2011-12. 
 
 
Annex 2  A list of the saved & expired policies from the Local Plan  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



 20

 
 
 
 

290 11/02140 Kent County Cricket 
Ground 
Worsley Bridge Road 
Beckenham 

Kent County 
Cricket Club 

3 detached buildings for use as 
indoor cricket training centre/ multi-
function sports/ leisure facility, 
health and fitness centre and 
conference centre. Spectator stand 
for 2000-3000 people. Car parking. 
All weather/ floodlit pitches. 48 
detached houses OUTLINE 

Leander Sports 
and Leisure 
Limited 

24
th
 

March 
2012 

No part of the development shall 
be commended until an 
agreement to grant a lease for a 
period of not less than 20 years 
has been entered into with 
KCCC. No part of the 
development shall commence 
until details of matters reserved 
in condition 1 has been 
submitted and approved by the 
Council. A scheme for the 
construction of the Ground 
development shall be approved 
by the Council prior to the 
occupation of the first dwelling. 
No dwelling constructed after the 
27th dwelling shall be occupied 
until the Indoor Cricket facility 
has been completed. No dwelling 
constructed after the 36th 
dwelling shall be occupied until 
the all weather pitch has been 
completed. No dwelling 
constructed after the 44th 
dwelling shall be occupied until 
the spectator stand has been 
completed. The all weather 
pitches shall not be used until a 
scheme to make the pitches 
available for hire to the public 
have been submitted to and 
approved by the Council. To 
continue to make the Cricket 
ground and pavilion available for 
recreational use by KCCC for a 
period of 20 years from the date 
of this agreement. Prior to the 
occupation of the 48th dwelling 
to submit to the Council the 
terms of future maintenance of 

REST 
 
£300,000 sport 
facilities 
contribution 

Annex 1 – S106 agreements 2011-2012 

P
age 166



 21

the cricket ground, all weather 
pitch and the spectator stand for 
a period of 20 years. To pay the 
financial contribution of £300,000 
for the Council to use after 
consultation with Sport England 
to enhance or provide sports 
facilities, pay 18 months after the 
first occupation of the 36th 
dwellings or on the first 
occupation of the 48th dwelling, 
whichever date comes first. No 
development shall take place on 
the part of the site that is within 
2m of the Southern Boundary. 
Prior to the occupation of the 1st 
dwelling the owner shall write to 
the owners of properties on 
Worsley Bridge Road, Ashfield 
Close and Gainsborough Close 
with an offer to transfer the part 
of the 2m strip that is contiguous 
with the boundary of the 
properties. Repay any unspent 
funds within 5 years from the 
date of the agreement. 

289 
 
See also 
205 and 
279 

11/01687 
And 
11/01688 
 
 

Holy Trinity Convent 
School 
81 Plaistow Lane 
Bromley 
BR1 3LL 
 

Sister Jeanne 
Madeleine 
Timmins 
 
 

Extension of time limit to implement 
permission 06/02820 for demolition 
of existing school/ convent 
buildings and erection of four 2/3/4 
storey buildings for a total of 92 
residential units with surface and 
semi basement car parking 
comprising 157 parking spaces and 
landscaped and recreational area 
plus alterations to existing access 
 
Extension of time limit to implement 
permission 06/02747 for 
conversion of school/ convent to 12 
two bedroom and 4 three bedroom 
flats with communal recreational 
facilities and minor elevational 
alterations plus conversion of two 
storey gatehouse into 1 two 

Sister Annette 
Mireille Timmins 
Sister Josephine 
Patricia Mellett 
Sister Catherine 
Florence 
Sullivan 
Sister Benedicte 
Lecaillon 

29th 
March 
2012 

Owner shall make the PIL on 
either the first transfer of the 
housing land by the owner or 
upon implementation of the 
Permissions whichever occurs 
first. 
The PIL will be calculated by 
reference to the net sales 
proceeds. 
No part of the highways works 
shall be occupied until the 
highways works have been 
completed to the satisfaction of 
the Council. The Owner shall 
carry out the highways works at 
no cost to the Council. 
The Owner covenants with the 
Council to pay the health 
contribution to the Council when 

Payment in 
Lieu 
 
Woodland 
management 
scheme 

P
age 167



 22

bedroom and 1 one bedroom units 
together with conversion of single 
storey gatehouse into 1 one 
bedroom dwelling 

the PIL is due. 
The Health contribution shall only 
be payable if the net proceeds of 
sale exceed the sum of £13m 
and there being 108 units of 
accommodation assessed at the 
rate of £856 per unit. 
The Council agrees to repay any 
unspent sums within five years 
from the date of the agreement. 
The Owner shall submit a 
scheme for the MOL for the 
Councils approval – prior to 
implementing the scheme. 
The Owner shall submit a 
woodland management scheme 
for the Councils approval prior to 
implementing the scheme. 

288 09/03618 Compost Site On 
Land Off 
Cookham Road 
Swanley 

TJ Composting 
Services Ltd 

Composting facility buildings for 
reception of food and green waste, 
anaerobic digestion process, 
digestate maturation process and 
conversion of methane gas to 
electricity together with liquid feed 
tanks, bays/structures to store 
finished products, biofilters beds, 
car parking, improvements to 
existing secondary vehicular 
access and upgrading of existing 
hard surfaces (to replace existing 
open windrow composting facility). 

T J Composting 
Services Limited 
 
And 
 
National 
Westminster 
Bank PLC 

30
th
 

March 
2012 

Obligations relating to approved 
users of AD facility (see S106 for 
details) 

APPENDIX 1 

287 10/00237 
And 
10/03693 

World Of Golf 
Sidcup By Pass Road 
Chislehurst 
BR7 6RP 

Ashtour Ltd Remodelling and redevelopment of 
existing adventure golf course to 
provide upgraded 36 hole 
adventure golf course with 
structures, landscaping and cycle 
parking (amendment to scheme 
permitted under ref. 09/02949 to 
include new cave/waterfall and 
pump house rock structures) 
 
12 all weather 5 a side floodlit 
football pitches, 2 single storey 
buildings for changing rooms and 

Ashtour Ltd 
(World of Golf) 
 
And 
 
AIB Group PLC 

28th 
March 
2012 

Ashtour Ltd covenants to allow 
the school users to use the 
Adventure Golf Course free of 
charge as set out in the 
agreement. Ashtour Ltd 
covenants to allow the general 
users to use the all weather 
pitches as set out in the 
agreement. The use of the 
facilities for community use is 
subject to restrictions set out in 
agreement. 
UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING 

REST 

P
age 168



 23

cafe, adventure play area, 3 ponds 
and car parking area to increase 
number of spaces from 138 to 204 
(amendments to schemes 
permitted under refs. 08/02139 and 
09/01720 including revised 
locations for adventure play area, 
ponds, car parking and some of the 
pitches, and retention of existing 
clubhouse) 
 
 

286 11/03077 Arundel 
Berrys Hill 
Berrys Green 
Westerham 
TN16 3AE 

Mr Stephen 
Bridger 

Replacement two storey dwelling 
OUTLINE 

Stephen 
Graham Bridger 
& Laura Michelle 
Fitzpatrick 

21st 
March 
2012 

The existing buildings on the site 
shall be demolished and the site 
cleared within 3 months of the 
first occupation of the building 
permitted by planning permission 
11/03077/OUT 

REST 

285 11/00701 
 
 
 

H Smith Engineers Ltd 
Fordcroft Road 
Orpington 
BR5 2DB 
 

H Smith 
(Engineers) Ltd 
 
 

Demolition of existing buildings and 
erection of 2 two storey blocks 
comprising 8 two bedroom flats, 1 
three bedroom detached house, 2 
four bedroom semi-detached 
houses and 17 terraced houses (9 
two bedroom and 8 four bedroom) 
with 34 car parking spaces and 
estate road (houses to be two 
storey, four bedroom houses to 
have dormers/ accommodation in 
roof) OUTLINE 

Keith David 
Roshier, Andrew 
James Roshier 
and the executor 
of the late 
Donald Frank 
Roshier 
 
And  
 
Hyde Housing 
Association 
Limited 

30th 
March 
2012 
 
 
 

9 Affordable units 
The Owners agree to pay the 
Council the estimated costs of 
providing in the event that the 
Council resolves to carry out the 
footway works in the sum of 
£41,000 
 

9 affordable 
units 
 
£41,000 
Footway works 
 
 
 
 
  

284 11/03865 Multistorey Car Park 
Simpsons Road 
Shortlands 
Bromley 
 

Cathedral 
(Bromley) 
Limited 

Demolition of existing buildings and 
redevelopment with mixed use 
scheme comprising multi-screen 
cinema, 200 flats, 130 bedroom 
hotel, Class A3 units (restaurant 
and cafe) (Including1 unit for 
flexible class A1 (retail shop) Class 
A3 (restaurant and cafe) or Class 
A4 (drinking establishment) use), 
basement car parking, associated 
access arrangements (including 
bus parking), public realm works 
and ancillary development. 

Cathedral 
(Bromley) 
Limited 

27th 
March 
2012 

46 affordable housing units. To 
pay the car club contribution of 
£2,500 prior to the 
commencement of development, 
payment to be sent to Highway 
Authority by LPA. Developer can 
request refund of any unspent 
funds within 5 years from the 
payment date. Education 
contribution of £504,045,51 (see 
agreement for spending 
restrictions) to be paid prior to 
the occupation of any residential 

 
46 affordable 
housing 
 
 
£2,500 car 
club 
contribution 
 
£504,045.51 
Education 
contribution 
 

P
age 169



 24

units. The developer can request 
refund of any unspent payment  
5 years from the date of 
payment. Health contribution of 
£197,000 to be used on health 
care services in the vicinity. The 
developer can request refund of 
any unspent funds within 5 years 
from the date of payment. 
Payable prior to occupation of 
any residential units. Town 
centre contribution of £20,000 to 
be used towards pedestrian way 
finding with area covered by 
BTCAAP. Development shall not 
commence until the TCC has 
been paid. The developer can 
request a refund of any unspent 
funds within 5 years from the 
date of payment. To provide one 
oyster card (with £15 credit) per 
residential unit within 28 days of 
first occupation . Public toilets to 
be available for use by bus 
operators 24 hours a day. 
Affordable housing contribution 
up to a maximum of £7000,000 
in accordance with Development 
Agreement dated 27.03.2012. 
The developer can request a 
refund of any unspent funds 
within 5 years from the date of 
payment. Wheelchair housing 
contribution of £15,000 per unit 
where the design of the units 
cannot fully comply with SELHP 
standards. Provided to the local 
Planning Authority prior to 
commencement of development 
No interest to be accrued on 
sums paid 

£197,000 
health 
contribution 
 
£20,000 town 
centre 
contribution 
 
£700,000 
Affordable 
housing 
contribution 
 
£15,000 
Wheelchair 
housing 
contribution 
 

P
age 170



 25

283 12/00267 Lyridon 
The Drive 
Chislehurst 
BR7 6QS 

Modium 
Developments 

Four bedroom detached house with 
integral garage and three bedroom 
detached house with integral 
garage at land adjacent to Lyridon 

Modium 
Developments 
Limited 

16th 
March 
2012 

Not to commence the 
Development until the existing 
planting is removed from the site 
and the site is turfed. 
The land transfer will only be 
accepted once a Council officer 
has inspected to ensure 
adequate sitelines have been 
secured and works above 
completed. 
The owner will dedicate the site 
to the Council to become part of 
the highway maintained at public 
expense. 
The owner will transfer the site to 
the Council prior to the 
commencement date. 

REST 

282 
 
And 257 

10/01675 
 

Kelsey House 
2 Perry Hall Road 
Orpington 
BR6 0JJ 

Stonechart 
Property Ltd 

Three storey rear extension and 
rooftop stairwell extension and 
conversion of Kelsey House to 
provide 4 one bedroom, 11 two 
bedroom and 6 three bedroom flats 
and erection of three storey block 
comprising 3 one bedroom, 3 two 
bedroom and 3 three bedroom flats 
with 32 car parking spaces and 
associated bicycle parking and 
refuse storage 

Town and 
country housing 
group 

21st 
February 
2012 

Include “Affordable rented 
housing” into definition of 
affordable housing 
DEED OF VARIATION 

None 

281 
 
And 
 
263 

11/01808/F
ULL1 

195 - 199 High Street 
Bromley 
BR1 1NN 

Mr Fadil Adil Demolition of existing building and 
erection of 3 storey building 
comprising; 2 ground floor units, 
Unit 1 for retail, financial and 
professional services (Classes 
A1/A2) and Unit 2 for retail, 
financial and professional services 
and restaurant and cafes (Classes 
A1/A2/A3) and 4 two bedroom flats 
on 1st floor and 2 two bedroom and 
2 one bedroom flats on 2nd floor 
with rear terrace facing Walters 
Yard 

Mustafa Adil and 
Fadil Adil 
 
And 
 
Bank Of Cyprus 
Public Company 
Limited 

7th 
February 
2012 

Amended wording in the 
definitions to incorporate 
application ref. 11/01808 relating 
to car parking permit restrictions  
DEED OF VARIATION 

REST 

P
age 171



 26

280 11/02619 
 
(original) 
94/0016 

90 Upper Elmers End 
Road 
Beckenham 
BR3 3DY 

Dixon Law 
Solicitors 

Modification of legal agreement 
attached to permission 94/0016, for 
a replacement detached single 
storey workshop building, to 
permanently bind the workshop to 
90A Upper Elmers End Road and 
to continue its use for purposes 
ancillary to the use of 90A as a 
residential premises. 

Simon Clive 
Harris 

21st 
November 
2011 

Amendment to definitions and 
schedule paragraphs regarding 
subdivision of units 90 and 90A 
and numbering 
DEED OF VARIATION 

None 

278 
 
And 
 
214, 
223, 
248 

09/02881 
 
(details of 
08/01690) 

Anerley School For 
Boys 
Versailles Road 
London 
SE20 8AX 

Goldcrest 
Homes 
(Piccadilly) Ltd 

Four storey block with basement 
car park for 33 cars (and bicycle 
and motorcycle parking) (Block D) 
and four storey block comprising 
88 flats (32 one bedroom, 37 two 
bedroom and 19 three bedroom) 
and 23 surface car parking spaces 
and formation of  vehicular and 
pedestrian access (details of 
appearance, scale, landscaping 
pursuant to condition 1 of outline 
permission ref 08/01690 granted 
on appeal) details of outline pp 
08/0169) 

Taylor Wimpey 
UK Limited  

21st 
December 
2011 

Add “Affordable rented Housing” 
to definitions and amended 
Affordable housing units 32 total 
(comprising 16x3 bed 
apartments and 16x2 bed 
apartments) 
DEED OF VARIATION  

None 
 
Health  
88x861= 
75768 
 
Education 
91176 

276 11/02960 Home Farm 
Kemnal Road 
Chislehurst 
BR7 6LY 

Mrs P Selby And 
Mr O Ertosun 

Detached five bedroom house with 
curtilage, 5 car parking spaces and 
removal of access drive 

Pauline selby 
And 
Osman Ertosun 
 

7th 
February 
2012 

For the developer to carry out the 
Footpath Works within three 
months of the Planning 
Permission being issued. To give 
the Council 14 days advance 
notice in writing of the 
commencement of development. 
Subject to having commenced 
development, not to construct a 
detached house on the Foxbury 
Manor land pursuant to 2004 
planning permission. 

REST 

275 10/02964 57 Albemarle Road 
Beckenham 
BR3 5HL 

Mr And Mrs Ng Demolition of Nos 57 and 57b and 
erection of three/four storey block 
with accommodation in roof space 
comprising 1 one bedroom, 18 two 
bedroom and 2 three bedroom flats 
with 21 car parking spaces 

Mr Chee Khoon 
Ng and Mrs 
Maria Fuente Ng 
 
And 
 
Kingstone 
Property Limited 

7th 
February 
2012 

7 Affordable units 7 units 

P
age 172



 27

274 11/00563 Denton Court 
60 Birch Row 
Bromley 
BR2 8DX 

Broomleigh 
Housing 
Association 

Demolition of existing sheltered 
housing accommodation and 
erection of 4 semi-detached and 23 
terraced two storey houses (4 
including accommodation in roof) 
(13 two bedroom, 12 three 
bedroom and 2 four bedroom), with 
40 car parking spaces 

Affinity Sutton 
Homes Limited 

16th 
November 
2011 

10 affordable units, 2 of these 
units will be designed for 
wheelchair users. 
The owner covenants to pay the 
health contribution of £40,797 
and education contribution of 
£205,230.62 to the Council within 
14 days of the completion of the 
first sale of any market dwelling. 
No time limit on spend. 

10 affordable 
units 
 
Health 
contribution 
£40,797 
 
Education 
contribution 
£205,230.62 

272 07/03245 1 Napier Road 
Bromley 
BR2 9JA 

Planwood 
Properties Ltd 

Demolition of existing public house 
and erection of two storey block 
with accommodation in roof 
comprising 4 two bedroom flats 
and 2 one bedroom flats with 5 
parking spaces/cycle and bin store 

Planwood 
Properties 
Limited 

18th 
October 
2011 

Residents will not be able to 
apply for a parking permit. 

REST 

271 11/01989 
 
11/01994/L
BC 

Sundridge Park Manor 
Willoughby Lane 
Bromley 
BR1 3FZ 

Cathedral 
(Sundridge) Ltd 

Partial demolition/external 
alterations and two storey rear 
extension with basement and 
surface car parking and change of 
use of Mansion and The Cottage 
from hotel to 13 two bedroom and 
1 three bedroom flats 

Cathedral 
(Sundridge) 
Limited 
 
And 
 
Bank of Scotland 
PLC 

26th 
October 
2011 

The owner to pay £13,000) per 
annum for 5 years (totalling 
£65,000) to the council for the 
maintenance of the woodland 
and rockery area within 7 days 
from the date of first occupation. 
The Council will forward this 
annual contribution to the 
management company 
responsible for the maintenance 
within 28 days of the receipt by 
the Council.  

No gain to 
council  but 
money must 
come to us first 

270 10/03698 Alkham Tower 
(and Horton Tower) 
Bapchild Place 
Orpington 
BR5 3PL 

Broomleigh 
Housing Assoc. 

Demolition of 2 fifteen storey 
blocks and erection of 3 three/ four 
storey and 2 six seven storey 
blocks comprising 19 one 
bedroom, 57 two bedroom and 14 
three bedroom dwellings with 94 
basement and open car parking 
spaces, bicycle parking, refuse/ 
recycling storage, childrens play 
area and landscaping 

Affinity Sutton 
Homes Limited 

28th 
October 
2011 

10 Affordable units, 1 of these 
units needs to be a wheelchair 
accessible unit. 

10 affordable 
units 

P
age 173



 28

269 10/03407 89 Kings Hall Road 
Beckenham 
BR3 1LP 

Octave Homes 8 semi-detached three storey 
four/five bedroom houses and 1 
detached three storey four/ five 
bedroom house with 18 car parking 
spaces. Reinstatement of 4 tennis 
courts, and formation of vehicular 
access and car park for 8 cars to 
serve the courts 

Waterside 
Trading Limited 

31st 
October 
2011 

Within 2 months of the first 
occupation of the development 
the owner will transfer the land 
outlined in red on plan B to the 
council.  
Open land maintenance 
contribution £157,500 due on or 
before first occupation of the 
fourth house towards the on-
going maintenance of the open 
land and tennis courts by the 
Council’s Parks and Greenspace 
Department. 
 

£157,500 open 
land 
maintenance 
contribution 

268 
 
And 238 

11/02101 37 Ridsdale Road 
Penge 
London 
SE20 8AE 
 
(Community Centre 
Castledine Road) 

Affinity Sutton Variation of the wording of 
condition 28 (community centre 
management plan) relating to 
permission ref. 09/01791 granted 
for the erection of two buildings to 
provide 22 flats, 1 house, a 
replacement community centre and 
an all weather multi-use games 
area to implement the community 
centre management plan prior to 
the occupation of the use of the 
development 

Affinity Sutton 
Homes Limited 

25th 
October 
2011 

Variation of condition 28 
DEED OF VARIATION 

 

267 10/03086 Invicta Works 
Chalk Pit Avenue 
Orpington 
BR5 3JQ 

Asprey Homes 
And Apex 
Orpington 

4 two storey and 3 two/three storey 
blocks comprising 6 two bedroom 
and 25 three bedroom houses and 
6 one bedroom and 2 two bedroom 
flats with 3 garages and 55 car 
parking spaces, bicycle parking, 
refuse/recycling storage and 
electricity substation 

Apex Orpington 
Limited 
And 
Asprey Homes 
Limited 

30th June 
2011 

Affordable housing contribution 
£175,000. Not to permit 
occupation of any dwelling until 
one third of the affordable 
housing contribution shall have 
been paid to the Council. To pay 
the remainder of affordable 
housing contribution within 28 
days of the revaluation date or 
on 1st anniversary of the first 
payment, if earlier. To undertake 
a revaluation of the development 
within 28 days of the date on 
which the final dwellings is sold. 
If the valuation shows an excess 
margin, additional funds to be 
sought; if there is no excess 
margin no further payment is due 

Affordable 
housing 
contribution 
£175,000 
 
REST 

P
age 174



 29

(see S106 for details) (5 years 
from date of receipt plus interest) 

266 10/02308 Sundridge Park 
Management Centre 
Ltd 
Plaistow Lane 
Bromley 
BR1 3TP 

Millgate 
Developments 
Limited 

Four/ five storey building 
comprising 20 two bedroom, 41 
three bedroom and 6 four bedroom 
dwellings and including basement 
car parking, garage block for 5 cars 
and single storey building 
comprising health spa for residents' 
use with tennis court on roof 
 
(former Butten Building) 

Apex Orpington 
Limited 
And 
Asprey Homes 
Limited 

2nd 
Septembe
r 2011 

Affordable housing contribution 
£2,021,000 
The owner covenants to pay one 
third of the affordable housing 
contribution within 14 days of the 
implementation date. 
To pay one third of the affordable 
housing contribution either 18 
months after the implementation 
date or when 50% of the units 
are occupied –whichever is the 
earliest. 
To pay one third of the affordable 
housing contribution either 24 
months after the implementation 
date or when all of the units are 
occupied – whichever is the 
earliest. 
Education contribution £75,000.  
The owner covenants to pay half 
of the education contribution 
either 18 months after the 
implementation date or when 
50% of the units are occupied – 
whichever is the earliest. 
To pay half of the education 
contribution either 24 months 
after the implementation date or 
when all the units are occupied. 
The Council covenants to repay 
any unspent funds and interest 5 
years after the date of the final 
payment. 
Within 14 days of the 
implementation date to realign 
part of the picket fence and 
remove the conference centre 
sign board. 

Affordable 
housing 
contribution 
£2,021,000 
 
 
Education 
contribution 
£75,000.  
 

P
age 175



 30

265 
(see 
also 102 
and 138)  

02/02736 Site Known As 
Quilter Gardens 
Orpington 
Kent 
BR5 4NA 

Broomleigh 
Housing 
Association 

Mixed two, three and four storey 
redevelopment comprising erection 
of 103 dwellings (including 4 four 
bedroom, 1 three bedroom and 3 
two bedroom houses between 77 
and 91 Tintagel road; 8 two 
bedroom houses, 10 three 
bedroom houses, 8 four bedroom 
houses, 12 one bedroom flats and 
24 two bedroom flats on site of 3 to 
49 Quilter Gardens; 9 one bedroom 
flats and 24 two bedroom flats on 
site of 1,2 and 43 Quilter Gardens 
and 64 - 66 Tintagel Road 
(Buster's); 89 associated car 
parking spaces, formation of new 
road between Rye Crescent and 
Tintagel road, play area, and 
community centre adjacent to Hart 
Dyke Road and Birchington Close 
PART OUTLINE (Phase One) 
(Indicative Master Plan for estate 
included for information) 

Broomleigh 
Housing 
Association 
Limited 

10th 
August 
2011 

£333,000 to be paid by the 
owner to the Priory School 
Project towards the construction 
of the approved community 
centre at the priory school 
project. The remaining sums up 
to the total agreed contribution 
will be paid by the owner directly 
to the Priory school project 
DEED OF VARIATION 
 
Note – no application received 
but money secured by Deed of 
Variation to implement 
community centre approved 
under 08/02270 at Priory School. 
Site left by non-implementation 
of community centre on this 
application vacant (Nov 2011) 

None 

264 10/02031 Cannock House Day 
Nursery 
Hawstead Lane 
Orpington 
BR6 7PH 

Child Base Ltd Demolition of existing nursery 
buildings and erection of detached 
single storey nursery building with 
associated play areas, car parking, 
cycle parking and refuse store. 

James Edward 
Hummerson and 
Janic Muraille 
And 
Childbase 
Limited 

1st July 
2011 

Within six months of the first 
occupation of the building, the 
existing nursery buildings shall 
be demolished by the developer, 
identified on the plan. 
The developer will repair to a 
reasonable standard the existing 
wall between points A and B on 
the plan within 6 months of the 
demolition of the existing nursery 
buildings. 

REST 

263 10/03011 195 - 199 High Street 
Bromley 
BR1 1NN 

Mr Fadil Adil Part first and second storey 
extension with mansard roof to 
provide 4 two bedroom on first floor 
and 2 two bedroom  and 2 one 
bedroom flats on second floor with 
rear terraces facing Walters Yard. 

Mustafa Adil 
And 
Fadil Adil 
And 
Bank of Cyprus 
Public Company 
Limited 

31st May 
2011 

The owners will not be able to 
apply for a parking permit 

REST 

 
 

P
age 176



 31

Annex 2  
 
Expired policies 
  
 

H5 Accessible Housing 

BE6 Environmental Improvements 

NE10 Hedgerow retention 

NE13 Green Corridors 

EMP9 Vacant Commercial Sites and Premises 

EMP10 Advice for Business 

S14 Pedestrian Environment 

C3 Access to Buildings for People with disabilities 

ER1 Waste Management Principles 

ER3 Promoting Recycling 

ER4 Sustainable and Energy Efficient Development 

ER5 Air Quality 

ER6 Potentially Polluting Development 

ER8 Noise Pollution 

ER12 Controlling Development in Flood Risk Areas 

ER13 Foul and Surface Water Discharge from 
Development 

ER14 Surface and Ground Water Quality 

ER15 Conservation of Water Resources 

 
 
 
Saved policies 
 
 
Housing policies 
 

H1 Housing Supply 

H2 Affordable Housing 

P
age 177



 32

H3 Affordable Housing – payment in lieu 

H4 Supported Housing 

H6 Gypsies and Travelling Show People 

H7 Housing Density and Design 

H8 Residential Extensions 

H9 Side Space 

H10 Areas of Special Residential Character 

H11 Residential Conversions  

H12 Conversion of Non-Residential Buildings to 
Residential Use 

H13 Parking of Commercial Vehicles 

 
 
Transport policies 
 

T1 Transport Demand 

T2 Assessment of Transport Effects 

T3 Parking 

T4 Park and Ride 

T5 Access for People with Restricted Mobility 

T6 Pedestrians 

T7 Cyclists 

T8 Other Road Users 

T9 Public Transport 

T10 Public Transport 

T11 New Accesses 

T12 Residential Roads 

T13 Unmade Roads 

T14 Unadopted Highways 

T15 Traffic Management 

T16 Traffic Management and Sensitive 
Environments 

T17 Servicing of Premises 

T18 Road Safety 

P
age 178



 33

Conservation and the Built Environment  
 

BE1 Design of New Development 

BE2 Mixed Use Development 

BE3 Buildings in Rural Areas 

BE4 Public Realm 

BE5 Public Art 

BE7 Railings, Boundary Walls and Other Means 
of Enclosure 

BE8 Statutory Listed Buildings 

BE9 Demolition of a listed building 

BE10 Locally Listed Buildings 

BE11 Conservation Areas 

BE12 Demolition in conservation areas 

BE13 Development adjacent to a conservation area 

BE14 Trees in Conservation Areas 

BE15 Historic Parks and Gardens 

BE16 Ancient Monuments and Archaeology 

BE17 High Buildings 

BE18 The Skyline 

BE19 Shopfronts 

BE20 Security Shutters 

BE21 Control of Advertisements, Hoardings and 
Signs 

BE22 Telecommunications Apparatus 

BE23 Satellite Dishes 

 
 
The Natural Environment 
 

NE1 Development and SSSIs 

NE2 Development and Nature Conservation Sites 

NE3 Nature Conservation and Development 

NE4 Additional Nature Conservation Sites 

P
age 179



 34

NE5 Protected Species 

NE6 World Heritage Site 

NE7 Development and Trees 

NE8 Conservation and Management of Trees and 
Woodlands 

NE9 Hedgerows and Development 

NE11 Kent North Downs Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty 

NE12 Landscape Quality and Character 

 
 
Green Belt and Open Space 
 

G1 The Green Belt 

G2 Metropolitan Open Land 

G3 National Sports Centre Major Developed Site 

G4 Extensions/Alterations to Dwellings in the 
Green Belt or on Metropolitan Open Land 

G5 Replacement Dwellings in the Green Belt or 
on Metropolitan Open Land 

G6 Land Adjoining Green Belt or Metropolitan 
Open Land 

G7 South East London Green Chain 

G8 Urban Open Space 

G9 Future Re-Use of Agricultural Land 

G10 Development Related to Farm Diversification 

G11 Agricultural Dwellings 

G12 Temporary Agricultural Dwellings  

G13 Removal of Occupancy Conditions 

G14 Minerals Workings 

G15 Mineral Workings – Associated Development 

 
 
 
 

P
age 180



 35

Recreation, Leisure and Tourism 
 

L1 Outdoor Recreation and Leisure 

L2 Public Rights of Way and Other Recreational 
Routes 

L3 Horses, Stabling and Riding Facilities 

L4 Horses, Stabling and Riding Facilities – joint 
applications 

L5 War Games and Similar Uses 

L6 Playing Fields 

L7 Leisure Gardens and Allotments 

L8 Playing Open  

L9 Indoor Recreation and Leisure 

L10 Tourist-Related Development – New 
Development 

L11 Tourist-Related Development – Changes of 
Use 

 
 
Business and Regeneration 
 

EMP1 Large Scale Office Development 

EMP2 Office Development 

EMP3 Conversion or redevelopment of Offices 

EMP4 Business Areas 

EMP5 Development Outside Business Areas 

EMP6 Development Outside Business Areas – non 
conforming uses 

EMP7 Business Support 

EMP8 Use of Dwellings for Business Purposes 

EMP9 Vacant Commercial Sites and Premises 

 
 
 
 

P
age 181



 36

Town Centres and Shopping 
 

S1 Primary Frontages 

S2 Secondary Frontages 

S3 The Glades 

S4 Local Centres 

S5 Local Neighbourhood Centres, Parades and 
Individual Shops 

S6 Retail and Leisure Development – existing 
centres 

S7 Retail and Leisure Development – outside 
existing centres 

S8 Petrol Filling Stations 

S9 Food and Drink Premises 

S10 Non-Retail Uses in Shopping Areas 

S11 Residential Accommodation 

S12 Markets 

S13 Mini Cab and Taxi Offices 

 
 
Biggin Hill 
 

BH1 Local Environment  

BH2 New Development 

BH3 South Camp 

BH4 Passenger Terminal/Control Tower/West 
Camp (Area 1) 

BH5 Former RAF Married Quarters (Area 2) 

BH6 East Camp 

BH7 Safety 

BH8 Noise Sensitive Development 

 
 
 
 

P
age 182



 37

Community Services 
 

C1 Community Facilities 

C2 Communities Facilities and Development  

C4 Health facilities 

C5 Facilities for Vulnerable Groups 

C6 Residential Proposals for People with 
Particular Accommodation 

C7 Educational and Pre-School Facilities 

C8 Dual Community Use of Educational 
Facilities 

 
 
 
Environmental Resources 
 

ER2 Waste Management Facilities 

ER9 Ventilation 

ER10 Light Pollution 

ER11 Hazardous Substances 

ER16 The Water Environment 

ER17 Development and the Water Environment 

 
 
 
Implementation 
 

IMP1 Planning Obligations  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 183



 38

 
 
 

P
age 184



  

1

Report No. 
DRR/13/018 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: PLANNING PEFORMANCE AND PROPOSED DIRECTION OF 
IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Contact Officer: Jim Kehoe, Deputy Chief Planner 
Tel: 020 8313 4441    E-mail:  jim.kehoe@bromley.gov.uk  
 

Chief Officer: Marc Hume, Director of Renewal & Recreation 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report responds to the need to stimulate economic growth, to the downward trend in 
planning application performance, to changes in national planning requirements, and to the 
periodic need to consider service delivery.  The report responds in particular to a request of the 
Renewal and Recreation Policy and Development Scrutiny Committee (R&R PDS) for these 
matters to be brought before this Committee.  A parallel report will be made to the R&R PDS of 
17th January 2013 and Members will be given an update. 

 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That the Outline Planning Improvement Plan be endorsed as a framework for 
improvement and that reports on specific improvements be brought to the Committee as 
necessary. 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 185



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal Not Applicable:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Planning 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £2.725M 
 

5. Source of funding: Existing revenue budget 2012/13 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 76ftes (excluding Building Control, Land Charges)   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 14   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): those promoting and 
commenting on about 3,000 planning applications per year.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 186



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Outline Planning Improvement Plan 
 

The Outline Planning Improvement Plan is intended to demonstrate our ambitions to improve 
service delivery.  It also gives direction and provides a framework to guide the more detailed 
actions that should follow.  It is envisaged that the Committee will play an important role in the 
future stages of the Plan, for example through liaison between the Chairman and senior 
planning officers. 

 
The proposed Outline Planning Improvement Plan is set out at Appendix One.  It is structured 
around seven objectives: 

 
1. To support Economic Growth. 
 
2. To improve Customer Service. 
 
3. To improve efficiency, producing savings. 
 
4. To respond to pressure to change e.g., National Planning Policy Framework and 

Development Plan. 
 
5. To improve the quality of Councillor/Officer decision making and the quality of the 

completed development. 
 
6. To deliver Training and Development programmes for staff and Councillors. 
 
7. To improve Planning Enforcement and Untidy Sites Communication. 

 
The main reasons for including these seven objectives are as follows:- 

 
1. We aim to support the local economy in the current wider economic circumstances, in 

the interests of local residents and businesses.  Furthermore, there is to be a financial 
incentive to the Council based on business floorspace completions; 

 
2. We aim to improve our knowledge of customer satisfaction with the service, including 

applicants, agents and local residents, and to respond accordingly; 
 
3. With the financial circumstances of the Council, we aim to improve the efficiency of our 

operations; 
 
4. We need to respond to actual or proposed changes in the national legal and policy 

framework in which we operate, for example the Community Infrastructure Levy, the 
National Planning Policy Framework; 

 
5. We know that planning issues attract strongly held views and need to ensure that the 

quality of planning decision making and the completed development is evaluated; 
 
6. Given the demands placed on all planning decision makers, we need to ensure that 

there is suitable initial training and thereafter a programme of updating; 
 
7. Planning enforcement is often a difficult matter for Councils, prompting a need for a 

clear strategy and clear communication of expectations on all sides. 
 

Page 187



  

4

It is proposed that the Committee will receive future reports on individual topics within the 
framework of the Improvement Plan. 

 
3.2 Planning Application Performance 
 

In order to guide future action, it is relevant to analyse some of the main factors that can 
influence performance and this information is summarized at Appendix Two.  From this, we 
can see that the trends in the volume of applications and level of income are relatively steady 
when compared to the time taken to determine applications. 
 
We can also use an indicator of around 190 cases per Development Control case officer to 
measure whether staff workload is reasonable.  This benchmark is based on the analysis of 
performance of a wide range of local planning authorities carried out for Central Government.  
At present, the Council has about 200-210 cases per D.C. case officer which is not an 
unreasonable level. 
 
However, the number of cases that are in a ‘backlog’ (awaiting a decision and beyond the 
target date for decision) is significantly higher than the national average. 
 
In that context, we have focused on the stages of application processing and already 
commenced with remedial action. 
 
At the early stages – receipt of an application and its initial processing – it is clear that the time 
taken for a planning application to be validated and reach the case officer is too long. 
 
We therefore completed a review of the planning validation process in November/December 
2012.  Our objective is to achieve a ‘receipt to D.C. Case Officer’ time for 80% of applications 
in 5 working days.   
 
The main changes to reach this objective are:-  
 
-  to introduce a new method of processing the applications – focused on a multi-tasked team 

rather than specialist roles. 
-  to reduce the high proportion of applications that are invalid upon receipt and more rapid 

resolution of reasons for invalidity. 
-  to ensure that our consultees normally accept electronic details rather than paper copies. 
 
The new methods of working have been introduced in December and the Committee will be 
given an update on the initial results of the changes. 

 
3.3 Planning Enforcement 
 

Planning Enforcement information is attached at Appendix 3.  This shows that the Council is 
active in pursuing cases to formal notices.  This is important to avoid undermining planning 
controls in general.  Nevertheless, it is also appropriate in some cases to seek remedial action 
where there is a breach of control without recourse to formal action.  In many cases, reports of 
breaches of planning control are found not to be a breach and this is reflected in the total of 
around 900 queries received by the Planning Enforcement Team each year. 
 
In common with many Council Planning Enforcement services, issues arise in Bromley from 
the powers available to Councils and from communicating progress with the stages of 
enforcement action.  This includes both development in breach of planning control and the 
‘untidy sites’ cases.  To address this, it is proposed that Planning Enforcement be included in 
the Outline Improvement Plan shown at Appendix 1. 

Page 188



  

5

 
4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct revenue implications arising from this report.  

5.2 A breakdown of the latest budget monitoring position is shown below for information: - 

 

 

Type of expenditure/income 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13

Latest 

budget

Projected 

outturn

Projected 

variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employees 3,060 2,798 (262)

Premises 10 10 0

Transport 19 27 8

Supplies & services 618 580 (38)

Income (1,675) (1,375) 300

Controllable budget 2,032 2,040 8

Net recharges 693 693 0

Total Net Budget 2,725 2,733 8

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 None for the purposes of this report.  

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

  

 

Non-Applicable Sections: [List non-applicable sections here] 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

 

Page 189



Page 190

This page is left intentionally blank



OUTLINE PLANNING IMPROVEMENT PLAN - PROJECT – DRAFT  
 

Appendix 1 
 

 
Objectives 
 
1. To support Economic Growth. 

 
2. To improve Customer Service. 
 
3. To improve efficiency, producing savings. 
 
4. To respond to pressure to change e.g., National Planning Policy 

Framework and Development Plan. 
 
5. To improve the quality of Councillor/Officer decision making and the 

quality of the completed development. 
 
6. To deliver Training and Development programmes for staff and 

Councillors. 
 
7. To improve Planning Enforcement and Untidy Sites Communication. 
 
 
 
 
Actions – Draft 
 
1. Support Economic Growth. 
 

• Seek a higher quality of submission and approve more 
applications, especially major and minor categories; 

• Speed up application processing, so projects can get the 
certainty they need; 

• Seek to be more flexible to changing circumstances; 
• Identify stalled sites due to site viability; 
• Bring forward Development Plan adoption to increase certainty 

about the Council’s intentions and offer a clear policy lead that 
takes into account local evidence. 

• Ensure clarity of the Council’s requirements for validation of 
applications; 

• Review Development Team approach from pre-application 
stage. 

 

Page 191



2. Improve Customer Service 
 

• Improve ease of website use (analysis of actual usage); 
• Increase amount of information available on the Council website 

to avoid other more costly methods (e.g., by phone or personal 
email); 

• Ensure phone call and written responses by planning are done  
on time; 

• Reduce time taken over applications, changes to improve 
quality; 

• Complete Customer Surveys and act on results; 
• Promote Agents and developer forum feedback; 
• Review communications – internal/external, including to Ward 

Councillors. 
 
3. Improve efficiency, producing savings 
 

• Check newspaper adverts – cost; 
• Check budgets for efficiency; 
• Check staff levels for efficiency; 
• Ensure we are adopting Best Practice wherever appropriate 

e.g., GIS/Land Charges; 

• Identify relevant management indicators:- e.g., former NI157, 
backlog of time expired applications time taken to validate; 

• Enhance the efficiency driving role in service; 
• Review pre-application service processes including participation 

of parties outside planning and Section 106 obligations. 
 
4. Pressure to change e.g., National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF) and Development Plan. 
 

• NPPF – consider position on Development Plan adoption; 
• Update Local Development Scheme (adopted vs. latest 

estimates); 

• 5 year land supply – ensure it is kept robust and up to date; 
• Prepare Community Infrastructure Levy Plans; 
• Establish a method for deciding on any action arising from 

pressure to change e.g., ministerial announcements; 
 
5. Improve quality of decision making and the quality of the completed 

development. 
 

• Review the lessons to be learnt from Planning Appeals; 
• Review the ‘Public face’ of Plans Sub-Committees and call-in 

process to Committees; 

• Expand the level of Royal Town Planning Institute RTPI (or 
equivalent) membership; 

• Complete an assessment of quality of decision – making. 
 

Page 192



6. Training and Development programmes for staff and Councillors 
 

• Ensure Continuing Professional Development is maintained by 
officers 

• Consider obtaining RTPI Learning Partner status for Bromley 
Council; 

• Short updates for staff e.g., lunchtime, by staff for staff; 
• Circulation of professional updates e.g., Planning Magazine;  
• Councillors – Training before participating in decisions on 

Applications or Policy for new Councillors as necessary; 
 
- Tour and assessment of completed developments; 
-  Annual programme of Councillor updating, seminars, training 
on Planning. 

• Consider attendance at Planning Summer School; 
 
7. Planning Enforcement and Untidy Sites Communication 
 

• Finalise and adopt an Enforcement and Compliance Strategy 
• Improve the information available to Councillors on the progress 

with enforcement and untidy site cases, through an increase in 
the frequency and detail of reports to DCC and updating of 
Councillors interested in specific cases. 

• Agree a package of performance monitoring information on 
enforcement/untidy site cases. 

• Identify a manageable volume of priority issues where we 
monitor compliance e.g., types of planning conditions. 

• Arrange Councillor Seminars on selected Planning 
Enforcement/Untidy Site topics 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 193



Page 194

This page is left intentionally blank



INCOME FROM PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
Appendix 2 

 
. 
 
 

Year Income from 
Planning 

Applications  
 

Actual 

Planning 
Applications 

- numbers per year 

% applications 
decided in 8 

weeks 
 

Minor 

% applications 
decided in 8 

weeks 
 

Other 

2008-09 948,955 3309 74 84 

2009-10 1,037,749 3140 70 85 

2010-11 916,961 3076 67 81 

2011-12 897,964 3168 57 75 

2012-13 Estimated £900,000 Estimated 3200 49 66 

 
Notes 
 
(1) From 2008 to November 2012 there was no national fee increase. 
(2) Planning application data is from national return ‘PS1’. 

P
age 195



P
age 196

T
his page is left intentionally blank



Appendix 3 
 
 
 

Planning Enforcement : Formal Notices 10/11 and 11/12 
 
 

 
       10/11  11/12 
 
Number of enforcement notices issued  83  61 

 

Number of contravention notices served  12  8 

 

Number of Breach of Condition notices served 12  12 

 

Page 197



Page 198

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
DRR13/020 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: THE CHENIES ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION 
 

Contact Officer: Robert Buckley, Principal Conservation Officer 
Tel: 020 84617532    E-mail:  Robert.Buckley@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Director of Renewal & Recreation 

Ward: Petts Wood and Knoll 

 
1. Reason for report 

 The issue for consideration is the confirmation of an article 4 Direction at the Chenies 
conservation area in Petts Wood. This will remove the Permitted Development (PD) right to 
install a rooflight on the front elevation of a dwelling house or the side elevation where it is seen 
from the public highway. Members agreed that this direction could be made at the 8th 
September 2011 DCC meeting. This report therefore seeks to confirm this non immediate article 
4 to come into effect on 8th February 2013 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 Confirm Article 4 direction to remove the PD right to install rooflights to come into effect 
on 8th February 2013. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 199



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre:       
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £      
 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 2 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 4 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 29 Dwellings 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 200



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 Members will recall that on September 8th 2011, authorisation was given to make an Article 
4 Direction on the Chenies conservation area. The direction will remove the Permitted 
Development right to insert a rooflight on the front or side elevation of a dwelling. A statutory 6 
week consultation was done as part of the process. No objections were received and 27 
signatures of support were received from the Chenies Residents Association. The Secretary of 
State was also consulted with no objection being received. 

 3.2 In order to avoid the risk of compensation claims it was recommended that a “non-
immediate” Article 4 Direction be used whereby the direction comes into effect no earlier than 
12 months after the direction is made. No such compensation claims have been received by the 
Council. The Direction was made on February 8th 2012. It is therefore requested that members 
authorise the confirmation of the direction to come into effect on February 8th 2013  

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 Existing Policy 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 No planning fee is chargeable for applications generated by the direction. However this Article 4 
direction is not expected to generate many additional applications. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Article 4 of the GPDO (amended 1995) allows LPAs to withdraw certain PD rights from specified 
areas 

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 Due to the small area (29 houses) a large increase in workload is not projected. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: [List non-applicable sections here] 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

The Chenies Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 

Page 201



Page 202

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
DRR13/021 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Date:  Tuesday 29 January 2013 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: JULIAN ROAD ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION 
 

Contact Officer: Chief Planning Officer 
Planning Division 
Tel: 020 84617532  
 

Chief Officer: Director of Renewal & Recreation 

Ward: Chelsfield and Pratts Bottom 

 
1. Reason for report 

The issue for consideration is the confirmation of an article 4 Direction at Land to rear of Nos.  
1-39 Julian Road and rear of Nos. 8-30 Woodlands Road, Orpington, Kent. The effect of the 
Direction is to require that the provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or 
enclosure, or swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the 
dwellinghouse as such; or the provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of a hard surface 
for any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse as such WILL REQUIRE 
PLANNING PERMISSION. Previously, such works were classed as ‘permitted development’ 
under Schedule 2, Part1, Classes E and F of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 as amended. This report therefore seeks to confirm this 
non-immediate article 4 to come into effect on 8th February 2013 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 Confirm Article 4 direction to remove the PD in respect of Class E and Class F 
development, to come into effect on 8th February 2013. 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 203



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre:       
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £      
 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 2 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 4 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 29 Dwellings 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 204



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 At a meeting of the Portfolio Holder for Local Economy on 5th August 2008 the Council 
resolved that a Direction under Article 4 (1) to which Article 5 (4) applies was made. However, 
the Direction was not confirmed and therefore subsequently expired.  

 
3.2 Most recently, on 14th November 2012 the Portfolio Holder signed an “Emergency” procedure 

for making an Article 4 Direction, under the terms of Circular 9/95: General Development 
Consolidation Order 1995 (as amended). This resulted from concerns that part of the Land 
subject of this Direction could be imminently developed.  

 
3.3 A statutory consultation was undertaken as part of the process with affected owners and/or 

occupiers receiving a letter dated 21 November advising of the Direction. A press 
advertisement was also published on 28 November 2012. No objections or other 
representations were received. The Secretary of State was also consulted with no objection 
being received. The Direction was made on 14th November 2012. It is therefore requested that 
members authorise the confirmation of the direction to come into effect on 8th February 2013. 

  
4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 Existing Policy. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 No planning fee is chargeable for applications generated by the direction. However this is not 
expected to generate many additional applications. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Article 4 of the GPDO (amended 1995) allows LPAs to withdraw certain PD rights from 
specified areas. 

 
7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 Due to the small area a large increase in workload is not projected. 
 

Non-Applicable Sections: - 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

The Chenies Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 

 

Page 205



Page 206

This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	3 CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 NOVEMBER 2012
	5 Options and Preferred Strategy Consultation Draft Local Plan
	Enc. 3 for Options and Preferred Strategy Consultation Draft Local Plan
	Enc. 2 for Options and Preferred Strategy Consultation Draft Local Plan
	Enc. 1 for Options and Preferred Strategy Consultation Draft Local Plan

	6 Italian Gardens and Glades Terrace application for Registration as Town or Village Green
	7 Appeals by Capital Shopping Centres Ltd (CSC) against the Council's decision to refuse planning and listed building consent for development at Queen's Gardens, Bromley
	Queens Gardens' appendix

	8 Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 2011/12
	Enc. 1 for Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 2011/12

	9 Planning Performance and Proposed Direction of Improvements
	Enc. 1 for Planning Peformance and Proposed Direction of Improvements
	Enc. 2 for Planning Peformance and Proposed Direction of Improvements
	Enc. 3 for Planning Peformance and Proposed Direction of Improvements

	10 The Chenies Article 4 Direction
	11 JULIAN ROAD ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION

